
OR 529 Savings Plan
Board Book

November 21, 2024



  THE OREGON 529 SAVINGS BOARD 

OR 529 Savings Board Meeting Agenda 
Thursday, November 21, 2024 

1:00pm – 4:00pm 
TEAMS:  November Attendee Link 

Location:  867 Hawthorne Avenue SE 
Salem, Oregon 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired or for other accommodations should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to:  Missy Simpson 
at college.savings@ost.state.or.us or 503.373.1903. 

There will be an opportunity for public comment before the end of the meeting. 

2025 Board Meeting Dates: 
February 20, 2025    1:00-4:00     Salem Office 
May 22, 2025       1:00-4:00     Salem Office 
August 21, 2025  1:00-4:00 Tigard Office 
November 18, 2025       11:30-1:00pm Tigard Office (Joint Fiduciary Training w/ORSP Board) 

1:00-3:00pm Tigard Office (Board Meeting) 

CALL TO ORDER Treasurer Read, Chair 1:00 pm 

ACTION ITEMS 

Approval of August 22, 2024 Board Minutes Treasurer Read, Chair 1:00-1:05 pm 

FOR INFORMATION 

Executive Director’s Report Ryan Mann, Executive Director 1:05-1:15 pm 

Review Draft Audit Reports Greg Walker/Pattie Davidson, Landmark 1:15-1:25 pm 

Quarterly Data Report/Investment 
Performance Report Ryan Fitzgerald, Sellwood Investment Partners 1:25-1:45 pm 

OCSP & ABLE Update Doug Magnolia, Vestwell 1:45-2:05 pm 

Ryan Mann 

Executive Director 

Oregon Treasury Savings Network |867 Hawthorne Avenue SE, Salem, Oregon 97301 
503-373-1903 | OregonTreasurySavingsNetwork.com | college.savings@ost.state.or.us

Board Book Page 2

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YjJmNzg3OTgtMWRkYi00Mzg2LWIxMDYtOTNkMDAyOTMwNTk1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7B%22Tid%22%3A%229123ae20-585d-446a-abd6-50dad4c7c1d5%22%2C%22Oid%22%3A%2288e598c0-10f1-4952-84af-62ad68e6ddf3%22%2C%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3Atrue%2C%22role%22%3A%22a%22%7D&btype=a&role=a
mailto:college.savings@ost.state.or.us


Communications Update Kasey Krifka, Marketing & Comms. Dir. 2:05-2:15 pm 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Submit written public comments to college.savings@ost.state.or.us 

Next Board Meeting:  February 20, 2025 

 FIDUCIARY TRAINING: Kay Ceserani, Hannah Schriner, Mika Malone 
Meketa Investment Group 2:30-4:00 pm 

Adjournment 

The Board may discuss and consider other matters relating to the Board, its mission, and business operations and may take 
action on any such matters. 

Board Book Page 3

mailto:college.savings@ost.state.or.us


1 

Minutes of the Oregon 529 Savings Board 
August 22, 2024 

Members Present: Missy Olson 
Catherine Schulist 
Brett Turner 
Treasurer Tobias Read, Chair 

Network Staff:  Ashley Daigle, Strategy and Program Director 
Kasey Krifka, Marketing and Communications Director 
Caitlen Laue, Operations Director 
Ryan Mann, Executive Director 
Renzo Meza, Outreach Manager 
Missy Simpson, Program Coordinator 
James Sinks, Financial Education Program Manager 
Stephanie Swetland, Plan Specialist  
John Valley, Policy and Outreach Director 
Sokvy Vin, Robert W. Straub Fellow 

Others Present: Ryan Fitzgerald, Sellwood Consulting 
Kevin Raymond, Sellwood Consulting 
Doug Magnolia, Vestwell 
Daniel Nzouankeu, Vestwell 
Michael Russell, MFS 
Anthony Poto, MFS 
Andrew Warren, Financial Health Network 
KC Anderson, Thesis 
Soohyang Lee, AKF Consulting 
Peter Rector, Oregon State Treasury 
Annie Gregori, Oregon State Treasury 
Sara Bayes, Oregon State Treasury 

The meeting was called to order at 1:05 pm by Treasurer Read. 

Agenda Item 1 - Review and approval of the May 16, 2024, Board Minutes (ACTION ITEM) 

MOTION:  Board Member Missy Olson moved to approve the May 16, 2024, Board minutes, seconded by Board 
Member Brett Turner.  The minutes were approved by a 4/0 vote. 

Agenda Item 2 – Board Member Report (INFORMATION ITEM) 
There were no Board Member reports. 

Agenda Item 3 - Executive Director’s Report (INFORMATION ITEM) 
Ryan Mann, Executive Director, introduced Treasury’s Robert W. Straub Fellow, Sokvy Vin, who researched and 
reported on the refundable tax credit for the Oregon College Savings Plan and the Oregon ABLE Savings Plan.  
Ms. Vin gave a summary of her research to the Board. 

Board Book Page 4



2 

Mr. Mann gave an update on the past year and where we are on the Savings Network’s budget, account growth, 
asset growth, and how that was accomplished.  There were two upcoming initiatives that Mr. Mann wanted to 
mention to the Board. The first was the Grant Program being piloted with three community organizations: Family 
Building Blocks, Birch Community Services, and the Arc of Oregon, with seed funds provided to grantees to help 
open accounts. The second was the ABLE Summit scheduled on October 2nd to celebrate the 10-year Anniversary 
of the passage of the ABLE Act, and to reach out to other organizations to increase the number of Oregonians with 
ABLE Accounts.  A copy of the Executive Director’s Report is part of the records for this Board meeting.  

Agenda Item 4 – MFS Introduction (INFORMATION ITEM) 
Anthony Poto and Michael Russell, MFS, introduced themselves to the Board and gave an overview of the MFS 
Plan. 

Agenda Item 5 – Financial Security of People with Disabilities (INFORMATION ITEM) 
Andrew Warren, Financial Health Network, reported on the financial health of people with disabilities.  Some of the 
objectives of this report was to measure the gap in financial health between people with and without disabilities, 
identify public and private sector barriers, and explore gaps in financial inclusion.  A copy of the Financial Security 
of People with Disabilities presentation is part of the records for this Board meeting. 

Agenda Item 6 – Quarterly Data Report (INFORMATION ITEM) 
Ryan Fitzgerald, Sellwood Consulting, gave an update on the program data report, which included the program 
overview, coverage rate follow-up, higher education follow-up and national ABLE statistics.   A copy of Mr. 
Fitzgerald’s presentation is part of the records for this Board meeting.    

Agenda Item 7 – OCSP & ABLE Update (INFORMATION ITEM) 
Doug Magnolia, Vestwell, gave sneak peak of the mobile app, an update on the weather boosters, snapshots of the 
new webpage and utilization of Organizational ALRs, and an update on the customer service for the Oregon 
College Savings Plan and Oregon ABLE Plan. A copy of Mr. Magnolia’s presentation is part of the records for this 
Board meeting. 

Agenda Item 8 – Communications Update (INFORMATION ITEM) 
Kasey Krifka, Marketing and Communications Director, gave an overview on Q2 marketing, which consisted of the 
strategy and campaign overview, media and website performance, video testimonials, and the ABLE general 
awareness creative and a refresh for the Oregon ABLE and ABLE for All websites.  A copy of the Marketing 
Overview for Q2 is part of the records for this Board meeting. 

Agenda Item 9 – Investment Performance Report (INFORMATION ITEM) 
Kevin Raymond, Sellwood Consulting, gave an overview of the US market and Ryan Fitzgerald updated the Board 
on the investment options offered in all three plans.  A copy of the Investment Performance report is part of the 
records for this Board meeting.  

PUBLIC COMMENT:   
There was no public comment. 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:43pm 

Board Book Page 5



Oregon College Savings Plan Participant Analysis: 

Moving the Needle for the Next 
Generation

2019-2021 2021-2024

22%

45%

Year Range of New Account Openings

% of New Accounts with 
Beneficiary under age 5

Board Book Page 6



Elinore Nudelman ALS 
College Savings Program

Strategic Partnerships throughout the State

27
Oregon Counties

185
Outreach Events

2021-2024 Outreach Actions

2024 ABLE Summit

Head Start & 
Early Head Start

Board Book Page 7



Prel
im

ina
ry

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Basic Financial Statements 
and

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024 

(With Independent Auditor’s Report Thereon)

Board Book Page 8



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1 – 3 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) 7 – 11 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 13 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 13 

Notes to Financial Statements 14 – 22 

Board Book Page 9



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Members of the Oregon 529 Savings Board 
Vestwell State Savings, LLC  

Oregon College Savings Plan 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Position of the Oregon College Savings Plan (the Plan) as of and for the year ended June 30,
2024, and the related Notes to the Financial Statements, which collectively comprise the Program’s Basic 
Financial Statements.

In our opinion, the Basic Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the fiduciary net 
position of the Plan as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in its fiduciary net position for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. 
GAAP). 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (U.S. GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Basic Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to 
be independent of the Plan and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Other 

As disclosed in Note 1, the Plan is a qualified tuition savings plan designed to help individuals and families
throughout the U.S. save for college in a tax-advantaged way. The Plan is part of the Oregon 529 Savings
Network (the Network), which also offers another qualified tuition savings plan available solely through 
financial advisors and a qualified ABLE program. Assets of the Network are held in the Oregon 529 Savings 
Network Trust (the Trust). These Basic Financial Statements present only activities and balances
attributable to the Plan, and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the fiduciary net position or
changes in fiduciary net position of the Network or the Trust as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024. 
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Basic Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Basic Financial Statements in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP, and for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the Basic Financial Statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Board Book Page 10



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

2 

Members of the Oregon 529 Savings Board 
Vestwell State Savings, LLC  

Oregon College Savings Plan 

Responsibilities of Management for the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

In preparing the Basic Financial Statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Plan’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Basic Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Basic Financial Statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute
assurance, and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. GAAS will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the Basic Financial Statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS, we:

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Basic Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts 
and disclosures in the Basic Financial Statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Plan’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the Basic Financial Statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Plan’s ability to continue as a going concern 
for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Board Book Page 11



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

3 

Members of the Oregon 529 Savings Board 
Vestwell State Savings, LLC  

Oregon College Savings Plan 

Required Supplementary Information 

U.S. GAAP requires that Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 7 through 11 be presented to
supplement the Basic Financial Statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, 
although not a part of the Basic Financial Statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board as it is considered to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the Basic 
Financial Statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with U.S. GAAS, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the Basic 
Financial Statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the Basic Financial 
Statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance.

Little Rock, Arkansas 
DATE, 2024 

Board Book Page 12



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

4 

(This page intentionally left blank)

Board Book Page 13



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

5 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited)

Board Book Page 14



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

6 

(This page intentionally left blank) 

Board Book Page 15



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

7 

As Program Manager of the Oregon College Savings Plan (the Plan), Vestwell State Savings, LLC (Vestwell) 
offers this discussion and analysis of the Plan’s financial performance for the year ended June 30, 2024, 
with comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2023. Readers should consider the information
presented in this section in conjunction with the Plan’s financial statements and notes thereto (collectively,
the “Basic Financial Statements”) along with the Oregon College Savings Plan – Plan Disclosure Booklet.  

This report consists of two parts: 1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis (this section) and 2) the Basic
Financial Statements. Management’s Discussion and Analysis includes selected financial data and an 
overview of the Plan’s financial status and changes therein as of and for the periods presented. The Basic 
Financial Statements consist of a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position, a Statement of Changes in Fiduciary 
Net Position and Notes to Financial Statements that further explain and provide more detailed
information about amounts presented in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. 

The Oregon 529 Savings Board (the Board) is responsible for administration and oversight of the Plan as 
part of the Oregon 529 Savings Network (the Network). In addition to the Plan, the Network also includes, 
and the Board administers, another qualified tuition plan available solely through financial advisors (the
MFS® 529 Savings Plan) and a qualified ABLE program. The information in Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis and the Basic Financial Statements pertains only to the Plan and does not include information 
attributable to the MFS® 529 Savings Plan or the qualified ABLE program. 

Board Book Page 16



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

8 

Financial Highlights 

The Plan offers two primary approaches from which account owners may choose to invest their
contributions – the College Enrollment Year Investment Option and the Static Investment Option. The
College Enrollment Year Investment Option offers portfolios designed for the anticipated year of
enrollment in college where money moves automatically to progressively more conservative investments
as the beneficiary approaches the targeted year of enrollment. The Static Investment Option currently
offers fourteen (14) portfolios, the asset allocation of which generally remains fixed over time. The
following table summarizes returns posted by each portfolio during the years ended June 30, 2024, and 
2023: 

Year Ended June 

30, 2024

Year Ended June 

30, 2023

Year Ended June 

30, 2024

Year Ended June 

30, 2023

2017 Enrollment Year N/A     3.49%
(1)

2031 Enrollment Year 11.71% 8.82%

2018 Enrollment Year    5.18%
(2)

3.24% 2032 Enrollment Year 12.32% 9.34%

2019 Enrollment Year 5.15% 3.14% 2033 Enrollment Year 12.84% 9.95%

2020 Enrollment Year 5.13% 2.67% 2034 Enrollment Year 13.35% 10.44%

2021 Enrollment Year 5.03% 2.29% 2035 Enrollment Year 13.91% 10.77%

2022 Enrollment Year 5.20% 2.39% 2036 Enrollment Year 14.53% 11.19%

2023 Enrollment Year 5.74% 2.35% 2037 Enrollment Year 15.07% 11.56%

2024 Enrollment Year 6.36% 2.88% 2038 Enrollment Year 15.54% 11.89%

2025 Enrollment Year 6.96% 3.78% 2039 Enrollment Year 15.93% 12.23%

2026 Enrollment Year 7.75% 4.76% 2040 Enrollment Year 16.25% 12.56%

2027 Enrollment Year 8.64% 5.61% 2041 Enrollment Year 16.40% 12.15%

2028 Enrollment Year 9.40% 6.45% 2042 Enrollment Year 16.43%    0.00%
(3)

2029 Enrollment Year 10.19% 7.27% 2043 Enrollment Year   0.00%
(4)

N/A

2030 Enrollment Year 10.95% 8.12%

College Enrollment Year Investment Option Portfolios

(1) Effective June 30, 2023, the 2017 College Enrollment Year Portfolio was discontinued, and account owner balances were
transferred into the existing FDIC-Insured Portfolio.

(2) Effective June 28, 2024, the 2018 College Enrollment Year Portfolio was discontinued, and account owner balances were
transferred into the existing FDIC-Insured Portfolio.

(3) Effective June 30, 2023, the 2042 College Enrollment Year Portfolio was added to the Plan.

(4) Effective June 30, 2024, the 2043 College Enrollment Year Portfolio was added to the Plan.

Board Book Page 17



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

9 

Financial Highlights (Continued) 

Year Ended June 

30, 2024

Year Ended June 

30, 2023

Year Ended June

30, 2024

Year Ended June 

30, 2023

Target Risk Conservative 6.41% 2.69% Social Choice Balanced 11.89% 9.34%

Target Risk Moderate 10.25% 6.81% Short Term Fixed Income Index 4.41% 0.03%

Target Risk Aggressive 14.87% 11.36% U.S. Equity Index 22.97% 18.71%

Diversified U.S. Equity 21.61% 18.28% International Equity Index 10.79% 12.13%

Diversified International Equity 9.37% 15.30% Fixed Income Index 2.58% -1.08%

Diversified Fixed Income 3.55% 0.30% FDIC-Insured 5.17% 3.65%

Diversified Inflation Protection 4.76% -4.60% Principal Plus Interest N/A 0.22%(1)

Balanced Index 11.69% 9.10%

Static Investment Option Portfolios

(1) Effective September 10, 2022, the Principal Plus Interest Portfolio was discontinued, and account owner balances were 
transferred into the existing FDIC-Insured Portfolio.  

The Plan’s fiduciary net position increased from $2.8 billion at June 30, 2023 to $3.2 billion at June 30, 
2024, an increase of $381.2 million, or 13.4%, from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024. 

During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, contributions exceeded withdrawals by $28.8 million and 
$42.2 million, respectively.  

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the Plan earned $358.3 million in net investment income, resulting 
from a $269.5 million net increase in the fair value of investments and $88.8 million in dividends, capital
gain distributions and interest. During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Plan earned $233.1 million in net 
investment income, resulting from a $155.1 million net increase in the fair value of investments and $78.0 
million in dividends, capital gain distributions and interest. 

State Administrative Fees incurred during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 totaled $6.0 million 
and $5.3 million, respectively.  These fees are calculated on the average net position in each portfolio and 
are paid to the Board for performing administrative, marketing and other services with respect to the 
Plan. The Board pays a portion of these fees to Vestwell for providing services necessary for the day-to-
day operations of the Plan.  

Board Book Page 18



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

10 

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements 

The Plan’s Basic Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), as applicable to fiduciary fund types. Accordingly, the Plan’s Basic Financial
Statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of 
accounting.

The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position presents information on the Plan’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as fiduciary net position. The Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net
Position presents information showing how the Plan’s fiduciary net position changed during the period
presented. Changes in fiduciary net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to 
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in the Basic Financial Statements for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal
years.

Account owners are able to direct investment of their contributions into one or more portfolios, each of 
which is invested in one or more mutual funds or an FDIC-insured bank account. 

Mutual funds are reported at fair value, and all investment transactions are reported on a trade-date
basis. Changes in fair value resulting from realized and unrealized gains and losses are reported as “net 
increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments.” Dividends and capital gain distributions are reported 
on the ex-dividend date. Contributions are recognized when received, provided enrollment in the Plan has 
been successfully completed, and withdrawals are recognized when the withdrawal request has been
received and approved for payment. State Administrative Fees are accrued daily. 

Board Book Page 19



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

11 

Financial Analysis 

Fiduciary Net Position 
The following are condensed Statements of Fiduciary Net Position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023: 

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Total assets 3,230,192,688$  2,846,815,042$      

Total liabilities 11,139,018 8,976,960          

and beneficiaries 3,219,053,670$      2,837,838,082$      
Net position held in trust for account owners

The reported balance of net position held in trust for account owners and their beneficiaries represents
cumulative contributions since the Plan’s inception, increased (decreased) by net investment income
(losses), and decreased by withdrawals and State Administrative Fees.  

Investments comprise over 99% of the Plan’s total assets. Other assets include receivables from securities
sold. Liabilities consist of payables for securities purchased, payables for withdrawals and accrued State 
Administrative Fees. 

Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
The following are condensed Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position for the years ended June 30, 
2024, and 2023: 

Year Ended

June 30, 2024

Year Ended

June 30, 2023

Contributions 279,021,810$         252,921,987$    

Net investment income 358,341,876    233,142,335  

Withdrawals (250,226,581)  (210,766,782)  

State Administrative Fees (5,921,517)  (5,290,332)  

Net increase 381,215,588      270,007,208      

and beneficiaries, beginning of year 2,837,838,082  2,567,830,874  

and beneficiaries, end of year 3,219,053,670$      2,837,838,082$      

Net position held in trust for account owners

Net position held in trust for account owners

Board Book Page 20



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

12 

Basic Financial Statements 

Board Book Page 21



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
June 30, 2024 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

13 

ASSETS
Investments 3,219,053,144$      
Receivables from securities sold 11,139,544

Total Assets 3,230,192,688

LIABILITIES
Payables for securities purchased 278,561   
Payable to Vestwell 9,815,988   
Withdrawals payable 520,538
Accrued State Administrative Fees 523,931

Total Liabilities 11,139,018

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR
ACCOUNT OWNERS AND BENEFICIARIES 3,219,053,670$      

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2024

ADDITIONS 
Contributions 279,021,810$          
Investment income:

Dividends, capital gain distributions and interest 88,845,874    
Net increase in the fair value of investments 269,496,002  

Total net investment income 358,341,876  

Total Additions 637,363,686  

DEDUCTIONS
Withdrawals 250,226,581  

State Administrative Fees 5,921,517   

Total Deductions 256,148,098  

NET INCREASE 381,215,588      

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR ACCOUNT OWNERS
AND BENEFICIARIES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,837,838,082   

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR ACCOUNT OWNERS
AND BENEFICIARIES, END OF YEAR 3,219,053,670$      

Board Book Page 22



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

14 

NOTE 1:  ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

The Oregon Savings Network (the Network) was created by the Oregon Revised Statutes sections
178.300 to 178.380, as amended. The Oregon College Savings Plan (the Plan) is one of two
qualified tuition savings plans offered under the Network to help individuals and families
throughout the U.S. save for the cost of education in a tax-advantaged way. The Plan offers
valuable advantages including tax-deferred growth, generous contribution limits, attractive
investment options and professional investment management. The Network also offers a qualified
ABLE program to eligible individuals with disabilities.

The Oregon 529 Savings Board (the Board) is responsible for administration and oversight of the 
Network and the programs offered thereunder. The Oregon 529 Savings Network Trust (the Trust)
was created to hold assets of the plans offered under the Network, ensuring that such assets can 
only be used for the benefit of account owners and their designated beneficiaries and cannot be
used by the state of Oregon (the State) to finance its operations. The Board is the sole trustee of 
the Trust.

The Plan is intended to operate as a qualified state tuition program as defined by the Internal
Revenue Service under Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended (the Code), and all 
related regulations and interpretations.

Vestwell State Savings, LLC (Vestwell) serves as Program Manager and is responsible for providing
administrative and recordkeeping services for the Plan under the direction of the Board. Vestwell
and the Board have entered into a contract (the Management Agreement) that specifies the
services that Vestwell and its subcontractors, including The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation
(BNY Mellon) and its affiliates, are to provide to the Plan. BNY Mellon is custodian for the Plan. 
Sellwood Consulting, LLC (Sellwood) provides investment advisory services for the Plan, including 
recommending the investment strategies to be offered to account owners and monitoring the
performance of investments, subject to an investment policy approved by the Board. 

The Plan offers two primary investment approaches – the College Enrollment Year Investment 
Option and the Static Investment Option. The College Enrollment Year Investment Option offers 
portfolios with allocation strategies that are designed to automatically move account balances to 
progressively more conservative investments as the beneficiary approaches the targeted year of 
enrollment. The Static Investment Option offers fourteen (14) portfolios, the composition of which 
generally remains fixed over time. 

Board Book Page 23



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

15 

NOTE 1:  ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS (Continued) 

Each portfolio is invested in one or more underlying mutual funds and an FDIC-insured bank
account held at BNY Mellon according to an asset allocation strategy recommended by Sellwood 
and approved by the Board. Balances in the FDIC-Insured Portfolio are invested solely in an FDIC-
insured bank account held at BNY Mellon. Collectively, the mutual funds and FDIC-insured bank
account are hereinafter referred to as “the Underlying Funds.”

These Basic Financial Statements present only the balances and transactions attributable to the
Plan, and do not include any balances or transactions attributable to the other qualified tuition 
savings plan available solely through financial advisors (the MFS® 529 Savings Plan) or the qualified
ABLE program offered through the Network. These Basic Financial Statements are not intended to,
and do not, present fairly the financial position or changes in financial position of the Network, the
Trust, the State or any other funds of the State.

For more details about the Plan, readers should refer to the Oregon College Savings Plan – Plan 
Disclosure Booklet and any related supplements (the Plan Disclosure Booklet) available on the
Plan’s website (www.oregoncollegesavings.com). 

NOTE 2:  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a)  Basis of Accounting
In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. 
GAAP) applicable to fiduciary fund types prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), the Basic Financial Statements are prepared using the flow of economic resources 
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. U.S. GAAP requires the use of estimates made
by management and the evaluation of subsequent events. Actual results may differ from those 
estimates.

Board Book Page 24



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

16 

NOTE 2:  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

(b)  Investment Valuation 
Accounting standards categorize fair value measurements according to a hierarchy that is based on
valuation inputs used to measure fair value. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices for identical assets in
active markets that can be accessed at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable for an asset, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are 
unobservable and may include subjective assumptions in determining the fair value of investments. 

The availability of observable inputs can vary from security to security and is affected by a wide
variety of factors including, for example, the type of security, whether the security is new and not 
yet established in the marketplace, the liquidity of markets and other characteristics particular to
the security. To the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or
unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value requires more judgment. Accordingly,
the degree of judgment exercised in determining fair value is greatest for instruments categorized 
in Level 3. The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of
the risk associated with investing in those securities. 

Mutual funds are reported at fair value, based on the net asset value per share at the close of the
New York Stock Exchange (NYSE), and are thus categorized in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
The fair value standards are not applicable to the FDIC-insured bank account held at BNY Mellon
since it is not reported at fair value.

(c)  Investment Transactions
Investment transactions are accounted for as of the trade date for financial reporting purposes. 
Interest income is recorded as earned. Dividend income and capital gain distributions from mutual
funds are recorded on the ex-dividend date. Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) are included
in “net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments.” 

Interest on the FDIC-insured bank account is accrued daily and credited by BNY Mellon on the last 
business day of each month. The interest rate is a rate equal of the upper end of the federal funds 
target range established by the Federal Reserve’s Federal Open Market Committee, less a 15 basis 
point fee paid to BNY Mellon and a 20 basis point State Administration Fee paid to the Board (see 
Note 4). The State Administrative Fee is subject to reduction if its application would cause a 
negative return on the FDIC-Insured Portfolio. 

Board Book Page 25



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

17 

NOTE 2:  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

(d) Contributions
Individuals or entities meeting eligibility requirements that have properly executed a participation 
agreement with the Plan may establish an account to which cash contributions may be made,
subject to certain minimum contribution requirements and limitations on the aggregate amount of
contributions. Contributions received by Vestwell prior to the close of the NYSE are recorded as 
increases in fiduciary net position on the date they are received, provided that all related
documentation is found to be in good order. 

In exchange for contributions to the Plan, account owners receive full and/or fractional interests, or 
units, issued by the Trust. These units are municipal fund securities. Although contributions are
invested in portfolios that hold mutual funds or the FDIC-insured bank account, the units
themselves are not direct investments in the mutual funds or the FDIC-insured bank account.
Except to the extent of FDIC insurance applicable to contributions invested in the FDIC-Insured
Portfolio, these Trust units are not insured by the FDIC, the State or the Board, nor have they been 
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission or any commission of the State. 

In addition, although account owners can select the portfolios in which their contributions are 
invested, they cannot direct the selection or allocation of the Underlying Funds composing each
portfolio. 

(e) Withdrawals
Account owners may request withdrawals for qualified or non-qualified expenses. It is the
responsibility of the account owner to determine whether or not the withdrawal is for qualified 
educational expenses and to calculate the applicable amount of federal or state tax or penalties for 
non-qualified withdrawals, if any. Withdrawals are recorded as deductions from fiduciary net
position on the date the withdrawal request is found to be in good order. 

Withdrawals include service fees imposed on the account owner for certain transactions, such as 
fees for rollovers or transfers out, failed electronic transactions, returned checks, statement 
deliveries, overnight delivery, re-issue of disbursement checks and outgoing wires. These 
transaction fees are paid to Vestwell. 

Board Book Page 26



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

18 

NOTE 2:  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

(f) Exchanges and Transfers
Subject to certain limitations and restrictions, account owners may generally direct that their
account balance be reinvested in one or more different portfolios twice per calendar year.
Transfers of funds between portfolios are referred to as “exchanges.” Under certain conditions, 
account assets may be transferred from one beneficiary to another or from one account owner to
another. These transactions are referred to as “transfers.” The amounts of contributions and
withdrawals reported on the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position do not include
exchanges or transfers, as these transactions have no impact on the overall financial position of the 
Plan.

(g)  Unit Value 
Unit values for each portfolio are determined at the close of business of the NYSE. The unit value of 
each portfolio is calculated by dividing the portfolio’s assets minus its liabilities by the number of 
outstanding units of such portfolio. There are no distributions of interest, dividends, capital gain
distributions or net investment income or losses directly to account owners or beneficiaries.
Interest, dividends, capital gain distributions and net investment income (losses) resulting from the
Underlying Funds are reflected as increases (decreases) in the unit value.

(h)  Income Taxes
The Plan is designed to operate as a qualified tuition savings program under Section 529 of the
Code and is exempt from federal and state income tax. The Plan has not engaged in any activities
that would subject the Plan to unrelated business income tax.

(i) Guarantees and Indemnifications
Under the Plan's organizational documents, neither the Board, the State, Vestwell nor any other
person or entity indemnifies any account owner or designated beneficiary against losses or other
claims arising from official or unofficial acts, negligent or otherwise, of members of the Board or
employees of the State or Vestwell in their performance of duties relevant to Plan operations.
Additionally, in the normal course of business, the Board, the State and Vestwell enter into
contracts related to the operation and administration of the Plan that contain a variety of
indemnification clauses. The maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown as this
would involve future claims that may be made against the Board, the State and Vestwell that have
not yet occurred. However, neither the Board, the State nor Vestwell have had prior claims or
losses pursuant to these contracts, and management of the Plan expects the risk of loss to be
remote.

Board Book Page 27



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

19 

NOTE 3:  INVESTMENTS 

(a)  Investments by Type
At June 30, 2024, the Plan’s Underlying Funds are as follows:

Mutual Funds, at fair value Value

Champlain Mid Cap Fund 16,616,220   

DFA International Small Cap Value Portfolio 1,890,972  

DFA Commodity Strategy Portfolio 2,797,726

DFA Emerging Markets Social Core Portfolio 2,749,354  

DFA Global Real Estate Securities Portfolio 2,850,221  

DFA International Social Core Equity Portfolio 8,046,313  

DFA Social Fixed Income Portfolio 9,102,105  

DFA U.S. Small Cap Portfolio 8,578,243  

Dodge & Cox Income Fund 4,142,487  

Dodge & Cox International  Stock Fund 10,044,337   

DoubleLine Core Fixed Income Fund 4,144,124  

LSV Value Equity Fund 51,579,290   

T. Rowe Price Large-Cap Growth Fund 45,994,293   

TIAA-CREF Social Choice Bond Fund 9,144,158  

TIAA-CREF Social Choice Equity Fund 16,586,772   

Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund Admiral Shares 1,312,037  

Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Fund Institutional Shares 90,203,817   

Vanguard Institutional Index Fund Institutional Shares 54,187,498   

Vanguard International Growth Fund Admiral Shares 6,292,891  

Vanguard Short-Term Bond Index Fund Institutional Plus Shares 211,956,763     

Vanguard Short-Term Inflation-Protected Securities Index Fund Institutional Shares 145,427,937     

Vanguard Total Bond Market Index Fund Institutional Plus Shares 438,400,625     

Vanguard Total International Bond Index Fund Institutional Shares 87,280,838   

Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund Institutional Plus Shares 492,480,859     

Vanguard Total Stock Market Index Fund Institutional Plus Shares 1,148,134,554     

Vanguard Treasury Money Market Fund 171,398,617     

Total Mutual Funds 3,041,343,051     

Other Investments

FDIC-Insured Bank Account 177,710,093

Total Investments 3,219,053,144$    

Board Book Page 28



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

20 

NOTE 3:  INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

(b)  Investment Risk
The mutual funds in which the Plan invests include various types of investment securities in their
asset holdings, such as corporate debt and equity securities, obligations of the U.S. government 
and government agencies and international securities. These securities are exposed to interest 
rate, market and credit risk, and it is at least reasonably possible that changes in their fair values 
could occur in the near term, materially affecting account owner balances and the amounts
reported in the Plan’s Basic Financial Statements. 

U.S. GAAP requires that certain disclosures be made related to the Plan’s investment policy and
exposure to credit risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk, which are included in the
paragraphs that follow.

Investment Policy 
The Board has adopted an investment policy statement that sets forth investment objectives,
permitted investments, asset allocation strategies and performance monitoring requirements 
applicable to the Plan. The investment policy statement does not specifically address credit,
interest rate, foreign currency or custodial credit risk. The portfolios are managed based on specific
investment objectives and strategies, which are described in the Plan Disclosure Booklet. 

Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Plan will not be
able to recover the value of an investment that is in the possession of an outside party. Mutual
funds are not subject to custodial credit risk because ownership is not evidenced by a transferable
financial instrument. 

Contributions to and earnings on the FDIC-insured bank account are insured by the FDIC on a pass-
through basis to each account owner, subject to applicable insurance limits. The FDIC-insured bank 
account is subject to custodial credit risk to the extent that balances in excess of federally insured 
limits are not collateralized or subject to supplemental insurance; however due to the pass-through
nature of FDIC-coverage applicable to this bank account, the amount of any uninsured or
uncollateralized balance is not readily determinable. 

Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. Mutual funds that invest primarily in bonds and other fixed income securities indirectly 
expose the Plan to credit risk. The mutual funds in which the Plan invests are not rated as to credit 
quality by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  

Board Book Page 29



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

21 

NOTE 3:  INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

(b)  Investment Risk (Continued)
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk represents the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. Mutual funds that invest in fixed income securities indirectly expose the Plan to
interest rate risk. Weighted average maturity, which is a measure of interest rate risk, is the
average length of time until fixed-income securities held by a mutual fund will be repaid. In general,
the longer the weighted average maturity, the more a mutual fund’s share price will fluctuate in
response to changes in interest rates. The calculation of weighted average maturity takes into
consideration the possibility that the issuer may call the security before its maturity date and the
proportion of total fund assets represented by each security. As of June 30, 2024, the fair values 
and the weighted average maturities for the bond funds in which the Plan invests are as follows: 

Weighted

Average

Fair Value Maturity

DFA Social Fixed Income Portfolio 9,102,105$            6.8 years

Dodge & Cox Income Fund 4,142,487$            9.9 years

DoubleLine Core Fixed Income Fund 4,144,124$            7.7 years

TIAA-CREF Social Choice Bond Fund 9,144,158$            9.4 years

Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Fund Institutional Shares 90,203,817$          7.1 years

Vanguard Short-Term Bond Index Fund Institutional Plus Shares 211,956,763$        2.9 years

Vanguard Short-Term Inflation-Protected Securities Index Fund

Institutional Shares 145,427,937$        2.5 years

Vanguard Total Bond Market Index Fund Institutional Plus Shares 438,400,625$        8.5 years

Vanguard Total International Bond Index Fund Institutional Shares 87,280,838$          8.9 years

Vanguard Treasury Money Market Fund 171,398,617$        28 days

Foreign Currency Risk  
Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. The Plan does not have any direct investment in foreign currency or foreign 
securities; however, certain portfolios invest in mutual funds that are exposed to foreign currency 
risk 

Board Book Page 30



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24

(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

22 

NOTE 4:  STATE ADMINISTRATIVE FEES AND OTHER EXPENSES 

(a)  State Administrative Fees
Each portfolio pays a State Administrative Fee to the Board to support the Board’s administrative
costs and other expenses of operating and marketing the Plan, a portion of which is paid by the
Board to Vestwell. The annualized State Administrative Fee is 20 basis points (0.20%) for each of 
the portfolios during the year ended June 30, 2024. These fees are calculated based on the average 
daily net position in each portfolio, accrued daily, paid monthly and reduce the unit value of the
portfolio.

(b) Mutual Fund Expenses
Expenses related to management of the mutual funds in which the Plan invests reduce the amount 
of income available for distribution to the Plan in the form of dividends and capital gain
distributions. These mutual fund expenses are not direct expenses paid from the Plan’s assets, and
are not reflected in expenses in the Plan’s Basic Financial Statements. 

(c)  Other Administrative Expenses
The Board incurs certain costs in providing administrative, marketing and oversight services to the
Plan. These costs are not paid directly from Plan assets, and they are not reported as expenses in 
the Plan’s Basic Financial Statements. 

Board Book Page 31



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 1

2, 
20

24Oregon ABLE Program 
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Basic Financial Statements 
and

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024  

(With Independent Auditor’s Report Thereon)

Board Book Page 32



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

Oregon ABLE Program 
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1 – 3 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) 7 – 10 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 12 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 12 

Notes to Financial Statements  14 – 20 

Board Book Page 33



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Members of the Oregon 529 Savings Board 
Vestwell State Savings, LLC  

Oregon ABLE Program  

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Position of the Oregon ABLE Program (the Program), which includes the Oregon ABLE 
Savings Plan and the ABLE for ALL Savings Plan (collectively, “the Plans”), as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2024, and the related Notes to the Financial Statements, which collectively comprise the
Program’s Basic Financial Statements. 

In our opinion, the Basic Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the fiduciary net 
position of the Program as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in its fiduciary net position for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. 
GAAP). 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (U.S. GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Basic Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to 
be independent of the Program and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Other 

As disclosed in Note 1, the Program is a qualified ABLE plan under which individuals with disabilities may
establish ABLE accounts to be used for disability-related expenses through one of two distinct plans – one
for residents of Oregon and the other for out-of-state residents. The Program is part of the Oregon 529 
Savings Network (Network), which also offers a qualified tuition savings program.  Assets of the Network
are held in the Oregon 529 Savings Network Trust (the Trust). These Basic Financial Statements present 
only activities and balances attributable to the Program, and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly
the fiduciary net position or changes in fiduciary net position of the Network or the Trust as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2024. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Basic Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Basic Financial Statements in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP, and for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the Basic Financial Statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Board Book Page 34



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

2 

Members of the Oregon 529 Savings Board 
Vestwell State Savings, LLC  

Oregon ABLE Program  

Responsibilities of Management for the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

In preparing the Basic Financial Statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Program’s ability 
to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Basic Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Basic Financial Statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute
assurance, and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. GAAS will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the Basic Financial Statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS, we:

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Basic Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts 
and disclosures in the Basic Financial Statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Program’s internal control. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the Basic Financial Statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Program’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Board Book Page 35



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

3 

Members of the Oregon 529 Savings Board 
Vestwell State Savings, LLC 

Oregon ABLE Program  

Required Supplementary Information 

U.S. GAAP requires that Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 7 through 10 be presented to
supplement the Basic Financial Statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and,
although not a part of the Basic Financial Statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board as it is considered to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the Basic 
Financial Statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with U.S. GAAS, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the Basic 
Financial Statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the Basic Financial 
Statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance.  

Little Rock, Arkansas 
DATE, 2024 

Board Book Page 36



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

4 

(This page intentionally left blank) 

Board Book Page 37



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

5 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited)

Board Book Page 38



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

6 

(This page intentionally left blank) 

Board Book Page 39



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

Oregon ABLE Program 
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

7 

As Program Manager of the Oregon ABLE Program (the Program), which includes the Oregon ABLE Savings
Plan, only available to residents of Oregon, and the ABLE for ALL Savings Plan, available to residents of all 
other states, Vestwell State Savings, LLC (Vestwell) offers this discussion and analysis of the Program’s 
financial performance for the year ended June 30, 2024, with comparative information for the year ended 
June 30, 2023. Collectively, the Oregon ABLE Savings Plan and the ABLE for ALL Savings Plan are referred 
to as “the Plans.” Readers should consider the information presented in this section in conjunction with 
the Program’s financial statements and notes thereto (collectively, the “Basic Financial Statements”), along 
with the Oregon ABLE Savings Plan – Plan Disclosure Booklet and related supplements and the ABLE for
ALL Savings Plan – Plan Disclosure Booklet and related supplements. 

This report consists of two parts: 1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis (this section) and 2) the Basic
Financial Statements. Management’s Discussion and Analysis includes selected financial data and an 
overview of the Program’s financial status and changes therein as of and for the periods presented. The
Basic Financial Statements consist of a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position, a Statement of Changes in 
Fiduciary Net Position and Notes to Financial Statements that further explain and provide more detailed
information about amounts presented in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. 

The Oregon 529 Savings Board (the Board) is responsible for administration and oversight of the Program 
and the Plans offered under the Program as part of the Oregon 529 Savings Network (the Network). In
addition to the Plans, the Network also includes, and the Board administers, a qualified tuition savings
program, which offers two education savings plans. The information in Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis and the Basic Financial Statements pertains only the Program and does not include information
attributable to the qualified tuition savings program.

Financial Highlights

The Program offers two primary strategies from which account owners or their authorized legal 
representatives may choose to invest their contributions – the Investment Options and the Cash Option. 
The following table summarizes returns posted by each portfolio option offered through these strategies 
during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023: 

Year Ended 

June 30, 2024

Year Ended 

June 30, 2023

Investment Options

ABLE Conservative Investment Option 6.32% 2.61%

ABLE Moderate Investment Option 10.16% 6.83%

ABLE Aggressive Investment Option 14.75% 11.33%

Cash Option 5.07% 3.55%

Board Book Page 40



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

Oregon ABLE Program 
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

8 

Financial Highlights (Continued) 

The Program’s fiduciary net position increased from $70.4 million at June 30, 2023 to $93.3 million at June 
30, 2024, an increase of $22.8 million, or 32.4%, from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024. 

During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, contributions exceeded withdrawals by $17.1 million and 
$14.0 million, respectively.  

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the Program experienced net investment income of $6.2 million, 
resulting from a net increase in the fair value of investments of $2.6 million and dividends, capital gain 
distributions and interest totaling $3.6 million. During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Program 
experienced net investment income of $3.3 million, resulting from a net increase in the fair value of
investments of $1.2 million and dividends, capital gain distributions and interest totaling $2.1 million. 

State Administrative Fees incurred during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 totaled $242.3
thousand and $179.8 thousand, respectively. These fees are calculated on the average net position in 
each portfolio option and are paid to the Board for performing administrative, marketing and other
services with respect to the Program. The Board pays a portion of these fees to Vestwell for providing 
services necessary for day-to-day operations of the Plan. 

Account fees are paid directly by account owners and include an Annual Account Maintenance Fee and 
certain other transaction fees. Account fees incurred by participants during the years ended June 30, 2024 
and 2023 totaled $238.0 thousand and $198.2 thousand, respectively. The Annual Account Maintenance 
Fees are paid to the Board, a portion of which may be paid to Vestwell, while any transaction fees are
paid to Vestwell.  

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

The Program’s Basic Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), as applicable to fiduciary fund types. Accordingly, the Program’s Basic Financial
Statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of 
accounting.

The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position presents information on the Program’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as fiduciary net position. The Statement of Changes in Fiduciary 
Net Position presents information showing how the Program’s fiduciary net position changed during the 
period presented. Changes in fiduciary net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are 
reported in the Basic Financial Statements for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal 
years. 

Board Book Page 41



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

Oregon ABLE Program 
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

9 

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Account owners or their authorized legal representatives are able to direct investment of their 
contributions into one or more portfolio options, each of which is invested in one or more mutual funds or 
an FDIC-insured bank account.  

Mutual funds are reported at fair value, and all investment transactions are reported on a trade-date
basis. Changes in fair value resulting from realized and unrealized gains and losses are reported as “net 
increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments.” Dividends and capital gain distributions are reported 
on the ex-dividend date. Contributions are recognized when received, provided enrollment in one of the
Plans has been successfully completed, and withdrawals are recognized when the withdrawal request has
been received and approved for payment. Account fees are accrued quarterly, and State Administrative 
Fees are accrued daily.

Financial Analysis 

Fiduciary Net Position 
The following are condensed Statements of Fiduciary Net Position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023: 

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Total assets 93,494,432$   70,565,601$     

Total liabilities 236,227    123,212  

Fiduciary net position held in trust 93,258,205$   70,442,389$     

Fiduciary net position represents cumulative contributions since the Program’s inception, increased 
(decreased) by net investment income (losses), and decreased by withdrawals, account fees and State
Administrative Fees.  

Investments comprise over 99% of the Program’s total assets. Other assets include receivables from
securities sold and contributions that have been received by Vestwell from account owners or their
authorized legal representatives, but not yet been invested in the underlying mutual funds or the FDIC-
insured bank account. Liabilities consist of payables for securities purchased, payables for withdrawals,
accrued account fees and accrued State Administrative Fees.

Board Book Page 42



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

Oregon ABLE Program 
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

June 30, 2024 

10 

Financial Analysis (Continued) 

Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
The following are condensed Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position for the years ended June 30, 
2024 and 2023: 

Year Ended

June 30, 2024

Year Ended

June 30, 2023

Contributions 28,465,055$      23,120,835$      

Net investment income 6,174,355 3,343,376   

Withdrawals (11,343,287)  (9,127,512)  

State Administrative Fees (242,290)   (179,756)  

Account fees (238,017) (198,178)  

Increase in fiduciary net position 22,815,816 16,958,765    

Fiduciary net position held in trust - beginning of year 70,442,389 53,483,624    

Fiduciary net position held in trust - end of year 93,258,205$      70,442,389$      

Recent Developments  

Mutual Fund Changes 
Effective July 6, 2023, the DFA Global Real Estate Securities Portfolio was liquidated out of the Investment 
Options, and the proceeds from liquidation were invested in the Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities 
Institutional Shares Fund.

Board Book Page 43



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

11 

Basic Financial Statements 

Board Book Page 44



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

Oregon ABLE Program 
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
June 30, 2024 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

12 

ASSETS

Investments 93,323,438$     

Receivable from Vestwell 91,023

Receivables from securities sold 79,971

Total Assets 93,494,432  

LIABILITIES

Payables for securities purchased 66,704   

Withdrawals payable 36,876

Accrued State Administrative Fees 67,414

Accrued account fees 65,233

Total Liabilities 236,227   

FIDUCIARY NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST 93,258,205$     

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
Year Ended June 30, 2024

ADDITIONS

Contributions 28,465,055$      

Investment income:

Dividends, capital gain distributions and interest 3,576,789

Net increase in the fair value of investments 2,597,566

Total net investment income 6,174,355  

Total Additions 34,639,410  

DEDUCTIONS

Withdrawals 11,343,287

State Administrative Fees 242,290   

Account fees 238,017   

Total Deductions 11,823,594  

NET INCREASE 22,815,816  

FIDUCIARY NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST, BEGINNING OF YEAR 70,442,389

FIDUCIARY NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST, END OF YEAR 93,258,205$      

Board Book Page 45



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

13 

(This page intentionally left blank)

Board Book Page 46



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

Oregon ABLE Program 
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

14 

NOTE 1:  ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

The Stephen Beck, Jr., Achieving a Better Life Experience Act of 2014 (the ABLE Act), added Section 
529A to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (Section 529A), which allows eligible 
individuals with blindness or qualifying disabilities a means to save for disability-related expenses in a
tax-advantaged way, without jeopardizing their benefits from assistance programs like Social Security
or Medicaid. Section 529A allows the creation of a “qualified ABLE program” by a state under which a
separate ABLE account may be established for a disabled individual who is both the designated
beneficiary and owner of that account.

The Oregon 529 Savings Network (the Network) was created by Oregon Revised Statutes sections 
178.300 to 178.380. The Network consists of a qualified tuition savings program, designed to help 
people save for the costs of education, and a qualified ABLE program, designed to allow individuals 
with disabilities to establish accounts to accumulate resources to pay for disability-related expenses.
The Oregon ABLE Savings Plan, only available to residents of Oregon, and the ABLE for ALL Savings 
Plan, available to residents of all other states, are the qualified ABLE plans offered under the Network
(collectively, “the Plans”). Collectively, the Plans comprise the Oregon ABLE Program (the Program).  

The Oregon 529 Savings Board (the Board) is responsible for administration and oversight of the
Network and the programs offered thereunder. The Oregon 529 Savings Network Trust (the Trust) 
was created to hold assets of the Program offered under the Network, ensuring that such assets can
only be used for the benefit of account owners and cannot be used by the state of Oregon (the State) 
to finance its operations. The Board is the sole trustee of the Trust.

Vestwell State Savings, LLC (Vestwell) serves as Program Manager and is responsible for providing
administrative and recordkeeping services for the Program under the direction of the Board. Vestwell
and the Board have entered into a contract (the Management Agreement) that specifies the services
that Vestwell and its subcontractors, including The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (BNY 
Mellon) and its affiliates, are to provide to the Program. BNY Mellon is custodian for the Program. 
Sellwood Consulting, LLC (Sellwood) provides investment advisory services for the Program, including
recommending the investment strategies to be offered to account owners and monitoring the
performance of investments, subject to an investment policy approved by the Board. 

The Program offers two primary strategies – one designed for investment (the Investment Option) 
and another designed for savings (the Cash Option). The Investment Option offers three (3) portfolio 
options, each of which is invested in one or more underlying mutual funds according to an asset 
allocation strategy recommended by Sellwood and approved by the Board. The Cash Option invests 
solely in a FDIC-insured bank account with BNY Mellon. Balances in the Cash Option are insured by the 
FDIC on a pass-through basis to each account owner, up to the maximum amount allowable under 
federal law. Collectively, the mutual funds and the FDIC-insured bank account are hereinafter referred 
to as “the Underlying Funds.” 

Board Book Page 47



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

Oregon ABLE Program 
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

15 

NOTE 1:  ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS (Continued) 

These Basic Financial Statements present only the balances and transactions attributable to the
Program, and do not include any balances or transactions attributable to the qualified tuition savings 
program. These Basic Financial Statements are not intended to, and do not, present fairly the financial
position or changes in financial position of the Network, the Trust in which Program assets are held,
the State or any other funds of the State.

For more details about each of the Plans offered under the Program, readers should refer to the
disclosure booklets and any related supplements available on the Oregon ABLE Savings Plan’s website 
(www.oregonablesavings.com) and the ABLE for ALL Savings Plan’s website (www.ableforall.com). 

NOTE 2:  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a)  Basis of Accounting
In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. 
GAAP) applicable to fiduciary fund types prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB), the Basic Financial Statements are prepared using the flow of economic resources
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. U.S. GAAP requires the use of estimates made by
management and the evaluation of subsequent events. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

(b)  Investment Valuation 
Accounting standards categorize fair value measurements according to a hierarchy that is based on
valuation inputs used to measure fair value. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices for identical assets in
active markets that can be accessed at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable for an asset, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are
unobservable and may include subjective assumptions in determining the fair value of investments. 

The availability of observable inputs can vary from security to security and is affected by a wide variety
of factors including, for example, the type of security, whether the security is new and not yet 
established in the marketplace, the liquidity of markets and other characteristics particular to the
security. To the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or 
unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value requires more judgment. Accordingly, the 
degree of judgment exercised in determining fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level
3. The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk
associated with investing in those securities.

Mutual funds are reported at fair value, based on the net asset value per share at the close of the New 
York Stock Exchange (NYSE) and are thus categorized in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair 
value standards are not applicable to the FDIC-insured bank account held at BNY Mellon since it is not 
reported at fair value. 

Board Book Page 48



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

Oregon ABLE Program 
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

16 

NOTE 2:  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

(c)  Investment Transactions
Investment transactions are accounted for as of the trade date for financial reporting purposes. 
Interest income is recorded as earned. Dividend income and capital gain distributions from mutual
funds are recorded on the ex-dividend date. Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) are included in 
“net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments.” 

Interest on the FDIC-insured bank account is accrued daily and credited by BNY Mellon on the last
business day of each month. The interest rate is a rate equal of the upper end of the federal funds 
target range established by the Federal Reserve’s Federal Open Market Committee, less a 15 basis
point fee paid to BNY Mellon and a 30 basis point State Administrative Fee paid to the Board (see Note 
4). The State Administrative Fee is subject to reduction if its application would cause a negative return
on the Cash Option. 

(d) Contributions
Individuals meeting eligibility requirements or their authorized legal representatives that have
properly executed a participation agreement with one of the Plans may establish an account to which
cash contributions may be made, subject to certain minimum contribution requirements and
limitations the aggregate account balance and on the annual amount of contributions that may be
made. Contributions received by Vestwell prior to the close of the NYSE are recorded as increases in 
fiduciary net position on the date they are received, provided that all related documentation is found 
to be in good order. 

In exchange for contributions to the Program, account owners receive full and/or fractional interests,
or units, issued by the Trust. These units are municipal fund securities. Although contributions are
invested in portfolio options that hold mutual funds or the FDIC-insured bank account, the units
themselves are not direct investments in the mutual funds or the FDIC-insured bank account. Except 
to the extent of FDIC insurance applicable to contributions invested in the Cash Option, these units are
not insured by the FDIC, the State or the Board, nor have they been registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission or any commission of the State. 

In addition, although account owners and their authorized legal representatives can select the
portfolio options in which their contributions are invested, they cannot direct the selection or
allocation of the Underlying Funds composing each portfolio option. 

(e) Withdrawals
An account owner or the account owner’s authorized legal representative may request withdrawals
for qualified or non-qualified disability expenses. It is the responsibility of the account owner or the
account owner’s authorized legal representative to determine whether or not the withdrawal is for
qualified disability expenses and to calculate the applicable amount of federal or state tax or penalties
for non-qualified withdrawals, if any. Withdrawals are recorded as deductions from fiduciary net
position on the date the withdrawal request is found to be in good order.

Board Book Page 49



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

Oregon ABLE Program 
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

17 

NOTE 2:  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

(f) Exchanges and Transfers 
Subject to certain limitations and restrictions, the account owner or the account owner’s legal 
representative may generally direct that their account balance be reinvested in one or more different
portfolio options twice per calendar year. Transfers of funds between portfolio options are referred to
as “exchanges.” Under certain conditions, account assets may be transferred from one account owner
to another. These transactions are referred to as “transfers.” The amounts of contributions and 
withdrawals reported on the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position do not include exchanges
or transfers, as these transactions have no impact on the overall financial position of the Program.

(g)  Unit Value 
Unit values for each portfolio option are determined at the close of business of the NYSE. The unit
value of each portfolio option is calculated by dividing the portfolio option’s assets minus its liabilities
by the number of outstanding units of such portfolio option. There are no distributions of interest,
dividends, capital gain distributions or net investment income or losses directly to account owners or 
beneficiaries. Interest, dividends, capital gain distributions and net investment income (losses) 
resulting from the Underlying Funds are reflected as increases (decreases) in the unit value.

(h)  Income Taxes
Each of the Plans offered under the Program are designed to operate as a qualified ABLE program
under Section 529A and is exempt from federal and state income tax. Management of the Program is
not aware of any activities that would subject the Program or either of the Plans to unrelated business
income tax. 

(i)  Guarantees and Indemnifications
Neither the Board, the State, Vestwell nor any other person or entity indemnifies any account owner
or designated beneficiary against losses or other claims arising from official or unofficial acts, negligent 
or otherwise, of members of the Board or employees of the State or Vestwell in the their performance 
of duties relevant to the operations of the Program and the Plans offered thereunder. Additionally, in
the normal course of business, the Board, the State and Vestwell enter into contracts related to the
operation and administration of the Program that contain a variety of indemnification clauses. The 
maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown as this would involve future claims that
may be made against the Board, the State and Vestwell that have not yet occurred. However, neither
the Board, the State nor Vestwell have had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts, and
management of the Program expects the risk of loss to be remote.

Board Book Page 50



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

Oregon ABLE Program 
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

18 

NOTE 3:  INVESTMENTS 

(a) Investments by Type
At June 30, 2024, the Program’s Underlying Funds are as follows:

Mutual Funds, at fair value

Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Institutional Shares Fund 2,145,290$

Vanguard Short-Term Bond Index Fund 1,449,934

Vanguard Short-Term Inflation-Protected Securities Index Fund 579,974

Vanguard Total Bond Market Index Fund 9,362,919

Vanguard Total International Bond Index Fund 2,145,289

Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund 8,201,943

Vanguard Total Stock Market Index Fund 12,302,913

Total Mutual Funds 36,188,262

FDIC-Insured Bank Account 57,135,176

Total Investments 93,323,438$       

(b)  Investment Risk
The mutual funds in which the Program invests include various types of investment securities in their
asset holdings, such as corporate debt and equity securities, obligations of the U.S. government and
government agencies and international securities. These securities are exposed to interest rate, 
market and credit risk, and it is at least reasonably possible that changes in their fair values could
occur in the near term, materially affecting account owner balances and the amounts reported in the
Program’s Basic Financial Statements. 

U.S. GAAP requires that certain disclosures be made related to the Program’s investment policy and 
exposure to credit risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk, which are included in the
paragraphs that follow. 

Investment Policy 
The Board has adopted an investment policy statement that sets forth investment objectives, 
permitted investments, asset allocation strategies and performance monitoring guidelines applicable 
to the Program. The investment policy statement does not specifically address credit, interest rate, 
foreign currency or custodial credit risk. The portfolio options are managed based on specific 
investment objectives and strategies, which are described in each Plan’s disclosure booklet and 
related supplements. 

Board Book Page 51



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

Oregon ABLE Program 
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

19 

NOTE 3:  INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

(b) Investment Risk (Continued)
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Program will not be
able to recover the value of an investment that is in the possession of an outside party. Mutual funds
are not subject to custodial credit risk because ownership is not evidenced by a transferable financial
instrument.

Contributions to and earnings on the FDIC-insured bank account are insured by the FDIC on a pass-
through basis to each account owner, subject to applicable insurable limits. The FDIC-insured bank
account is subject to custodial credit risk to the extent that balances in excess of federally insured 
limits are not collateralized or subject to supplemental insurance; however due to the pass-through
nature of FDIC-coverage applicable to this bank account, the amount of any uninsured or
uncollateralized balance is not readily determinable. 

Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Mutual funds that invest primarily in bonds and other fixed income securities indirectly
expose the Program to credit risk. The mutual funds in which the Program invests are not rated as to
credit quality by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 

Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk represents the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Mutual funds that invest in fixed income securities indirectly expose the Program to
interest rate risk. Weighted average maturity, which is a measure of interest rate risk, is the average 
length of time until fixed-income securities held by a fund reach maturity and will be repaid. In
general, the longer the weighted average maturity, the more a mutual fund’s share price will fluctuate
in response to changes in interest rates. The calculation of weighted average maturity takes into
consideration the possibility that the issuer may call the security before is maturity date and the
proportion of total fund assets represented by each security. As of June 30, 2024, the fair values and
the weighted average maturities for the bond funds in which the Program invests are as follows: 

Weighted

Average

Fair Value Maturity

Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Institutional

 Shares Fund 2,145,290$         7.1 years

Vanguard Short-Term Bond Index Fund 1,449,934$         2.9 years

Vanguard Short-Term Inflation-Protected Securities

Index Fund 579,974$            2.5 years

Vanguard Total Bond Market Index Fund 9,362,919$         8.5 years

Vanguard Total International Bond Index Fund 2,145,289$         8.9 years

Board Book Page 52



Prel
im

ina
ry 

Draf
t 

Nov
em

be
r 12

, 2
02

4

Oregon ABLE Program 
(A Program of the Oregon 529 Savings Network) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

20 

NOTE 3:  INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

(b)  Investment Risk (Continued)
Foreign Currency Risk  
Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. The Program does not have any direct investment in foreign currency or foreign 
securities; however, certain portfolio options invest in mutual funds that are exposed to foreign
currency risk.

NOTE 4:  STATE ADMINISTRATIVE FEES, ACCOUNT FEES AND OTHER EXPENSES

(a)  State Administrative Fees
Each portfolio option pays a State Administrative Fee to the Board to support the Board’s
administrative costs and other expenses of operating and marketing the Program, a portion of which is 
paid by the Board to Vestwell. The annualized State Administrative Fee is 30 basis points (0.30%) for 
each of the portfolio options during the year ended June 30, 2024. These fees are calculated based on 
the average daily net position in each portfolio option, accrued daily, paid quarterly and reduce the
unit value of the portfolio option.  

(b)  Account Fees
Fees paid directly by account owners include the Annual Account Maintenance Fee and certain other
transaction fees. These fees are direct expenses of the account owner. The Annual Account
Maintenance Fee is $35 per account and is paid to the Board, a portion of which may be paid by the 
Board to Vestwell. Other fees may be imposed on the account owner, such as fees for rollovers, ACH 
fails, returned checks, paper statement delivery fees, paper check disbursements, overnight delivery,
outgoing wires and re-issue of disbursement checks. These transaction fees are paid to Vestwell. 

(c)  Mutual Fund Expenses
Expenses related to management of the mutual funds in which the Program invests reduce the amount
of income available for distribution to the Program in the form of dividends and capital gain
distributions. These mutual fund expenses are not direct expenses paid from the Program’s assets and
are not reflected in expenses in the Program’s Basic Financial Statements. 

(d) Other Administrative Expenses
The Board incurs certain costs in providing administrative, marketing and oversight services to the
Program. These costs are not paid directly from the Program’s assets and are not reported as expenses
in the Program’s Basic Financial Statements.

Board Book Page 53



Program Data Report 

OREGON TREASURY SAVINGS NETWORK
S EP T EM B ER  3 0 ,  2 0 2 4

Board Book Page 54



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Quarterly Summary Statistics
As of September 30, 2024 

Oregon College 
Savings Plan

QTD 
Change

MFS 529 
Savings Plan

QTD 
Change

OR ABLE and 
ABLE for ALL

QTD 
Change Network Total

QTD 
Change

Newly Opened Accounts 2,028 -115 1,187 -123 376 +09 3,591 -229

Newly Opened Beneficiaries 1,973 -55 1,192 -122 376 +09 3,541 -168

Total Funded Accounts 141,878 +628 83,073 -929 7,988 +290 232,939 -11

Total Funded Beneficiaries 135,326 +658 83,073 -929 7,986 +291 226,385 +20

Total Funded Accounts In-State 129,599 +528 40,301 -497 6,865 +262 176,765 +293

Total Funded Accounts Out-of-State 12,279 +100 42,772 -432 1,123 +28 56,174 -304

Total Funded Beneficiaries In-State 121,210 +596 40,301 -497 6,863 +263 168,374 +362

Total Funded Beneficiaries Out-of-State 14,116 +62 42,772 -432 1,123 +28 58,011 -342

Quarterly Contributions $58,950,622 $29,041,134 $6,858,385 $94,850,141

Quarterly Distributions -$87,272,832 -$53,596,191 -$3,338,399 -$144,207,422

In-State Assets $3,005,376,108 +4.3% $819,293,286 +3.3% $85,686,911 +6.8% $3,910,356,304 +4.1%

Out-of-State Assets $351,543,209 +4.1% $1,135,823,106 +2.5% $14,043,916 +7.1% $1,501,410,231 +2.9%

Total Assets $3,356,919,316 +4.3% $1,955,116,392 +2.8% $99,730,827 +6.9% $5,411,766,535 +3.8%

Source: Program Managers

Board Book Page 55



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Quarterly Summary Statistics - Oregon College Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Total Assets Total Accounts
Average 
Balance

Net New 
Accounts

Quarterly 
Contributions

Quarterly 
Redemptions Quarterly Flows

$3,356,919,316 141,878 $23,661 628 $58,950,622 -$87,272,832 -$28,322,210

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence. Beginning in Q3 2019, Strategic Insight market value data is available quarterly, account information is available annually.

*42% of the annualized asset growth rate has come from cumulative net cash flows; 58% has come from investment gains.

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

D
ec

-1
0

O
ct

-1
1

Au
g-

12

Ju
n-

13

Ap
r-1

4

Fe
b-

15

D
ec

-1
5

O
ct

-1
6

Au
g-

17

Ju
n-

18

Ap
r-1

9

Fe
b-

20

D
ec

-2
0

O
ct

-2
1

Au
g-

22

Ju
n-

23

Ap
r-2

4

M
illi

on
s

Plan Market Value History

Total Plan Market Value

Cumulative Net Cash Flow

National Direct-Sold Plan Growth (Scaled to Dec 2010)

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

YT
D

 2
02

4

20
23

20
22

20
21

20
20

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

20
13

20
12

20
11

20
10

Plan Account History

New Accounts

Previous Accounts

National Direct-Sold Account Growth (Scaled to Dec 2010)

13.1% Annualized Asset Growth* 7.1% Annualized Account Growth

Dec 2010 to Sep 2024 Dec 2010 to Sep 2024

2,028
0

2,000

4,000

6,000

Se
p-

24

Ju
n-

24

M
ar

-2
4

D
ec

-2
3

Se
p-

23

Ju
n-

23

M
ar

-2
3

D
ec

-2
2

Se
p-

22

Ju
n-

22

M
ar

-2
2

D
ec

-2
1

Se
p-

21

Ju
n-

21

M
ar

-2
1

D
ec

-2
0

Se
p-

20

Ju
n-

20

M
ar

-2
0

D
ec

-1
9

Se
p-

19

Ju
n-

19

M
ar

-1
9

D
ec

-1
8

Newly Opened Accounts

Board Book Page 56



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Quarterly Summary Statistics - MFS 529 Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Total Assets Total Accounts
Average 
Balance

Net New 
Accounts

Quarterly 
Contributions

Quarterly 
Redemptions Quarterly Flows

$1,955,116,392 83,073 $23,535 -929 $29,041,134 -$53,596,191 -$24,555,057

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence. Beginning in Q3 2019, Strategic Insight market value data is available quarterly, account information is available annually.

*26% of the annualized asset growth rate has come from cumulative net cash flows; 74% has come from investment gains.

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

D
ec

-1
0

N
ov

-1
1

O
ct

-1
2

Se
p-

13

Au
g-

14

Ju
l-1

5

Ju
n-

16

M
ay

-1
7

Ap
r-1

8

M
ar

-1
9

Fe
b-

20

Ja
n-

21

D
ec

-2
1

N
ov

-2
2

O
ct

-2
3

Se
p-

24

M
illi

on
sPlan Market Value History

Total Plan Market Value
Cumulative Net Cash Flow
National Advisor-Sold Plan Growth (Scaled to Dec 2010)

0
20,000
40,000
60,000
80,000
100,000
120,000
140,000

Plan Account History

New Accounts

Previous Accounts

National Advisor-Sold Account Growth (Scaled to Dec 2010)

8.1% Annualized Asset Growth* 2.4% Annualized Account Growth
Dec 2010 to Sep 2024 Dec 2010 to Sep 2024

1,187

0

500

1,000

1,500

Sep-24Jun-24Mar-24Dec-23Sep-23Jun-23Mar-23Dec-22

Newly Opened Accounts

Board Book Page 57



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Quarterly Summary Statistics - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan and ABLE for ALL Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Total Assets
Total Funded 

Accounts
Average 
Balance

Net New Funded 
Accounts

Unfunded 
Accounts

Quarterly 
Contributions

Quarterly 
Redemptions

Quarterly 
Flows

$99,730,827 7,988 $12,485 290 2,018 $6,858,385 -$3,338,399 $3,519,986

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners. Net Cash Flow Data is available starting in the fourth quarter of 2017. Total accounts represent accounts with a balance.

*86% of the annualized asset growth rate has come from cumulative net cash flows; 14% has come from investment gains.

$0.0

$20.0

$40.0

$60.0

$80.0

$100.0

$120.0

D
ec

-1
6

Ju
n-

17

D
ec

-1
7

Ju
n-

18

D
ec

-1
8

Ju
n-

19

D
ec

-1
9

Ju
n-

20

D
ec

-2
0

Ju
n-

21

D
ec

-2
1

Ju
n-

22

D
ec

-2
2

Ju
n-

23

D
ec

-2
3

Ju
n-

24

M
illi

on
s

Plan Market Value History

Cumulative Net Cash Flow Total Plan Market Value

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Sep-24Dec-23Dec-22Dec-21Dec-20Dec-19Dec-18Dec-17

Plan Account History

Previous Accounts Zero Balance Accounts New Accounts

59.4% Annualized Asset Growth* 33.4% Annualized Account Growth

Dec 2017 to Sep 2024 Dec 2017 to Sep 2024

376

0

200

400

600

Se
p-

24
Ju

n-
24

M
ar

-2
4

D
ec

-2
3

Se
p-

23
Ju

n-
23

M
ar

-2
3

D
ec

-2
2

Se
p-

22
Ju

n-
22

M
ar

-2
2

D
ec

-2
1

Se
p-

21
Ju

n-
21

M
ar

-2
1

D
ec

-2
0

Se
p-

20
Ju

n-
20

M
ar

-2
0

D
ec

-1
9

Se
p-

19
Ju

n-
19

M
ar

-1
9

D
ec

-1
8

Se
p-

18
Ju

n-
18

M
ar

-1
8

D
ec

-1
7

Newly Opened Accounts

Board Book Page 58



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Total Plan Asset Growth versus Peers
As of September 30, 2024 

Periods longer than 1 year are annualized.

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence.

12.3%

5.1%

9.6%

13.1%13.4%

5.4%

9.9%

11.9%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

Since Jan 01, 2024 Since Jan 01, 2022 Since Jan 01, 2020 Since Jan 01, 2011

Net Asset Growth (%) versus National Direct-Sold Plans

Oregon College Savings Plan National Direct-Sold Plan Asset Growth

6.0%

-2.3%

3.2%

8.1%

10.6%

1.1%

5.5%

7.2%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

Since Jan 01, 2024 Since Jan 01, 2022 Since Jan 01, 2020 Since Jan 01, 2011

Net Asset Growth (%) versus National Advisor-Sold Plans

MFS 529 Savings Plan National Advisor-Sold Plan Asset Growth

Board Book Page 59



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Net Account Growth versus Peers
As of September 30, 2024 

Periods longer than 1 year are annualized.

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence, U.S. Census Bureau.

2.2%
2.7%

4.0%

7.1%

3.6%
4.2%

5.6%
6.2%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

8.0%

Since Jan 01, 2024 Since Jan 01, 2022 Since Jan 01, 2020 Since Jan 01, 2011

Net Account Growth (%) versus National Direct-Sold Plans

Oregon College Savings Plan National Direct-Sold Plan Growth

-2.2%
-1.6%

-0.2%

2.4%

-0.2%

0.5% 0.7%
1.2%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

Since Jan 01, 2024 Since Jan 01, 2022 Since Jan 01, 2020 Since Jan 01, 2011

Net Account Growth (%) versus National Advisor-Sold Plans

MFS 529 Savings Plan National Advisor-Sold Account Growth

Board Book Page 60



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Coverage Rate versus Peers
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence, U.S. Census Bureau.

3.0% 3.2% 3.3% 3.7% 3.9% 4.1% 4.2% 4.4% 4.6% 4.8% 5.0% 5.1% 5.2% 5.2% 5.2%

3.0% 3.1% 3.2% 3.3% 3.4% 3.5% 3.6% 3.8% 3.9% 4.1% 4.3% 4.4% 4.5% 4.6% 4.7%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

Dec-10 Dec-11 Dec-12 Dec-13 Dec-14 Dec-15 Dec-16 Dec-17 Dec-18 Dec-19 Dec-20 Dec-21 Dec-22 Dec-23 Sep-24

Account Coverage Rate - Combined OCSP & MFS
(Total Number of Accounts / Total Population)

OCSP & MFS Combined Combined National Average

1.4% 1.5% 1.6% 1.9% 2.0% 2.2% 2.3% 2.4% 2.6% 2.8% 2.9% 3.1% 3.2% 3.2% 3.3%

1.4% 1.5% 1.6% 1.7% 1.8% 1.9% 2.0% 2.1% 2.3% 2.4% 2.6% 2.8% 2.9% 2.9% 3.1%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

Dec-10 Dec-11 Dec-12 Dec-13 Dec-14 Dec-15 Dec-16 Dec-17 Dec-18 Dec-19 Dec-20 Dec-21 Dec-22 Dec-23 Sep-24

Account Coverage Rate - Oregon College Savings Plan
(Total Number of Accounts / Total Population)

Oregon College Savings Plan National Direct-Sold Average

1.6% 1.6% 1.7% 1.8% 1.9% 1.9% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 1.9%
1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 1.7% 1.7% 1.7% 1.7% 1.7% 1.7% 1.7% 1.7%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

Dec-10 Dec-11 Dec-12 Dec-13 Dec-14 Dec-15 Dec-16 Dec-17 Dec-18 Dec-19 Dec-20 Dec-21 Dec-22 Dec-23 Sep-24

Account Coverage Rate - MFS 529 Savings Plan
(Total Number of Accounts / Total Population)

MFS 529 Savings Plan National Advisor-Sold Average

Board Book Page 61



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Coverage Rate versus Peers
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, National Association of State Treasurers (NAST), U.S. Census Bureau.

0.02%

0.04%

0.06%

0.07%

0.10%

0.12%

0.14%

0.16%

0.01%
0.01%

0.02%
0.03%

0.03%
0.04%

0.05% 0.05%

0.00%

0.02%

0.04%

0.06%

0.08%

0.10%

0.12%

0.14%

0.16%

0.18%

Dec-17 Dec-18 Dec-19 Dec-20 Dec-21 Dec-22 Dec-23 Sep-24

Account Coverage Rate - Oregon College Savings Plan
(Total Number of Accounts / Total Population)

Oregon ABLE Accounts National ABLE Average

Board Book Page 62



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Gross Account Growth versus Peers
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence.

2,028 
2,143 

2,599 2,602 

1,963 1,891 

2,300 
2,135 

1,784 1,872 

2,544 

3,056 

2,348 
2,613 

3,423 
3,559 

2,735 2,686 

3,629 

4,508 

2,879 2,962 

2,410 

3,112 

Upper Quartile

Median

Lower Quartile

 -

 1,000

 2,000

 3,000

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000

 7,000

 8,000

Sep-24Jun-24Mar-24Dec-23Sep-23Jun-23Mar-23Dec-22Sep-22Jun-22Mar-22Dec-21Sep-21Jun-21Mar-21Dec-20Sep-20Jun-20Mar-20Dec-19Sep-19Jun-19Mar-19Dec-18

Gross Account Growth versus National Direct-Sold Plans

Oregon College Savings Plan
Upper Quartile
Median
Lower Quartile

Board Book Page 63



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Gross Account Growth versus Peers
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence.

1,187 

1,310 
1,382 

1,331 
1,415 

1,223 

1,342 

1,216 

3,114 

2,782 
2,840 

3,197 

2,664 

2,089 

2,344 
2,411 

899 943 

1,081 1,106 

871 868 
981 1,007 

503 466 509 498 
422 

497 500 481 

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

Sep-24Jun-24Mar-24Dec-23Sep-23Jun-23Mar-23Dec-22

Gross Account Growth versus National Direct-Sold Plans

MFS 529 Savings Plan

Upper Quartile

Median

Lower Quartile

Board Book Page 64



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Quarterly Cash Flows
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners. Contributions & distributions are available starting in the fourth quarter of 2013 for MFS.

$59$56

$29$29

$7$6
$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

Sep-24Mar-24Sep-23Mar-23Sep-22Mar-22Sep-21

M
illi

on
s

Quarterly Contributions

-$87-$80

-$54-$51

-$3-$3

-$100

-$80

-$60

-$40

-$20

$0
Sep-24Mar-24Sep-23Mar-23Sep-22Mar-22Sep-21

M
illi

on
s

Quarterly Distributions

-$28-$23 -$25-$23

$4$3

-$40
-$30
-$20
-$10
$0
$10
$20
$30
$40

Sep-24Mar-24Sep-23Mar-23Sep-22Mar-22Sep-21

M
illi

on
s

Quarterly Net Cash Flow
Oregon College Savings Plan MFS 529 Savings Plan OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL Plans

Board Book Page 65



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Calendar Year Cash Flows
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners. Contributions & distributions are available starting in the fourth quarter of 2013 for MFS.

$203

$96
$22

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

YTD
2024

20232022202120202019201820172016201520142013201220112010

M
illi

on
s

Yearly Contributions

-$193
-$107

-$9

-$400

-$300

-$200

-$100

$0

YTD
202420232022202120202019201820172016201520142013201220112010

M
illi

on
s

Yearly Distributions

$10

-$11

$13

-$50

$0

$50

$100

$150

YTD
2024

20232022202120202019201820172016201520142013201220112010

M
illi

on
s

Yearly Net Cash FlowOregon College Savings Plan
MFS 529 Savings Plan
OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL Plans

Board Book Page 66



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Calendar Year Cash Flows
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners. Contributions & distributions are available starting in the fourth quarter of 2013 for MFS.

$2,940$2,737$2,475$2,214
$1,917$1,661$1,412$1,185$969$780$609$446$304$180$69

$1,439$1,343$1,220$1,094$907$770$632$497$395$276$0 $126$104$79$57$36$20
$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

YTD
2024

20232022202120202019201820172016201520142013201220112010

M
illi

on
s

Cumulative Contributions

-$1,771
-$1,578

-$1,347
-$1,148

-$962
-$814

-$662-$536-$432-$339-$258-$186-$124-$73-$31

-$1,235-$1,128-$992
-$844

-$656-$521-$396-$317-$242-$164

$0

-$43-$34-$23-$16-$9

$0

-$2,000

-$1,500

-$1,000

-$500

$0

YTD
202420232022202120202019201820172016201520142013201220112010

M
illi

on
s

Cumulative Distributions

$1,169$1,159$1,128$1,066
$954

$848
$750

$649
$537

$441
$351

$259$180$107$38

$353$364$377$400$400$398$386$328$302$261$212$163$114$71$29 $84$71$55$41$27$15$0
$0
$200
$400
$600
$800
$1,000
$1,200
$1,400

YTD
2024

20232022202120202019201820172016201520142013201220112010

M
illi

on
s

Cumulative Net Cash FlowOregon College Savings Plan
MFS 529 Savings Plan
OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL Plans

Board Book Page 67



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Average Account Balances - Higher Education Savings
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence. Beginning in Q3 2019, Strategic Insight market value data is available quarterly.

$23,535$23,661

$25,844

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

Sep-24Dec-23Dec-22Dec-21Dec-20Dec-19Dec-18Dec-17Dec-16Dec-15Dec-14Dec-13Dec-12Dec-11Dec-10

Average Account Balance

MFS 529 Savings Plan Oregon College Savings Plan National 529 Average

Board Book Page 68



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Average Account Balances - ABLE Savings
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, National Association of State Treasurers (NAST).

$12,485

$10,677

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

Sep-24Dec-23Dec-22Dec-21Dec-20Dec-19Dec-18Dec-17

Average Account Balance

OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL Plans National ABLE Average

Board Book Page 69



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Balance Ranges - Oregon College Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

19,727
+68

29,378
-559

35,038
-373

17,929
+114

37,668
+1,406

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

$0-$1,000 $1,000-$5,000 $5,000-$15,000 $15,000-$25,000 > $25,000

Beneficiary Count - Organized by Balance Size

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24

Beneficiary Count - Organized by Balance Size

> $25,000

$15,000-$25,000

$5,000-$15,000

$1,000-$5,000

$0-$1,000

Board Book Page 70



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Balance Ranges - MFS 529 Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

6,955
-288

19,575
-793

23,641
-430

11,249
+24

21,653
+558

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

$0-$1,000 $1,000-$5,000 $5,000-$15,000 $15,000-$25,000 > $25,000

Beneficiary Count - Organized by Balance Size

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24

Beneficiary Count - Organized by Balance Size

> $25,000

$15,000-$25,000

$5,000-$15,000

$1,000-$5,000

$0-$1,000

Board Book Page 71



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Balance Ranges - OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL Plans
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

1,296
+34

2,305
+79 2,181

+41

1,056
+49

1,149
+87

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

$0-$1,000 $1,000-$5,000 $5,000-$15,000 $15,000-$25,000 > $25,000

Beneficiary Count - Organized by Balance Size

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24

Beneficiary Count - Organized by Balance Size

> $25,000

$15,000-$25,000

$5,000-$15,000

$1,000-$5,000

$0-$1,000

Board Book Page 72



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Median Balance & Contribution
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

Sep-24Jun-24Mar-24Dec-23Sep-23Jun-23Mar-23Dec-22Sep-22Jun-22Mar-22Dec-21Sep-21Jun-21Mar-21Dec-20

Median Beneficiary Balance

MFS 529 Savings Plan OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL Plans Oregon College Savings Plan

$0
$20
$40
$60
$80
$100
$120
$140

Sep-24Jun-24Mar-24Dec-23Sep-23Jun-23Mar-23Dec-22Sep-22Jun-22Mar-22Dec-21Sep-21Jun-21Mar-21Dec-20

Median Quarterly Contribution 

MFS 529 Savings Plan OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL Plans Oregon College Savings Plan

Board Book Page 73



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Demographics
As of September 30, 2024 

MFS was not able to provide data. 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

6%
14%

46%
34%

48% 52%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Oregon College Savings Plan OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL Plans

% of Beneficiaries by Gender 

Undisclosed

Female

Male

7%

25%

45%

29%

49% 47%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Oregon College Savings Plan OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL Plans

% of Total Plan Assets by Beneficiary Gender 

Undisclosed

Female

Male

Board Book Page 74



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Demographics - Contributions
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

$4,000

$4,500

$5,000

Average Annual Contribution ($) per Beneficiary

Oregon College Savings Plan MFS 529 Savings Plan OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL Plans

Board Book Page 75



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Geographic Location
As of September 30, 2024 

Total Out-Of-State Beneficiaries for the OCSP is excluded prior to September 2018 due to a data discrepancy. 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

121,210119,623117,319116,053114,975113,624110,909108,374104,180101,88697,72495,150
87,33586,046

40,30140,96341,59642,48441,14441,69841,67641,85840,64442,41041,76941,68140,61940,282

6,8636,3075,8115,3394,9374,4083,9063,4162,9852,5892,2061,8081,355997
0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

Sep-24Mar-24Sep-23Mar-23Sep-22Mar-22Sep-21Mar-21Sep-20Mar-20Sep-19Mar-19Sep-18Mar-18

Total In-State Beneficiaries

14,11613,95813,69813,51213,31713,12312,78412,50712,14212,31511,90211,644

42,77243,25243,83144,28742,70843,72543,31842,84141,70641,45740,96441,05741,32341,081

1,1231,0851,013893795654538488515486481448358219
0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

Sep-24Mar-24Sep-23Mar-23Sep-22Mar-22Sep-21Mar-21Sep-20Mar-20Sep-19Mar-19Sep-18Mar-18

Total Out-of-State Beneficiaries

Oregon College Savings Plan MFS 529 Savings Plan OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL Plans

Board Book Page 76



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Annual New Beneficiary Count by County - Oregon College Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 17

Crook, 33

Deschutes, 495

Douglas, 62

Grant, 8

Harney, 4

Jefferson, 24

Klamath, 46
Lake, 2

Lane, 562

Linn, 161

Malheur, 22

UmaƟlla, 34

Union, 24

Wallowa, 19

Wasco, 22

1

1,991

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 01
Hood River, 62Multnoma

h, 1,991Washington, 
1,942

Tillamook, 24

Clatsop, 37 Columbia, 53

Yamhill, 178 Clackamas, 
1,071

Polk, 129
Marion, 438

Lincoln, 53

Coos, 33

Curry, 10 Josephine, 49 Jackson, 245

Gilliam, 03

Wheeler, 01

Benton, 198

Morrow, 09

Beneficiary Count

Avg County: 224

Median Co: 36

Low Co: 1

High Co: 1,991

Board Book Page 77



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Annual New Beneficiary Count by County - MFS 529 Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 8

Crook, 10

Deschutes, 150

Douglas, 82

Grant, 7

Harney, 0

Jefferson, 15

Klamath, 22
Lake, 0

Lane, 240

Linn, 119

Malheur, 17

UmaƟlla, 38

Union, 26

Wallowa, 4

Wasco, 7

0

387

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 14
Hood River, 21Multnoma

h, 249Washington, 387Tillamook, 16

Clatsop, 23 Columbia, 29

Yamhill, 67 Clackamas, 221

Polk, 59
Marion, 138

Lincoln, 21

Coos, 19

Curry, 13 Josephine, 35 Jackson, 125

Gilliam, 00

Wheeler, 00

Benton, 73

Morrow, 02

Beneficiary Count

Avg County: 63

Median Co: 22

Low Co: 0

High Co: 387

Board Book Page 78



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Annual New Beneficiary Count by County - OCSP & MFS Plan Combined
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 25

Crook, 43

Deschutes, 645

Douglas, 144

Grant, 15

Harney, 4

Jefferson, 39

Klamath, 68
Lake, 2

Lane, 802

Linn, 280

Malheur, 39

UmaƟlla, 72

Union, 50

Wallowa, 23

Wasco, 29

1

2,329

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 15
Hood River, 83Multnoma

h, 2,240Washington, 
2,329

Tillamook, 40

Clatsop, 60 Columbia, 82

Yamhill, 245 Clackamas, 
1,292

Polk, 188
Marion, 576

Lincoln, 74

Coos, 52

Curry, 23 Josephine, 84 Jackson, 370

Gilliam, 03

Wheeler, 01

Benton, 271

Morrow, 11

Beneficiary Count

Avg County: 287

Median Co: 64

Low Co: 1

High Co: 2,329

Board Book Page 79



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Annual New Beneficiary Count by County as a % of Population Under 25 - OCSP & MFS Plan Combined
 

Coverage rate based on Total Population under 25 per county based on July 1, 2023 annual population report tables from Portland State University's Population Research Center.

Source: Program Managers, Portland State University, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 0.4%

Crook, 0.5%

Deschutes, 1.0%

Douglas, 0.2%

Grant, 0.5%

Harney, 0.2%

Jefferson, 0.3%

Klamath, 0.2%
Lake, 0.1%

Lane, 0.5%

Linn, 0.4%

Malheur, 0.2%

UmaƟlla, 0.1%

Union, 0.3%

Wallowa, 1.0%

Wasco, 0.3%

0.1%

1.1%

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 
0.2%

Hood River, 
0.9%

Multnoma
h, 1.0%Washington, 1.1%Tillamook, 0.4%

Clatsop, 0.4% Columbia, 0.4%

Yamhill, 0.5% Clackamas, 
0.9%

Polk, 0.4%
Marion, 0.4%

Lincoln, 0.5%

Coos, 0.2%

Curry, 0.2% Josephine, 
0.2%

Jackson, 0.4%

Gilliam, 0.6%

Wheeler, 0.3%

Benton, 0.5%

Morrow, 0.2%

New Beneficiary
% of Pop Under 25

Avg County: 0.7%

Median Co: 0.4%

Low Co: 0.1%

High Co: 1.1%

Board Book Page 80



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Annual New Beneficiary Count by County - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan and ABLE for ALL Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 5

Crook, 4

Deschutes, 50

Douglas, 25

Grant, 1

Harney, 1

Jefferson, 2

Klamath, 21
Lake, 1

Lane, 133

Linn, 49

Malheur, 1

UmaƟlla, 9

Union, 5

Wallowa, 1

Wasco, 7

0

229

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 00
Hood River, 04Multnoma

h, 229Washington, 195Tillamook, 11

Clatsop, 06 Columbia, 17

Yamhill, 17 Clackamas, 152

Polk, 28
Marion, 154

Lincoln, 11

Coos, 31

Curry, 00 Josephine, 21 Jackson, 49

Gilliam, 00

Wheeler, 00

Benton, 33

Morrow, 00

Beneficiary Count

Avg County: 35

Median Co: 10

Low Co: 0

High Co: 229

Board Book Page 81



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Assets by County - Oregon College Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, $2,191,133

Crook, $4,310,209

Deschutes, $145,131,975

Douglas, $14,914,616

Grant, $856,009

Harney, $1,270,169

Jefferson, $3,237,820

Klamath, $10,548,572
Lake, $1,727,339

Lane, $185,988,796

Linn, $33,159,327

Malheur, $1,631,238

UmaƟlla, $9,702,344

Union, $5,209,875

Wasco, $6,508,214

$29,541

$981,491,799

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 
$347,892

Hood River, 
$20,750,763

Multnomah, 
$981,491,799Washington, 

$781,978,197
Tillamook, 
$5,644,904

Clatsop, 
$8,862,882

Columbia, 
$12,383,630

Yamhill, 
$40,199,023 Clackamas, 

$384,131,264
Polk, 
$32,889,356

Marion, 
$113,210,450

Lincoln, 
$8,771,550

Coos, 
$10,317,796

Curry, 
$2,439,059

Josephine, 
$15,038,367

Jackson, 
$72,845,588

Gilliam, 
$1,499,261

Wheeler, 
$29,541

Benton, 
$81,141,635

Morrow, 
$1,216,083

Wallowa, 
$2,478,643

Beneficiary Assets

Avg County: $83,445,981

Median Co: $9,282,613

Low Co: $29,541

High Co: $981,491,799

Board Book Page 82



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Count by County - Oregon College Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 161

Crook, 288

Deschutes, 6,328

Douglas, 995

Grant, 80

Harney, 113

Jefferson, 260

Klamath, 695
Lake, 88

Lane, 8,379

Linn, 2,273

Malheur, 204

UmaƟlla, 755

Union, 377

Wallowa, 139

Wasco, 363

2

31,460

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 36
Hood River, 
838

Multnoma
h, 31,460Washington, 

29,151
Tillamook, 371

Clatsop, 586 Columbia, 847

Yamhill, 2,483 Clackamas, 
16,236

Polk, 2,028
Marion, 6,584

Lincoln, 619

Coos, 581

Curry, 149 Josephine, 818 Jackson, 3,537

Gilliam, 34

Wheeler, 02

Benton, 3,151

Morrow, 104

Beneficiary Count

Avg County: 3,364

Median Co: 603

Low Co: 2

High Co: 31,460

Board Book Page 83



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Average Beneficiary Assets by County - Oregon College Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, $13,610

Crook, $14,966

Deschutes, $22,935

Douglas, $14,990

Grant, $10,700

Harney, $11,240

Jefferson, $12,453

Klamath, $15,178
Lake, $19,629

Lane, $22,197

Linn, $14,588

Malheur, $7,996

UmaƟlla, $12,851

Union, $13,819

Wasco, $17,929

$7,996

$44,096

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 
$9,664

Hood River, 
$24,762

Multnomah, 
$31,198Washington, 

$26,825
Tillamook, 
$15,215

Clatsop, 
$15,124

Columbia, 
$14,621

Yamhill, 
$16,190

Clackamas, 
$23,659

Polk, $16,218 Marion, 
$17,195

Lincoln, 
$14,171

Coos, $17,759

Curry, $16,370 Josephine,
$18,384

Jackson, 
$20,595

Gilliam, 
$44,096

Wheeler, 
$14,771

Benton, 
$25,751

Morrow, 
$11,693

Wallowa, 
$17,832

Average Beneficiary Assets

Statewide Avg: $24,804

Avg County: $17,699

Median Co: $15,703

Low Co: $7,996

High Co: $44,096

Board Book Page 84



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Count by County 1-Year Change - Oregon College Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 1.9%

Crook, 7.9%

Deschutes, 5.0%

Douglas, 1.6%

Grant, 1.3%

Harney, 0.9%

Jefferson, 9.2%

Klamath, 1.9%
Lake, 0.0%

Lane, 3.3%

Linn, 4.5%

Malheur, 4.6%

UmaƟlla, 2.3%

Union, 3.3%

Wallowa, 14.9%

Wasco, 3.1%

0.0%

100.0%

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 
9.1%Hood River, 

2.9%

Multnomah, 3.0%
Washington, 2.9%Tillamook, 2.8%

Clatsop, 5.0%

Columbia, 2.5%

Yamhill, 3.1%
Clackamas, 
3.3%

Polk, 3.5%
Marion, 3.7%

Lincoln, 8.6%

Coos, 4.5%

Curry, 6.4% Josephine, 
2.6%

Jackson, 4.5%

Gilliam, 17.2%

Wheeler, 
100.0%

Benton, 2.3%

Morrow, 4.0%

Beneficiary Growth

Statewide Avg: 3.3%

Avg County: 7.2%

Median Co: 3.3%

Low Co: 0.0%

High Co: 100.0%

Board Book Page 85



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Under Age 25 Coverage Rate by County - Oregon College Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Coverage rate based on Total Population under 25 per county based on July 1, 2023 annual population report tables from Portland State University's Population Research Center.

Source: Program Managers, Portland State University, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 3.6%

Crook, 3.9%

Deschutes, 11.4%

Douglas, 3.2%

Grant, 4.2%

Harney, 5.7%

Jefferson, 2.9%

Klamath, 3.1%
Lake, 3.7%

Lane, 6.8%

Linn, 5.5%

Malheur, 1.7%

UmaƟlla, 2.6%

Union, 4.1%

Wallowa, 7.1%

Wasco, 4.6%

0.7%

15.4%

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 
6.2%

Hood River, 
11.0%

Multnomah, 14.7%
Washington, 
15.4%

Tillamook, 5.2%

Clatsop, 5.4%

Columbia, 5.4%

Yamhill, 
6.9%

Clackamas, 
13.0%

Polk, 
6.4% Marion, 5.3%

Lincoln, 5.3%

Coos, 3.4%

Curry, 3.2% Josephine, 
3.4%

Jackson, 5.5%

Gilliam, 
6.6%

Wheeler, 0.7%

Benton, 
7.6%

Morrow, 2.1%

Beneficiary Under Aged 25 
Coverage Rate

Statewide Avg: 9.4%

Avg County: 5.7%

Median Co: 5.3%

Low Co: 0.7%

High Co: 15.4%

Board Book Page 86



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Coverage Rate by County - Oregon College Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Coverage rate based on Total Population under 25 per county based on July 1, 2023 annual population report tables from Portland State University's Population Research Center.

Source: Program Managers, Portland State University, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 3.9%

Crook, 4.3%

Deschutes, 12.2%

Douglas, 3.5%

Grant, 4.7%

Harney, 6.0%

Jefferson, 3.3%

Klamath, 3.4%
Lake, 4.1%

Lane, 7.4%

Linn, 6.1%

Malheur, 1.8%

UmaƟlla, 2.8%

Union, 4.5%

Wallowa, 7.5%

Wasco, 4.9%

0.7%

16.6%

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 
7.2%

Hood River, 
11.9%

Multnomah, 15.8%
Washington, 
16.6%

Tillamook, 5.7%

Clatsop, 5.8%

Columbia, 6.0%

Yamhill, 
7.5%

Clackamas, 
14.1%

Polk, 
7.0% Marion, 5.9%

Lincoln, 5.8%

Coos, 3.8%

Curry, 3.5% Josephine, 
3.8%

Jackson, 5.9%

Gilliam, 
6.8%

Wheeler, 0.7%

Benton, 
8.5%

Morrow, 2.3%

Beneficiary Coverage Rate

Statewide Avg: 10.2%

Avg County: 10.2%

Median Co: 5.8%

Low Co: 0.7%

High Co: 16.6%

Board Book Page 87



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Coverage Rate by County - 1-Year Change - Oregon College Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Coverage rate based on Total Population under 25 per county based on July 1, 2023 annual population report tables from Portland State University's Population Research Center.

Source: Program Managers, Portland State University, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 0.1%

Crook, 0.3%

Deschutes, 0.6%

Douglas, 0.1%

Grant, 0.1%

Harney, 0.1%

Jefferson, 0.3%

Klamath, 0.1%
Lake, 0.0%

Lane, 0.2%

Linn, 0.3%

Malheur, 0.1%

UmaƟlla, 0.1%

Union, 0.1%

Wallowa, 1.0%

Wasco, 0.1%

0.0%

1.0%

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 
0.6%

Hood River, 
0.3%

Multnomah, 0.5%
Washington, 0.5%Tillamook, 0.2%

Clatsop, 0.3%

Columbia, 0.1%

Yamhill, 
0.2%

Clackamas, 
0.4%

Polk, 
0.2% Marion, 0.2%

Lincoln, 0.5%

Coos, 0.2%

Curry, 0.2% Josephine, 
0.1%

Jackson, 0.3%

Gilliam, 
1.0%

Wheeler, 0.3%

Benton, 
0.2%

Morrow, 0.1%

Beneficiary Coverage Growth

Statewide Avg: 0.3%

Avg County: 0.3%

Median Co: 0.2%

Low Co: 0.0%

High Co: 1.0%

Board Book Page 88



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Coverage Rate by Zip Code - Oregon College Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Coverage rate is equal to the Total Beneficiaries divided by the Total Households per Zip Code.

Total Households per Zip Code is sourced from American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates provided by the U.S. Census Bureau.

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners. U.S. Census Bureau.

R² = 0.47

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

$0 $20,000 $40,000 $60,000 $80,000 $100,000 $120,000

C
ov

er
ag

e 
R

at
e

Median Income per Household

Median Income versus Coverage Rate
As of September 2024

R² = 0.06

-5.0%

-3.0%

-1.0%

1.0%

3.0%

5.0%

7.0%

9.0%

$0 $20,000 $40,000 $60,000 $80,000 $100,000 $120,000

C
ov

er
ag

e 
R

at
e 

G
ro

w
th

Median Income per Household

Coverage Rate Growth versus Median Income
Sept 2017 to September 2024

Board Book Page 89



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Count by State  - Oregon College Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© DSAT for MSFT, GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

AK, 0.1%

AZ, 0.4% AR, 0.0%

CA, 1.8% CO, 0.4%

ID, 0.0%

IA, 0.0%

KS, 0.0%
KY, 0.0%

LA, 0.0%

MN, 0.2%

MO, 0.0%

MT, 0.2%

NE, 0.2%
NV, 0.0%

NM, 0.1%

NY, 0.1%

NC, 0.2%

ND, 0.2%

OH, 0.2%

OK, 0.0%

OR, 89.6%

PA, 0.1%

SC, 0.1%

SD, 0.0%

TN, 0.1%

TX, 0.5%

UT, 0.2%

WA, 3.5%

WI, 0.0%

WY, 0.0%

0.0%

89.6%

States ex Oregon

MI, 0.1%

IN, 0.1%

FL, 0.2%

MS, 0.1%

AL, 0.0%

HI, 0.1%

WV, 0.1%

VA, 0.0%

IL, 0.4%

ME, 0.1%
VT, 0.2%

NH, 0.0%

GA, 0.1%

MA, 0.0%
RI, 0.0%

CT, 0.1%

NJ, 0.0%

DE, 0.0%
MD, 0.1%

Board Book Page 90



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Assets by State  - Oregon College Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© DSAT for MSFT, GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

AK, 0.1%

AZ, 0.4% AR, 0.0%

CA, 2.1% CO, 0.3%

ID, 0.0%

IA, 0.0%

KS, 0.0%
KY, 0.0%

LA, 0.0%

MN, 0.1%

MO, 0.0%

MT, 0.1%

NE, 0.1%
NV, 0.0%

NM, 0.1%

NY, 0.0%

NC, 0.1%

ND, 0.2%

OH, 0.1%

OK, 0.0%

OR, 89.6%

PA, 0.2%

SC, 0.0%

SD, 0.0%

TN, 0.1%

TX, 0.5%

UT, 0.1%

WA, 3.6%

WI, 0.0%

WY, 0.1%

0.0%

89.6%

States ex Oregon

MI, 0.1%

IN, 0.1%

FL, 0.2%

MS, 0.1%

AL, 0.0%

HI, 0.1%

WV, 0.1%

VA, 0.0%

IL, 0.2%

ME, 0.2%
VT, 0.2%

NH, 0.0%

GA, 0.1%

MA, 0.0%
RI, 0.0%

CT, 0.1%

NJ, 0.1%

DE, 0.0%
MD, 0.1%

Board Book Page 91



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Assets by County - MFS 529 Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, $1,600,447

Crook, $2,989,968

Deschutes, $62,826,316

Douglas, $15,055,146

Grant, $520,564

Harney, $305,265

Jefferson, $3,159,747

Klamath, $7,665,573
Lake, $570,073

Lane, $63,260,353

Linn, $23,445,697

Malheur, $2,716,849

UmaƟlla, $9,302,961

Union, $4,241,036

Wasco, $3,098,234

$72,356

$161,427,515

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 
$620,213

Hood River, 
$7,684,106

Multnomah, 
$155,716,256Washington, 

$161,427,515
Tillamook, 
$3,351,958

Clatsop, 
$5,457,445

Columbia, 
$5,541,607

Yamhill, 
$15,486,646

Clackamas, 
$120,875,752

Polk, 
$13,649,891

Marion, 
$42,617,719

Lincoln, 
$4,464,902

Coos, 
$6,499,477

Curry, 
$1,397,901

Josephine, 
$8,323,241

Jackson, 
$34,498,724

Gilliam, 
$132,214

Wheeler, 
$72,356

Benton, 
$25,773,213

Morrow, 
$821,081

Wallowa, 
$1,201,972

Beneficiary Assets

Avg County: $22,677,012

Median Co: $5,499,526

Low Co: $72,356

High Co: $161,427,515

Board Book Page 92



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Count by County - MFS 529 Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 145

Crook, 214

Deschutes, 2,856

Douglas, 1,161

Grant, 67

Harney, 48

Jefferson, 216

Klamath, 419
Lake, 41

Lane, 3,688

Linn, 1,656

Malheur, 152

UmaƟlla, 675

Union, 329

Wallowa, 71

Wasco, 166

12

6,812

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 50
Hood River, 
282

Multnomah, 5,580

Washington, 
6,812

Tillamook, 247

Clatsop, 346 Columbia, 442

Yamhill, 1,045
Clackamas, 
5,316

Polk, 852
Marion, 2,621

Lincoln, 321

Coos, 396

Curry, 112 Josephine, 657 Jackson, 1,862

Gilliam, 12

Wheeler, 12

Benton, 1,208

Morrow, 54

Beneficiary Count

Avg County: 1,115

Median Co: 338

Low Co: 12

High Co: 6,812

Board Book Page 93



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Average Beneficiary Assets by County - MFS 529 Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, $11,038

Crook, $13,972

Deschutes, $21,998

Douglas, $12,967

Grant, $7,770

Harney, $6,360

Jefferson, $14,628

Klamath, $18,295
Lake, $13,904

Lane, $17,153

Linn, $14,158

Malheur, $17,874

UmaƟlla, $13,782

Union, $12,891

Wasco, $18,664

$6,030

$27,906

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 
$12,404

Hood River, 
$27,249Multnomah, 

$27,906Washington, 
$23,698

Tillamook, 
$13,571

Clatsop, 
$15,773

Columbia, 
$12,538

Yamhill, 
$14,820

Clackamas, 
$22,738

Polk, $16,021 Marion,
$16,260

Lincoln, 
$13,909

Coos, $16,413

Curry, $12,481 Josephine,
$12,669

Jackson, 
$18,528

Gilliam, 
$11,018

Wheeler, 
$6,030

Benton, 
$21,335

Morrow, 
$15,205

Wallowa, 
$16,929

Average Beneficiary Assets

Statewide Avg: $20,343

Avg County: $15,637

Median Co: $14,724

Low Co: $6,030

High Co: $27,906

Board Book Page 94



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Count by County - 1-Year Change - MFS 529 Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, -10.5%

Crook, -4.5%

Deschutes, -2.8%

Douglas, -1.1%

Grant, 1.5%

Harney, -11.1%

Jefferson, -4.4%

Klamath, -2.6%
Lake, -2.4%

Lane, -2.9%

Linn, -2.2%

Malheur, -1.3%

UmaƟlla, 0.3%

Union, 2.2%

Wallowa, -1.4%

Wasco, -4.6%

-11.5%

13.6%

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 
13.6%Hood River, -

9.0%

Multnomah, -4.5%
Washington, -
4.4%

Tillamook, 4.2%

Clatsop, 2.4%

Columbia, 0.2%

Yamhill, -1.9%
Clackamas, -
3.5%

Polk, -2.1%
Marion, -4.0%

Lincoln, 4.9%

Coos, -2.9%

Curry, 8.7% Josephine, -
2.4%

Jackson, -3.9%

Gilliam, 0.0%

Wheeler, 0.0%

Benton, 0.0%

Morrow, -
11.5%

Beneficiary Growth

Statewide Avg: -1.8%

Avg County: -3.2%

Median Co: -2.3%

Low Co: -11.5%

High Co: 13.6%

Board Book Page 95



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Coverage Rate by County - MFS 529 Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Coverage rate based on Total Population under 25 per county based on July 1, 2023 annual population report tables from Portland State University's Population Research Center.

Source: Program Managers, Portland State University, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 3.5%

Crook, 3.2%

Deschutes, 5.5%

Douglas, 4.1%

Grant, 3.9%

Harney, 2.6%

Jefferson, 2.8%

Klamath, 2.0%
Lake, 1.9%

Lane, 3.2%

Linn, 4.4%

Malheur, 1.4%

UmaƟlla, 2.5%

Union, 4.0%

Wallowa, 3.8%

Wasco, 2.2%

1.2%

10.0%

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 
10.0%

Hood River, 
4.0%

Multnomah, 2.8%
Washington, 3.9%Tillamook, 3.8%

Clatsop, 3.4%

Columbia, 3.1%

Yamhill, 
3.2%

Clackamas, 
4.6%

Polk, 
2.9% Marion, 2.3%

Lincoln, 3.0%

Coos, 2.6%

Curry, 2.6% Josephine, 
3.0%

Jackson, 3.1%

Gilliam, 
2.4%

Wheeler, 4.2%

Benton, 
3.2%

Morrow, 1.2%

Beneficiary Coverage Rate

Statewide Avg: 3.4%

Avg County: 3.3%

Median Co: 3.1%

Low Co: 1.2%

High Co: 10.0%

Board Book Page 96



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Coverage Rate by County - 1-Year Change - MFS 529 Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Coverage rate based on Total Population under 25 per county based on July 1, 2023 annual population report tables from Portland State University's Population Research Center.

Source: Program Managers, Portland State University, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, -0.4%

Crook, -0.1%

Deschutes, -0.2%

Douglas, 0.0%

Grant, 0.1%

Harney, -0.3%

Jefferson, -0.1%

Klamath, -0.1%
Lake, 0.0%

Lane, -0.1%

Linn, -0.1%

Malheur, 0.0%

UmaƟlla, 0.0%

Union, 0.1%

Wallowa, -0.1%

Wasco, -0.1%

-0.4%

1.2%

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 
1.2%

Hood River, -
0.4%

Multnomah, -0.1%
Washington, -
0.2%

Tillamook, 0.2%

Clatsop, 0.1%

Columbia, 0.0%

Yamhill, -
0.1%

Clackamas, -
0.2%

Polk, -
0.1% Marion, -0.1%

Lincoln, 0.1%

Coos, -0.1%

Curry, 0.2% Josephine, -
0.1%

Jackson, -0.1%

Gilliam, 
0.0%

Wheeler, 0.0%

Benton, 
0.0%

Morrow, -0.2%

Coverage Rate Growth

Statewide Avg: -0.1%

Avg County: 0.0%

Median Co: -0.1%

Low Co: -0.4%

High Co: 1.2%

Board Book Page 97



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Coverage Rate by County - OCSP & MFS Plan Combined
As of September 30, 2024 

Coverage rate based on Total Population under 25 per county based on July 1, 2023 annual population report tables from Portland State University's Population Research Center.

Source: Program Managers, Portland State University, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 7.3%

Crook, 7.5%

Deschutes, 17.7%

Douglas, 7.7%

Grant, 8.6%

Harney, 8.6%

Jefferson, 6.1%

Klamath, 5.4%
Lake, 6.0%

Lane, 10.6%

Linn, 10.5%

Malheur, 3.2%

UmaƟlla, 5.3%

Union, 8.5%

Wallowa, 11.3%

Wasco, 7.2%

3.2%

20.5%

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 
17.3%

Hood River, 
15.9%

Multnomah, 18.6%
Washington, 
20.5%

Tillamook, 9.4%

Clatsop, 9.2%

Columbia, 9.1%

Yamhill, 
10.6%

Clackamas, 
18.7%

Polk, 
9.9% Marion, 8.2%

Lincoln, 8.8%

Coos, 6.4%

Curry, 6.1% Josephine, 
6.8%

Jackson, 9.0%

Gilliam, 
9.2%

Wheeler, 4.8%

Benton, 
11.7%

Morrow, 3.4%

Beneficiary Coverage Rate

Statewide Avg: 13.6%

Avg County: 9.6%

Median Co: 8.7%

Low Co: 3.2%

High Co: 20.5%

Board Book Page 98



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Coverage Rate by County - 1-Year Change- OCSP & MFS Plan Combined
As of September 30, 2024 

Coverage rate based on Total Population under 25 per county based on July 1, 2023 annual population report tables from Portland State University's Population Research Center.

Source: Program Managers, Portland State University, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, -0.3%

Crook, 0.2%

Deschutes, 0.4%

Douglas, 0.0%

Grant, 0.1%

Harney, -0.3%

Jefferson, 0.2%

Klamath, 0.0%
Lake, 0.0%

Lane, 0.1%

Linn, 0.2%

Malheur, 0.1%

UmaƟlla, 0.1%

Union, 0.2%

Wallowa, 0.9%

Wasco, 0.0%

-0.3%

1.8%

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 
1.8%

Hood River, -
0.1%

Multnomah, 0.3%
Washington, 0.3%Tillamook, 0.3%

Clatsop, 0.4%

Columbia, 0.2%

Yamhill, 
0.2%

Clackamas, 
0.3%

Polk, 
0.2% Marion, 0.1%

Lincoln, 0.6%

Coos, 0.1%

Curry, 0.4% Josephine, 
0.0%

Jackson, 0.1%

Gilliam, 
1.0%

Wheeler, 0.3%

Benton, 
0.2%

Morrow, -0.1%

Coverage Rate Growth

Statewide Avg: 0.2%

Avg County: 0.2%

Median Co: 0.2%

Low Co: -0.3%

High Co: 1.8%

Board Book Page 99



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Count by State  - MFS 529 Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© DSAT for MSFT, GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

AK, 0.1%

AZ, 2.2% AR, 0.4%

CA, 6.2% CO, 0.7%

ID, 0.1%

IA, 0.2%

KS, 0.6%
KY, 0.8%

LA, 0.5%

MN, 1.4%

MO, 0.3%

MT, 0.5%

NE, 1.4%
NV, 0.1%

NM, 1.4%

NC, 1.0%

ND, 0.9%

OH, 0.4%

OK, 0.4%

OR, 48.6%

PA, 2.7%

SC, 0.4%

SD, 0.1%

TN, 1.2%

TX, 5.6%

UT, 0.4%

WA, 4.8%

WI, 0.0%

WY, 0.1%

0.0%

48.6%

States ex Oregon

MI, 1.0%

IN, 0.9%

FL, 2.7%

MS, 1.9%

AL, 0.2%

HI, 0.3%

WV, 0.5%

VA, 0.1%

IL, 0.6%

ME, 4.0%
VT, 0.4%

NH, 0.1%

GA, 1.4%

MA, 0.3%
RI, 0.2%

CT, 0.6%

NJ, 0.6%

DE, 0.1%
MD, 0.4%

NY, 0.1%

Board Book Page 100



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Assets by State  - MFS 529 Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© DSAT for MSFT, GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

AK, 0.1%

AZ, 1.9% AR, 0.3%

CA, 8.9% CO, 0.7%

ID, 0.1%

IA, 0.3%

KS, 0.5%
KY, 0.7%

LA, 0.4%

MN, 1.3%

MO, 0.2%

MT, 0.4%

NE, 1.6%
NV, 0.1%

NM, 2.2%

NY, 0.1%

NC, 0.8%

ND, 1.3%

OH, 0.5%

OK, 0.4%

OR, 42.0%

PA, 2.9%

SC, 0.3%

SD, 0.1%

TN, 1.1%

TX, 6.0%

UT, 0.3%

WA, 4.6%

WI, 0.0%

WY, 0.1%

0.0%

42.0%

States ex Oregon

MI, 1.1%

IN, 1.1%

FL, 3.0%

MS, 1.3%

AL, 0.2%

HI, 0.3%

WV, 0.3%

VA, 0.2%

IL, 0.5%

ME, 6.4%
VT, 0.7%

NH, 0.1%

GA, 1.4%

MA, 0.3%
RI, 0.2%

CT, 0.9%

NJ, 0.7%

DE, 0.1%
MD, 0.8%

Board Book Page 101



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Assets by County - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan and ABLE for ALL Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, $150,793

Crook, $168,681

Deschutes, $4,364,563

Douglas, $1,044,384

Grant, $148,752

Harney, $36,332

Jefferson, $293,943

Klamath, $617,848
Lake, $41,610

Lane, $8,589,515

Linn, $1,769,309

Malheur, $223,078

UmaƟlla, $1,100,047

Union, $278,028

Wasco, $154,895

$0

$17,617,878

Oregon Counties

Sherman, $0
Hood River, 
$324,601

Multnomah, 
$17,617,878Washington, 

$15,377,612
Tillamook, 
$530,126

Clatsop, 
$418,061

Columbia, 
$615,433

Yamhill, 
$2,297,121

Clackamas, 
$10,566,465

Polk, 
$1,629,325

Marion, 
$7,518,785

Lincoln, 
$452,627

Coos, $559,096

Curry, 
$250,554

Josephine, 
$1,165,108

Jackson, 
$3,259,157

Gilliam, $0

Wheeler, 
$28,904

Benton, 
$2,870,405

Morrow, 
$17,671

Wallowa, 
$27,768

Beneficiary Assets

Avg County: $2,347,458

Median Co: $491,376

Low Co: $0

High Co: $17,617,878

Board Book Page 102



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Count by County - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan and ABLE for ALL Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 24

Crook, 13

Deschutes, 300

Douglas, 107

Grant, 8

Harney, 7

Jefferson, 26

Klamath, 89
Lake, 3

Lane, 789

Linn, 174

Malheur, 21

UmaƟlla, 90

Union, 26

Wallowa, 4

Wasco, 24

0

1,320

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 0
Hood River, 24

Multnomah, 1,320
Washington, 
1,020

Tillamook, 37

Clatsop, 37 Columbia, 71

Yamhill, 181 Clackamas, 682

Polk, 195
Marion, 750

Lincoln, 45

Coos, 83

Curry, 18 Josephine, 129 Jackson, 284

Gilliam, 0

Wheeler, 2

Benton, 209

Morrow, 3

Beneficiary Count

Avg County: 189

Median Co: 41

Low Co: 0

High Co: 1320

Board Book Page 103



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Count by County - 1-Year - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan and ABLE for ALL Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, 5

Crook, 1

Deschutes, 33

Douglas, 21

Grant, 1

Harney, 1

Jefferson, 2

Klamath, 16
Lake, 1

Lane, 117

Linn, 47

Malheur, 1

UmaƟlla, 4

Union, 6

Wallowa, 1

Wasco, 8

-1

180

Oregon Counties

Sherman, 0
Hood River, 3

Multnomah, 180
Washington, 158Tillamook, 9

Clatsop, 6

Columbia, 17

Yamhill, 12
Clackamas, 130

Polk, 21
Marion, 120

Lincoln, 8

Coos, 27

Curry, -1 Josephine, 13 Jackson, 39

Gilliam, 0

Wheeler, 0

Benton, 35

Morrow, 0

Beneficiary Growth

Board Book Page 104



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Average Beneficiary Assets by County - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan and ABLE for ALL Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

Baker, $6,283

Crook, $12,975

Deschutes, $14,549

Douglas, $9,761

Grant, $18,594

Harney, $5,190

Jefferson, $11,305

Klamath, $6,942
Lake, $13,870

Lane, $10,887

Linn, $10,168

Malheur, $10,623

UmaƟlla, $12,223

Union, $10,693

Wasco, $6,454

$0

$18,594

Oregon Counties

Sherman, $0

Hood River, 
$13,525

Multnomah, 
$13,347

Washington, 
$15,076

Tillamook, 
$14,328

Clatsop, 
$11,299

Columbia, 
$8,668

Yamhill, 
$12,691

Clackamas, 
$15,493

Polk, $8,356 Marion,
$10,025

Lincoln, 
$10,058

Coos, $6,736

Curry, $13,920 Josephine,
$9,032

Jackson, 
$11,476

Gilliam, $0

Wheeler, 
$14,452

Benton, 
$13,734

Morrow, 
$5,890

Wallowa, 
$6,942

Average Beneficiary Assets

Statewide Avg: $12,437

Avg County: $10,432

Median Co: $10,790

Low Co: $0

High Co: $18,594

Board Book Page 105



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Count by State  - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan and ABLE for ALL Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© DSAT for MSFT, GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

AK, 0.0%

AZ, 0.2% AR, 0.0%

CA, 1.9% CO, 1.1%

ID, 2.2%

IA, 0.0%

KS, 0.7%
KY, 0.0%

LA, 0.1%

MN, 0.4%

MO, 0.2%

MT, 0.0%

NE, 0.0%
NV, 0.1%

NM, 0.1%

NC, 0.1%

ND, 0.0%

OH, 0.0%

OK, 0.0%

OR, 85.6%

PA, 0.0%

SC, 0.0%

SD, 0.0%

TN, 0.0%

TX, 0.4%

UT, 0.2%

WA, 1.9%

WI, 0.4%

WY, 0.0%

0.0%

85.6%

States ex Oregon

MI, 0.1%

IN, 0.2%

FL, 0.2%

MS, 0.0%

AL, 0.0%

HI, 2.0%

WV, 0.0%

VA, 0.1%

IL, 0.8%

ME, 0.0%
VT, 0.0%

NH, 0.0%

GA, 0.1%

MA, 0.5%
RI, 0.0%

CT, 0.2%

NJ, 0.2%

DE, 0.0%

MD, 0.0%

NY, 0.1%

Board Book Page 106



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Beneficiary Assets by State  - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan and ABLE for ALL Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

© DSAT for MSFT, GeoNames, Navteq
Powered by Bing

AK, 0.0%

AZ, 0.3% AR, 0.0%

CA, 3.0% CO, 0.4%

ID, 1.6%

IA, 0.0%

KS, 0.5%
KY, 0.0%

LA, 0.0%

MN, 0.5%

MO, 0.2%

MT, 0.1%

NE, 0.0%
NV, 0.1%

NM, 0.1%

NY, 0.1%

NC, 0.0%

ND, 0.0%

OH, 0.0%

OK, 0.0%

OR, 85.2%

PA, 0.1%

SC, 0.0%

SD, 0.0%

TN, 0.0%

TX, 0.6%

UT, 0.2%

WA, 3.5%

WI, 0.3%

WY, 0.0%

0.0%

85.2%

States ex Oregon

MI, 0.0%

IN, 0.2%

FL, 0.2%

MS, 0.0%

AL, 0.0%

HI, 1.3%

WV, 0.0%

VA, 0.0%

IL, 0.3%

ME, 0.0%
VT, 0.0%

NH, 0.0%

GA, 0.1%

MA, 0.4%
RI, 0.0%

CT, 0.3%

NJ, 0.2%

DE, 0.0%
MD, 0.0%

Board Book Page 107



Oregon Treasury Savings Network

Participant Demographics - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan and ABLE for ALL Savings Plan
As of September 30, 2024 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

41%

30%

14%

6% 5%

0%
3%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

Developmental Intellectual Psychiatric Nervous Congenital Anomaly Respiratory Other

Percentage of Participants per Diagnosis Code

2% 0%

35%

20%

12%

30%

1% 0%
0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%

Percentage of Participants per Manager Type

2%

35%
31% 33%

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%

Percentage of Participants per Eligibility Certification

Board Book Page 108



Investment Performance Report
OREGON TREASURY SAVINGS NETWORK

COLLEGE AND ABLE SAVINGS PLANS
S EP T EM B ER  3 0 ,  2 0 2 4

Performance is presented net of underlying management fees.

Board Book Page 109



Embed
QTD YTD 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 20 Years

Global Stocks 6.8%       17.8%       31.0%       7.4%       11.9%       8.4%       
US Large-Cap Stocks 6.1%       21.2%     35.7%     10.8%     15.6%     10.8%     

US Large-Cap Value 9.4% 16.7% 27.8% 9.0% 10.7% 8.5%  

US Large-Cap Growth 3.2% 24.6% 42.2% 12.0% 19.7% 12.7%  

US Small-Cap Stocks 9.3%       11.2%     26.8%     1.8%       9.4%       8.5%       
US Small-Cap Value 10.2% 9.2% 25.9%  3.8% 9.3% 7.7% 

US Small-Cap Growth 8.4% 13.2% 27.7% (0.4%)   8.8% 9.0% 

Non-US Developed Markets (USD) 7.3%       13.0%     24.8%     5.5%       8.2%       6.0%       
Non-US Developed Markets (Local) 0.8% 12.0% 17.5% 7.9% 8.8% 6.6%  

Emerging Markets (USD) 8.7%       16.9%     26.1%     0.4%       5.8%       7.3%       
Emerging Markets (Local) 6.6% 18.4% 25.0% 2.9% 7.4% 8.7%  

US Investment-Grade Bonds 5.2%       4.7%       11.6%       (1.4%) 0.3%       3.2%       
US Long-Term Treasurys 7.7%       3.0%       15.4%     (7.8%)      (3.9%)      3.9%       

US Short-Term TIPS 2.8%       5.0%       7.9%       2.1%       3.5%       2.9%       
Global Real Estate (REITs) 16.3%     12.6%     30.2%     1.4%       2.4%       6.4%       

Cash 1.3%       4.0%       5.4%       3.5%       2.3%       1.6%       

Sources: Sellwood Investment Partners LLC, Morningstar, Federal Reserve Economic Data, MSCI, FTSE Russell, ICE BofA, Credit Suisse

Global Market Overview 
As of September 30, 2024

Returns for periods longer than 1 year are annualized.

6.8%

6.1%

9.3%

7.3%

8.7%

8.9%

5.2%

5.7%

7.7%

5.3%

3.7%

6.1%

2.8%

16.3%

-3.8%

-3.0%

1.3%

Global Stocks

US Large-Cap Stocks

US Small-Cap Stocks

Non-US Developed Mkt Stocks

Emerging Markets Stocks

Non-US Small-Cap Stocks

US Investment-Grade Bonds

US Corporate Bonds

US Long-Term Treasurys

US High-Yield Bonds

Global ex US Bonds

Emerging Markets Bonds

US Short-Term TIPS

Global Real Estate (REITs)

Commodities

Managed Futures

Cash

Third Quarter 2024 Third Quarter 2024: The Eagle Just Might Be Landing

The third quarter’s mixed economic news and the Fed’s first rate cut in four years brought, paradoxically, both the return of
market volatility and new stock market highs. Despite two modest drawdowns in the quarter, the S&P 500 is up 22% this year, 
the best first nine months of a year since 1997. 

Stocks and bonds appreciated as expectations for future interest rate decreases materialized into actual rate decreases. Mixed 
economic data, however, made for an uncertain path along the way: the S&P 500 declined 8% in August and 4% in 
September, before recovering to new highs. In September, the Federal Reserve announced a 0.50% rate cut, which was 
steeper than the 0.25% anticipated by markets just days before. This marked the Fed’s first rate cut of this rate cycle, after 
holding overnight interest rates steady for 15 months. Both improved inflation readings over the past year, with inflation now 
hovering just above the Fed’s long-term target, and slowing job growth, supported its decision. While GDP growth is strong, it 
remains to be seen whether the Fed’s recent policy of higher rates to control inflation will bring negative consequences for 
employment.  

Increased confidence that the Federal Reserve has tamed inflation and will follow its recent 0.50% rate cut with substantially 
lower rates benefited asset classes across the board. Unlike in recent years, this quarter’s stock market rally wasn’t confined to 
big technology and artificial-intelligence-adjacent companies, as large swaths of the market rallied beyond the Magnificent 
Seven. In a resounding reversal, value stocks beat growth stocks, small stocks beat big stocks, long-term bonds outperformed 
short-term bonds, real estate outperformed everything else, and even international stocks beat their U.S. counterparts. 

Board Book Page 110



 

Embed

Embed

Embed

Embed

Sources: Sellwood Investment Partners LLC, Morningstar, Federal Reserve Economic Data, Wall Street Journal, CNBC

Year-to-Date Market Review 
As of September 30, 2024

3.4

3.9

4.4

4.9

5.4

5.9

4000.0

4200.0

4400.0

4600.0

4800.0

5000.0

5200.0

5400.0

5600.0

5800.0

12/31/23 1/31/24 2/29/24 3/31/24 4/30/24 5/31/24 6/30/24 7/31/24 8/31/24 9/30/24

S&P 500 Index

Low: 3.6%

3.9%
3.8%

4770
Low: 
4689

High:
5762

High: 4.7%

10-Year Treasury Yield

5762

Prices ticked up in December and 
paychecks grew, delivering real 
wage gains in 2023 for the first 
time in three years. The 
Consumer Price Index increased 
3.4% from a year earlier in 
December, up from a 3.1% 
annual rate in November, as 
reported by the Labor 
Department.

The U.S. economy grew 3.1% 
over the past year, the Commerce 
Department reported. A year ago 
economists saw a recession as 
very likely and projected anemic 
0.2% growth for the year,
according to data from the Wall 
Street Journal.

Gold prices broke above $2,100
per ounce as rising geopolitcal 
tensions have spurred demand 
from foreign central banks and 
investors bet on potential rate 
cuts. 

Brent crude futures 
climbed 18% in 2024 to 
exceed $90 a barrel for 
the first time since 
October of last year.

The Federal Reserve kept 
the benchmark federal-
funds rate steady at 
5.25%-5.5%, the highest in 
two decades, after recent 
data showed persistent 
price pressures.

Nvidia delivered a record 
quarter and signaled that 
the AI boom is still going 
strong, driving its already 
meteoric stock up above 
$1,000 a share.

Japan’s Nikkei Stock Average 
had its worst day since 1987, 
falling 12% in a frenzy of selling 
triggered by disappointing 
economic data in the U.S. and 
a surge in the Japanese yen.

The consumer-price index rose 
2.9% from a year earlier, the 
Labor Department announced, 
the lowest reading since 2021.

ISM's 
purchasing 
managers' 
index remained 
in contraction, 
pointing to 
continued 
manufacturing 
weakness.

The Federal 
Reserve lowered 
interest rates by 
50 basis points, 
the first rate cut 
in four years.

Board Book Page 111



9/2024 6/2024 9/2023 9/2021 9/2019

Market Inflation Expectations Embed

    5 Year 2.1   2.2    2.2  2.5  1.4   Embed

    10 Year 2.2     2.3 2.4 2.4  1.5  Embed

    20 Year 2.4     2.5 2.7 2.4  1.6  Embed

CPI Year-over-Year 2.4 3.0   3.7    5.4  1.7  

West Texas Crude Oil 68.8     82.8 90.8     75.2 54.1 

Consumer Sentiment Index 70.1 68.2 68.1  72.8     93.2 

S&P 500 Operating EPS 60.5*     58.4  52.3     52.0 39.8 

Real GDP Growth YoY --- 3.0   4.4   3.5    4.8  

Federal Funds Rate 4.83 5.33   5.33 0.08  2.04 

Sources: Sellwood Investment Partners LLC, Morningstar, Federal Reserve Economic Data, CME Group, S&P Dow Jones Indices

Arrows in the top-right charts represent year on year change.

*Estimate, provided by S&P Dow Jones Indices.

Global Economic Overview 
As of September 30, 2024

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

3 
M

th
1 

Ye
ar

3 
Ye

ar

5 
Ye

ar

7 
Ye

ar

10
 Y

ea
r

20
 Y

ea
r

30
 y

ea
r

US Treasury Yield Curve

9/24 6/24 9/23 9/21 9/19

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

US 
Unemployment 

Rate

Since 1948

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Market Volatility 
CBOE Volatility 

Index: VIX

Since 1990

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Inflation 
Adjusted Gold 
Price per Oz.

Since 1968

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Treasury Curve 
Steepness

10yr Yield - 2yr 
Yield

Since 1976

80

85

90

95

100

105

110

115

120

125

130

Trade-
Weighted US 
Dollar Broad 

Index

Since 2006

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

Federal Funds Rate

Federal Funds Rate

Projected Federal Funds Rate (CME)

FOMC Dot Plot Median

Board Book Page 112



Embed

Embed

Embed

Embed

As of September 30, 2024

Global Market Valuations  - One Year Change

Arrows represent year on year change. Trailing 12 month P/E and cap rate metrics exclude the top and bottom 5%. P/E metrics calculated by Investment Metrics and Morningstar may use different methodology.
Sources: Sellwood Investment Partners LLC, Robert Shiller Data, S&P Dow Jones Indices, FTSE Russell, MCSI, Federal Reserve Economic Data, NAREIT

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

US Large-Cap 
Equity

Trailing R1000
12-Month P/E
Since 1979 

US Small-Cap 
Equity

Trailing R2000
12-Month P/E ex 

Negative Earnings
Since 1979 

Non-US Dev
Equity 

Trailing 
MSCI EAFE

12-Month P/E
Since 1973

Emerging  
Markets Equity

Trailing 
MSCI EM

12-Month P/E
Since 1995

US Treasury 
Bonds

10-Year Treasury 
Yield

Since 1996

US Corporate
Bonds

Corporate Credit 
Spreads

Since 1996

US High-Yield 
Bonds

High Yield Credit 
Spreads

Since 1996

US REITS

FTSE NAREIT US 
Real Estate Index 

Cap Rate Spread to 
US Treasurys
Since 1999

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%5

10

15

20

25

30

35

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Expensive

Cheap 5

10

15

20

25

30

35

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Earnings Yield = 5.6% Earnings Yield = 6.4% Earnings Yield = 6.1% Nominal Yield = 3.7% Nominal Yield = 4.8% Nominal Yield = 6.7% Cap Rate = 5.1%Earnings Yield = 4.6%

Board Book Page 113



The equity bar widths depict end of the quarter region and sector weights. Fixed income bar widths do not depict specific sector weights. The Far East includes Hong Kong, Japan and Singapore.
Sources: Sellwood Investment Partners LLC, Morningstar, S&P Dow Jones Indices, MSCI, ICE BofA

Sector and Region Returns 
As of September 30, 2024

Europe, 
6.6%

Far East, 
9.7%

Asia 
Pacific, 
8.5%

North 
America, 
12.5%

EMEA, 
6.8%

Latin 
America, 

4.9%

World Stocks ex USA Region Quarter Returns

Europe, 
25.9%

Far East, 
30.1% Asia 

Pacific, 
23.8%

North 
America, 
28.9%

EMEA, 
20.4%

Latin America, 
4.3%

World Stocks ex USA Region 1-Year Returns

Treasurys, 
4.8%

Corp, 
5.7% Agency, 

3.5%

MBS, 
5.5% TIPS, 

4.2%
US HY, 
5.3%

Ex US Agg, 
3.7%

Em Mkts, 
6.1%

Fixed Income Sectors Quarter Returns

Treasurys, 
9.9%

Corp, 
14.1%

Agency, 
8.5%

MBS, 
12.4% TIPS, 

9.8%

US HY, 
15.7%

Ex US Agg, 
9.6%

Em Mkts, 
18.5%

Fixed Income Sectors 1-Year Returns

Info Tech, 1.9%

Financials, 
10.7% Health Care, 

6.5%
Cons Disc, 

8.1%

Industrials, 
10.9%

Commun, 
2.3%

Cons Staples, 
8.5%

Energy, 
-3.0%

Real Estate, 
17.3%

Materials, 
10.2%

Utilities, 
18.7%US Stocks Sector Quarter Returns

Info Tech, 51.8%
Financials, 

39.1%
Health 
Care, 
21.5%

Cons Disc, 
28.2%

Industrials, 
36.4%

Commun, 
43.1%

Cons 
Staples, 
25.9%

Energy, 
0.8%

Real 
Estate, 
35.9%

Materials, 
23.9%

Utilities, 
43.2%

US Stocks Sector 1-Year Returns

Board Book Page 114



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Plan Composition
a As of September 30, 2024 
aa Current Market % of Current Market % of
a Pre-Allocated Fund Options Value ($) Total Individual Fund Options Value ($) Total

College Enrollment Year Portfolios 1,700,670,259 50.7% US Equity 711,514,908 21.2%
OR CSP 2043 629,850 0.0% OR CSP US Equity Index 526,170,850 15.7%
OR CSP 2042 5,046,981 0.2% OR CSP Diversified US Equity 185,344,058 5.5%
OR CSP 2041 14,290,119 0.4% Non-US Equity 94,411,510 2.8%
OR CSP 2040 25,037,965 0.7% OR CSP International Equity Index 67,986,052 2.0%
OR CSP 2039 33,830,577 1.0% OR CSP Diversified Intl Equity 26,425,458 0.8%
OR CSP 2038 47,882,121 1.4% Fixed Income 51,009,696 1.5%
OR CSP 2037 50,383,677 1.5% OR CSP Fixed Income Index 30,666,547 0.9%
OR CSP 2036 70,874,256 2.1% OR CSP Diversified Fixed Income 11,009,831 0.3%
OR CSP 2035 74,868,516 2.2% OR CSP ST Fixed Income Index 9,333,318 0.3%
OR CSP 2034 81,038,097 2.4% Inflation-Related Strategies 11,598,161 0.3%
OR CSP 2033 87,853,091 2.6% OR CSP Diversified Inflation Protection 11,598,161 0.3%
OR CSP 2032 96,864,632 2.9% Stable Value/Cash 174,473,998 5.2%
OR CSP 2031 97,207,920 2.9% OR CSP FDIC-Insured Cash 174,473,998 5.2%
OR CSP 2030 110,851,006 3.3%
OR CSP 2029 112,997,271 3.4%
OR CSP 2028 119,315,860 3.6%
OR CSP 2027 116,082,632 3.5%
OR CSP 2026 121,905,077 3.6%
OR CSP 2025 128,699,403 3.8%
OR CSP 2024 107,487,313 3.2%
OR CSP 2023 74,139,214 2.2%
OR CSP 2022 49,617,684 1.5%
OR CSP 2021 35,053,327 1.0%
OR CSP 2020 22,809,413 0.7%
OR CSP 2019 15,904,257 0.5%

Target-Risk Portfolios 447,834,546 13.3%
OR CSP Aggressive 287,072,357 8.6%
OR CSP Moderate 117,698,151 3.5%
OR CSP Conservative 43,064,037 1.3%

Balanced 165,421,816 4.9%
OR CSP Balanced Index 117,392,929 3.5%
OR CSP Social Choice Balanced 48,028,887 1.4%

Total Professionally Allocated Assets 2,313,926,621 68.9%

Each year at the end of June, the remaining balance held in the oldest college enrollment year fund is rolled into the OR CSP FDIC-Insured Cash account and a new college enrollment year fund is launched.

1,043,008,273 31.1%Total Participant Allocated Assets

Mkt Val % by
Option Type

Mkt Val 1 Yr Prior 1 Yr Net Cash Flow 1 Yr Invst Earnings Current MV
Total Plan 2,745,966,523 22,997,670 587,970,701 3,356,934,894

Board Book Page 115



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Plan Composition
a As of September 30, 2024 
a Plan Market Value History
a

a

Historical Plan Allocation by Option Type

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Jun-10 Jun-11 Jun-12 Jun-13 Jun-14 Jun-15 Jun-16 Jun-17 Jun-18 Jun-19 Jun-20 Jun-21 Jun-22 Jun-23 Jun-24

Glidepath

Target-Risk Portfolios

Balanced

US Equity

Non-US Equity

Fixed Income

Inflation-Related Strategies

Stable Value/Cash

0
500
1,000
1,500
2,000
2,500
3,000
3,500
4,000

Jun-10 Jun-11 Jun-12 Jun-13 Jun-14 Jun-15 Jun-16 Jun-17 Jun-18 Jun-19 Jun-20 Jun-21 Jun-22 Jun-23 Jun-24

M
ill

io
ns

Board Book Page 116



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

College Enrollment Year Glidepath
As of September 30, 2024 

a

Performance is presented net of all fees, including program administration fees and underlying mutual fund fees and expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. Ranks for the oldest 
college enrollment date fund are not shown due to insufficient peer group members.

6.7 6.7 6.6 6.6 6.5 6.5 6.4 6.3 6.2 6.1 6.1 6.0 5.9 5.8 5.4
5.0

4.4
3.8

2.9
2.3

1.8 1.4 1.4 1.3

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

8.0%

9.0%

10.0%
2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

An
nu

al
iz

ed
 R

et
ur

n

College Enrollment Date Option

QTD Total Return

College Enrollment Date Option

Benchmark

42 42
47

52

60

30

38

54

24
30

35

14
21

32

9

25

64

41

75

94

23

55 55

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

M
St

ar
 R

an
k

QTD Percentile Ranks
Total Return vs Morningstar Direct-Sold 529 Target Enrollment-Date Peer Groups

Board Book Page 117



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

College Enrollment Year Glidepath
As of September 30, 2024 

a

Performance is presented net of all fees, including program administration fees and underlying mutual fund fees and expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. Ranks for the oldest 
college enrollment date fund are not shown due to insufficient peer group members.

16.1 16.1 15.9 15.6 15.3 14.9 14.4 13.9 13.4 12.9 12.5 11.9 11.3 10.6
9.8

8.9
7.8

6.8
5.6 4.9

4.1 3.8 3.9 3.8

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

18.0%

20.0%
2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

An
nu

al
iz

ed
 R

et
ur

n

College Enrollment Date Option

YTD Total Return

College Enrollment Date Option

Benchmark

39 39
44

58

75

15

34

61

21

30

41

18

27

37

8

23

64

16

68

84

42

55

42

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

M
St

ar
 R

an
k

YTD Percentile Ranks
Total Return vs Morningstar Direct-Sold 529 Target Enrollment-Date Peer Groups

Board Book Page 118



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

College Enrollment Year Glidepath
As of September 30, 2024 

a

Performance is presented net of all fees, including program administration fees and underlying mutual fund fees and expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. Ranks for the oldest 
college enrollment date fund are not shown due to insufficient peer group members.

28.8 28.8 28.5 28.1 27.6 26.9 26.2 25.4 24.6 23.9 23.3 22.4 21.4 20.4
19.1

17.3
15.0

12.6
10.1

8.1
6.5 5.6 5.5 5.3

0.0%

4.0%

8.0%

12.0%

16.0%

20.0%

24.0%

28.0%

32.0%

2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

An
nu

al
iz

ed
 R

et
ur

n

College Enrollment Date Option

1 Year Total Return

College Enrollment Date Option

Benchmark

39 39 41

54

74

15

34

59

23
29

40

16
22

34

6

22

67

17

79 96

42
46

55

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

M
St

ar
 R

an
k

1 Year Percentile Ranks
Total Return vs Morningstar Direct-Sold 529 Target Enrollment-Date Peer Groups

Board Book Page 119



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

College Enrollment Year Glidepath
As of September 30, 2024 

a

Performance is presented net of all fees, including program administration fees and underlying mutual fund fees and expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. Inception dates 
shown represent the first full month following intital funding. Ranks for the oldest college enrollment date fund are not shown due to insufficient peer group members.

4.4

17.1

13.7

5.3

10.7
9.9 9.8

8.1 7.9 7.7 7.5 7.3 7.1 6.8 6.5 6.1 5.6 5.2 4.9 4.7 4.3 4.1 3.8 3.4
2.4

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

18.0%

20.0%
08-24 08-23 08-22 08-21 08-20 10-19 11-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18 10-18

2043 2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

An
nu

al
iz

ed
 R

et
ur

n

College Enrollment Date Option

Since-Inception Annualized Total Return

College Enrollment Date Option

Benchmark

26

37

49

41

64 64

42

64

74

18
22

45

18 19
26

14

25

43

14

25
31

18 18

35

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2043 2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

M
St

ar
 R

an
k

Since-Inception Percentile Ranks
Total Return vs Morningstar Direct-Sold 529 Target Enrollment-Date Peer Groups

Fund Year

Inception Date

Board Book Page 120



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 # 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

Target-Risk Portfolios
OR CSP Aggressive 6.5 14.7 26.7 5.4 9.1 7.7 Apr-10 17.4 -17.0 13.3 14.4 0.4
 OR CSP Aggressive Index (80/20) 6.6 15.2 27.0 5.6 9.2 8.0 17.5 -16.9 13.7 13.7 0.4

Over/Under -0.1 -0.5 -0.3 -0.2 -0.1 -0.3 -0.1 -0.1 -0.4 0.7 0.0
529 Static Moderately Aggressive Rank 32 40 38 62 59 87 57 59 72 50 68

OR CSP Moderate 5.8 10.7 20.6 2.9 5.9 6.0 Apr-10 13.1 -15.4 7.3 12.6 0.3
 OR CSP Moderate Index (50/50) 5.9 11.0 20.8 3.1 6.0 6.3 13.2 -15.2 7.7 11.8 0.3

Over/Under -0.1 -0.3 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 -0.3 -0.1 -0.2 -0.4 0.8 0.0
529 Static Moderate Allocation MStar Rank 51 90 90 92 94 92 85 39 96 58 88

OR CSP Conservative 4.6 6.9 13.5 1.3 3.1 3.5 Apr-10 8.4 -11.2 2.5 8.6 0.1
 OR CSP Conservative Index (20/80) 4.7 7.1 13.8 1.5 3.3 3.8 8.5 -10.9 2.8 8.5 0.1

Over/Under -0.1 -0.2 -0.3 -0.2 -0.2 -0.3 -0.1 -0.3 -0.3 0.1 0.0
529 Static Conservative Allocation MStar Rank 56 64 67 54 48 87 73 49 73 44 41

Balanced Portfolios
OR CSP Balanced Index 6.2 12.1 22.8 4.0 7.6 8.3 Apr-10 15.2 -16.0 9.9 15.0 0.4
 OR CSP Balanced Index (60/40) 6.3 12.4 23.1 4.2 7.7 8.5 15.2 -15.8 10.3 14.0 0.4

Over/Under -0.1 -0.3 -0.3 -0.2 -0.1 -0.2 0.0 -0.2 -0.4 1.0 0.0
529 Static Moderate Allocation MStar Rank 24 61 55 63 52 24 49 54 77 22 50

OR CSP Social Choice Balanced 6.2 11.8 22.7 3.9 7.6 7.1 Oct-18 14.7 -15.8 10.8 14.2 0.4
 OR CSP Social Choice Balanced Index (60/40) 6.2 12.5 23.1 4.3 7.7 7.3 15.2 -15.6 10.3 13.8 0.4

Over/Under 0.0 -0.7 -0.4 -0.4 -0.1 -0.2 -0.5 -0.2 0.5 0.4 0.0
529 Static Moderate Allocation MStar Rank 23 67 59 67 52 47 58 45 65 29 60

Performance is presented net of all fees, including program administration fees and underlying mutual fund fees and expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst.

Board Book Page 121



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 # 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

US Equity
OR CSP US Equity Index 6.1 19.9 35.0 9.9 14.9 13.1 Apr-10 26.3 -19.6 25.4 20.7 0.7
 OR CSP Custom Index (CRSP US Total Mkt) 6.2 20.6 35.2 10.1 15.2 13.4 26.0 -19.5 25.7 21.0 0.7

Over/Under -0.1 -0.7 -0.2 -0.2 -0.3 -0.3 0.3 -0.1 -0.3 -0.3 0.0
529 Static All Cap Blend MStar Rank 63 35 31 30 28 28 18 66 39 29 26

OR CSP Diversified US Equity 5.5 18.4 32.2 8.2 13.9 12.9 Apr-10 25.0 -20.5 26.9 17.6 0.6
 Russell 3000 TR USD Index 6.2 20.6 35.2 10.3 15.3 13.4 26.0 -19.2 25.7 20.9 0.7

Over/Under -0.7 -2.2 -3.0 -2.1 -1.4 -0.5 -1.0 -1.3 1.2 -3.3 -0.1
529 Static All Cap Blend MStar Rank 79 43 41 46 38 30 37 73 25 52 37

Non-US Equity
OR CSP International Equity Index 8.0 13.7 24.7 3.9 7.6 5.2 Apr-10 15.1 -16.1 8.4 11.1 0.3
 Custom Index (FTSE Glo All Cap ex US) 8.4 14.1 25.2 4.1 8.0 5.5 15.8 -16.1 8.8 11.2 0.3

Over/Under -0.4 -0.4 -0.5 -0.2 -0.4 -0.3 -0.7 0.0 -0.4 -0.1 0.0
529 Static Non US Equity MStar Rank 31 40 50 47 56 74 64 40 61 50 56

OR CSP Diversified Intl Equity 8.8 14.1 24.2 2.1 9.0 6.2 Apr-10 17.3 -20.5 4.6 24.2 0.3
 MSCI ACWI Ex USA NR USD Index 8.1 14.2 25.4 4.1 7.6 5.3 15.6 -16.0 7.8 10.7 0.3

Over/Under 0.7 -0.1 -1.2 -2.0 1.4 0.9 1.7 -4.5 -3.2 13.5 0.0
529 Static Non US Equity MStar Rank 15 24 66 70 14 26 28 77 85 8 19

Performance is presented net of all fees, including program administration fees and underlying mutual fund fees and expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst.

Board Book Page 122



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 # 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

Fixed Income
OR CSP Fixed Income Index 5.0 4.3 11.2 -1.6 0.1 2.2 Apr-10 5.6 -13.3 -1.9 7.5 --
 Custom Index (Barclays US Agg Flt-Adj) 5.1 4.5 11.5 -1.4 0.4 2.6 5.6 -13.1 -1.6 7.7

Over/Under -0.1 -0.2 -0.3 -0.2 -0.3 -0.4 0.0 -0.2 -0.3 -0.2
529 Static Intermediate Bond MStar Rank 45 67 58 72 80 57 51 68 77 40 --

OR CSP Diversified Fixed Income 5.5 5.3 12.5 -0.6 0.9 2.8 Apr-10 6.6 -12.3 -1.2 7.0 --
 Bloomberg US Agg Bond TR USD Index 5.2 4.4 11.6 -1.4 0.3 2.5 5.5 -13.0 -1.5 7.5

Over/Under 0.3 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.3 1.1 0.7 0.3 -0.5
529 Static Intermediate Bond MStar Rank 10 26 32 46 49 30 31 47 55 53 --

OR CSP ST Fixed Income Index 3.4 4.4 7.9 0.7 1.3 2.0 Oct-18 4.7 -5.8 -1.2 4.5 --
 Bloomberg US Govt/Credit 1-5 Yr TR USD Index 3.5 4.5 8.1 0.9 1.5 2.3 4.9 -5.5 -1.0 4.7

Over/Under -0.1 -0.1 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.3 -0.2 -0.3 -0.2 -0.2
Short-Term Bond MStar MF Rank 22 94 76 96 95 91 93 83 97 35 --

Performance is presented net of all fees, including program administration fees and underlying mutual fund fees and expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst.

Board Book Page 123



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 # 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

Inflation-Related Strategies
OR CSP Diversified Inflation Protection 5.8 7.2 12.3 1.6 4.5 4.6 Oct-18 2.1 -7.2 16.9 2.8 0.2
 OR CSP Diversified Inflation Protection Index 5.8 7.3 12.1 2.3 4.6 4.7 2.9 -6.3 17.2 1.6 0.2

Over/Under 0.0 -0.1 0.2 -0.7 -0.1 -0.1 -0.8 -0.9 -0.3 1.2 0.0
Cash
OR CSP FDIC-Insured Cash 1.3 3.9 5.3 3.5 2.2 2.2 Oct-18 5.0 1.5 0.0 0.3 --
 ICE BofA 3M US Trsy Note TR USD Index 1.3 4.0 5.4 3.5 2.3 2.2 5.0 1.5 0.1 0.7

Over/Under -0.0 -0.1 -0.1 -0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.5
529 Static Money Market MStar Rank 28 16 19 13 28 30 15 30 68 72 --

The 529 Static Money Market MStar peer group includes money market funds and guaranteed option funds.

Performance is presented net of all fees, including program administration fees and underlying mutual fund fees and expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst.

Board Book Page 124



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Annual Fee Information
a As of September 30, 2024 

Accounts: 141,878

% of $ Per % of $ Per
$ Assets Account Assets Account

Fees Paid from the Plan
Investment Management 2,338,055      0.07% 16      0.07% -     
Administration Fee 6,364,922      0.20% 45      0.20% -     
Fee paid to Vestwell 3,225,520   0.10% 23    0.10% -
Fee paid to State 3,139,401   0.10% 22    0.10% -

Total Plan Fees (ex Cash) 8,702,977      0.27% 61      0.27% -     

Total Net Fees by Service Provider
Investment Management 2,338,055      0.07% 16      0.07% -

Vestwell 3,225,520      0.10% 23      0.05% 12      
First $2.5 billion 2,587,437    0.08% 18     0.05% -

Over $2.5 billion 638,084  0.02% 4 0.04% -

State 3,139,401      0.10% 22      0.10% -

Total Plan Fees (ex Cash) 8,702,977      0.27% 61      0.22% 12      

Total Plan Assets: $3,356,934,894
Total Plan ex Cash: $3,182,460,895

Total Annual Fees Annual Fee Schedule

Vestwell collects $12 per account and 0.05% on Plan Assets up to $2.5 billion and 0.04% on Plan Assets over $2.5 billion. The remaining Administrative Fee is paid to the State.
Vestwell derives additional income from the OR CSP FDIC-Insured Cash option that is excluded from this analysis. 

Board Book Page 125



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Plan Fee History
a As of September 30, 2024 

Accounts

Plan Assets

The OR CSP FDIC-Insured Cash option is excluded from this analysis.

The program manager prior to September 2018 derived revenue from investment management fees.

$56 $51 $49 $47 $50 $50 $48
$54 $49

$56
$62

$69

$50 $56 $61

Dec
2010

Dec
2011

Dec
2012

Dec
2013

Dec
2014

Dec
2015

Dec
2016

Dec
2017

Dec
2018

Dec
2019

Dec
2020

Dec
2021

Dec
2022

Dec
2023

Sep
2024

Total Plan Fees Per Account

Investment Management Program Manager - Investment Management Program Manager State

$3.1M $3.0M $3.1M $3.5M $4.0M $4.3M $4.5M $5.5M $5.3M $6.6M $7.8M $9.1M
$6.7M $7.7M $8.7M

0.51% 0.46%
0.39% 0.36% 0.36% 0.36% 0.33% 0.33% 0.33% 0.32% 0.32% 0.33%

0.28% 0.27% 0.27%

0.47% 0.43% 0.38% 0.33% 0.33% 0.33% 0.34%

Dec
2010

Dec
2011

Dec
2012

Dec
2013

Dec
2014

Dec
2015

Dec
2016

Dec
2017

Dec
2018

Dec
2019

Dec
2020

Dec
2021

Dec
2022

Dec
2023

Sep
2024

55,014 59,635 64,222 73,413 80,121 86,390 93,110 101,504 109,556 117,902 124,624 131,821 134,913 138,843 141,878

$0.6 Bil $0.7 Bil $0.8 Bil $1.0 Bil $1.1 Bil $1.2 Bil $1.4 Bil $1.7 Bil $1.6 Bil $2.0 Bil $2.4 Bil $2.8 Bil $2.4 Bil $2.8 Bil $3.2 Bil

Total Plan Fees

Investment Management Program Manager - Investment Management Program Manager

State Total Plan Fees Per Account (% of Assets) Direct-Sold Plan Fee Median

Board Book Page 126



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Plan Composition - All Share Classes
a As of September 30, 2024 
a
a A Share I Share % of % of % of % of
a Class (%) Class (%) Total Total Total Total

College Enrollment Year Portfolios 59.8% 49.3% 59.6% Target-Risk Portfolios 35.6% 39.8% 35.7%
OR MFS 2043 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% OR MFS Aggressive Growth 10.8% 15.7% 10.9%
OR MFS 2042 0.2% 0.0% 0.2% OR MFS Growth 12.6% 10.4% 12.6%
OR MFS 2041 0.4% 0.3% 0.4% OR MFS Moderate 8.4% 5.9% 8.3%
OR MFS 2040 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% OR MFS Conservative 2.5% 3.2% 2.5%
OR MFS 2039 0.7% 0.8% 0.7% OR MFS Lifetime Income 0.4% 1.5% 0.4%
OR MFS 2038 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% OR MFS Ltd Maturity 0.8% 3.1% 0.9%
OR MFS 2037 1.3% 0.3% 1.2% Cash 4.6% 10.9% 4.8%
OR MFS 2036 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% OR MFS US Govt Cash Reserve 4.6% 10.9% 4.8%
OR MFS 2035 2.0% 1.4% 1.9%
OR MFS 2034 2.3% 4.0% 2.4%
OR MFS 2033 2.6% 1.5% 2.6%
OR MFS 2032 3.1% 3.3% 3.1%
OR MFS 2031 3.3% 4.5% 3.4%
OR MFS 2030 3.9% 3.6% 3.9%
OR MFS 2029 4.1% 4.4% 4.1%
OR MFS 2028 4.3% 2.8% 4.3%
OR MFS 2027 4.6% 2.5% 4.6%
OR MFS 2026 5.2% 2.4% 5.1%
OR MFS 2025 4.6% 2.3% 4.5%
OR MFS 2024 4.0% 2.9% 4.0%
OR MFS 2023 3.4% 4.2% 3.4%
OR MFS 2022 2.9% 1.5% 2.9%
OR MFS 2021 2.0% 2.3% 2.0%
OR MFS 2020 1.2% 1.0% 1.2%
OR MFS 2019 0.8% 0.3% 0.8%

Please see notes for manager transition comments. Allocations may not sum to 100% due to rounding. Market values are provided by Vestwell and may differ from values shown in the Program Data Report due to system calculation 
methodologies. Each year at the end of June, the remaining balance held in the oldest college enrollment year fund is rolled into the OR MFS US Govt Cash Reserve account and a new college enrollment year fund is launched.

Mkt Val 
% by

Option 

Mkt Val 1 Yr Prior Net Cash Flow Invst Earnings Current MV
Total Plan 1,730,870,838 -10,375,167 234,882,467 1,955,378,138

Board Book Page 127



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Plan Composition - All Share Classes
a As of September 30, 2024 
a A Share Class I Share Class A Share Class I Share Class
a Current Market Current Market Current Market Current Market
a Value ($) Value ($) Value ($) Value ($)

College Enrollment Year Portfolios 1,142,976,347 21,543,736 Target-Risk Portfolios 680,370,172 17,388,577
OR MFS 2043 132,898 18,866 OR MFS Aggressive Growth 206,753,154 6,842,309
OR MFS 2042 3,356,242 15,960 OR MFS Growth 241,610,014 4,559,734
OR MFS 2041 7,056,338 149,156 OR MFS Moderate 160,352,085 2,589,144
OR MFS 2040 9,405,160 234,671 OR MFS Conservative 47,969,929 1,415,730
OR MFS 2039 13,707,403 339,426 OR MFS Lifetime Income 7,656,055 636,029
OR MFS 2038 18,611,986 445,351 OR MFS Ltd Maturity 16,028,935 1,345,630
OR MFS 2037 23,967,200 145,940 Cash 88,344,990 4,754,316
OR MFS 2036 28,613,151 654,269 OR MFS US Govt Cash Reserve 88,344,990 4,754,316
OR MFS 2035 37,285,010 619,997
OR MFS 2034 44,526,185 1,743,857
OR MFS 2033 50,224,250 645,472
OR MFS 2032 59,573,889 1,431,679
OR MFS 2031 63,898,271 1,957,629
OR MFS 2030 73,749,707 1,552,967
OR MFS 2029 79,196,665 1,918,730
OR MFS 2028 82,198,280 1,235,875
OR MFS 2027 88,781,067 1,081,242
OR MFS 2026 98,507,809 1,026,969
OR MFS 2025 87,325,484 1,009,811
OR MFS 2024 76,955,370 1,263,934
OR MFS 2023 64,273,342 1,837,874
OR MFS 2022 55,347,720 641,179
OR MFS 2021 37,899,416 1,010,417
OR MFS 2020 22,540,665 429,788
OR MFS 2019 15,842,837 132,678

Please see notes for manager transition comments. Allocations may not sum to 100% due to rounding. Market values are provided by Vestwell and may differ from values shown in the Program Data Report due to system calculation 
methodologies. Each year at the end of June, the remaining balance held in the oldest college enrollment year fund is rolled into the OR MFS US Govt Cash Reserve account and a new college enrollment year fund is launched.

Mkt Val % 
by

Option 
Type

Current A Shares MV Current I  Shares MV Current Total MV
Total Plan 1,911,691,509  43,686,629  1,955,378,138  

Board Book Page 128



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Plan Composition - All Share Classes
As of September 30, 2024 

Plan Market Value History a

a

a

a

Historical Plan Allocation by Option Type

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Mar-10 Mar-12 Mar-14 Mar-16 Mar-18 Mar-20 Mar-22 Mar-24

College Enrollment

Target-Risk / Age-Based

Balanced

US Equity

Non-US Equity

Fixed Income

Cash

Jun-10 Jun-12 Jun-14 Jun-16 Jun-18 Jun-20 Jun-22 Jun-24
0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

M
ill

io
ns

Total Plan Market Value

Cumulative Net Cash Flow

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Jun-10 Jun-12 Jun-14 Jun-16 Jun-18 Jun-20 Jun-22 Jun-24

M
ill

io
nsI Share Class

A Share Class

B Share Class

C Share Class

Board Book Page 129



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

College Enrollment Year Glidepath - A Shares
As of September 30, 2024 

a

Performance is presented net of A-share mutual fund expense ratios but gross of loads. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. Ranks for options that are three years or more past college do 
not show ranks due to insufficient peer group members.

7.0 7.0 7.0 6.9 6.9 6.8 6.8 6.7 6.7 6.6 6.6 6.4 6.3 6.2 6.2
5.6

4.9

4.1

3.2

2.4

1.7
1.0 1.1 1.2

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

8.0%
2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

An
nu

al
iz

ed
 R

et
ur

n

College Enrollment Date Option

QTD Total Return

College Enrollment Year Portfolio

Benchmark

8
13 12 15

20

7 9 11

2
6 7

1
6 7

1
6

28

18

69

93

42

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

M
St

ar
 R

an
k

QTD Percentile Ranks
Total Return vs Morningstar Direct-Sold 529 Target Enrollment-Date Peer Groups

Board Book Page 130



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

College Enrollment Year Glidepath - A Shares
As of September 30, 2024 

a

Performance is presented net of A-share mutual fund expense ratios but gross of loads. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. Ranks for options that are three years or more past college do 
not show ranks due to insufficient peer group members.

14.4 14.2 14.1 13.9 13.6 13.4 13.2 12.9 12.6 12.2 11.9 11.4 10.9 10.4 9.8
8.9

7.8
6.8

5.8
4.8

3.9
3.2 3.3 3.4

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

18.0%
2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

An
nu

al
iz

ed
 R

et
ur

n

College Enrollment Date Option

YTD Total Return

College Enrollment Year Portfolio

Benchmark

89 90 92 95 96

79
83

90

37

48

63

24

34

47

8 24

63

17

65

88

55

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

M
St

ar
 R

an
k

YTD Percentile Ranks
Total Return vs Morningstar Direct-Sold 529 Target Enrollment-Date Peer Groups

Board Book Page 131



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

College Enrollment Year Glidepath - A Shares
As of September 30, 2024 

a

Performance is presented net of A-share mutual fund expense ratios but gross of loads. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. Ranks for options that are three years or more past college do 
not show ranks due to insufficient peer group members.

25.3 25.7 25.6 25.3 24.9 24.6 24.3 23.8 23.5 22.9 22.4 21.7 20.9 20.1 19.3
18.0

16.0
13.6

11.1
8.6

6.6
4.9 4.6 4.6

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%
2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

An
nu

al
iz

ed
 R

et
ur

n

College Enrollment Date Option

1 Year Total Return

College Enrollment Year Portfolio

Benchmark

94 91 91 93
96

80 82

92

36
43

57

20

29

43

4
15

54

12

65

92

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

M
St

ar
 R

an
k

1 Year Percentile Ranks
Total Return vs Morningstar Direct-Sold 529 Target Enrollment-Date Peer Groups

Board Book Page 132



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

College Enrollment Year Glidepath - A Shares
As of September 30, 2024 

a

Performance is presented net of A-share mutual fund expense ratios but gross of loads. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. Inception dates shown represent the first full month following 
intital funding. Ranks for options that are three years or more past college do not show ranks due to insufficient peer group members.

3.7

14.8

9.8 9.9 9.9 9.8 9.6 9.4 9.1 9.0 8.7 8.4 8.1 7.7 7.3 6.8 6.2 5.4 4.8 4.3 4.0 3.5 3.2 3.4 3.7

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

18.0%

20.0%
08-24 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22 06-22

2043 2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

An
nu

al
iz

ed
 R

et
ur

n

College Enrollment Date Option

Since-Inception Total Return

College Enrollment Year Portfolio

Benchmark

94 94 95 93 93 96

88
93 95

44

54

66

30

44

56

14

31

66

21

50

74

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2043 2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

M
St

ar
 R

an
k

Since-Inception Percentile Ranks
Total Return vs Morningstar Direct-Sold 529 Target Enrollment-Date Peer Groups

Fund Year

Inception Date

Board Book Page 133



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a
a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Calendar YearsEnding September 30, 2024

Target Risk Portfolios

OR MFS Aggressive Growth A 6.8 14.8 26.7 5.3 10.2 9.4 8.8 Aug-02 15.7 -17.1 18.8 15.5 0.4

 OR 529 Aggressive Growth Allocation Index 6.6 18.1 30.7 9.2 12.7 10.1 9.2 21.3 -15.7 23.2 12.7 0.6

Over/Under 0.2 -3.3 -4.0 -3.9 -2.5 -0.7 -0.4 -5.6 -1.4 -4.4 2.8 -0.2

529 Static Aggressive Allocation MStar Rank 18 80 89 84 75 38 -- 87 40 32 41 77

OR MFS Growth A 6.3 12.9 24.0 4.4 8.8 8.2 8.1 Aug-02 14.4 -16.3 15.7 14.4 0.4

 OR 529 Growth Allocation Index 6.1 15.5 26.9 7.3 10.6 8.8 8.3 18.3 -15.0 18.3 12.8 0.6

Over/Under 0.2 -2.6 -2.9 -2.9 -1.8 -0.6 -0.2 -3.9 -1.3 -2.6 1.6 -0.2

529 Static Moderately Aggressive Rank 60 91 90 90 72 41 -- 94 25 35 45 83

OR MFS Moderate A 5.8 10.9 20.8 3.1 7.0 6.7 7.0 Aug-02 12.1 -15.3 11.7 13.5 0.4

 OR 529 Moderate Allocation Index 5.8 12.8 23.1 5.3 8.2 7.3 7.3 15.1 -14.4 13.3 12.1 0.5

Over/Under 0.0 -1.9 -2.3 -2.2 -1.2 -0.6 -0.3 -3.0 -0.9 -1.6 1.4 -0.1

529 Static Moderate Allocation MStar Rank 51 85 84 89 72 63 88 92 34 48 36 78

OR MFS Conservative A 5.1 8.5 17.2 2.0 5.1 5.2 5.7 Aug-02 10.3 -13.6 7.9 11.5 0.3

 OR 529 Conservative Allocation Index 5.6 10.0 19.3 3.0 5.5 5.5 6.1 12.0 -14.1 7.9 11.0 0.3

Over/Under -0.5 -1.4 -2.1 -1.0 -0.4 -0.4 -0.4 -1.8 0.5 -0.1 0.5 -0.1

529 Static Moderately Conservative Rank 68 81 76 85 60 57 -- 78 43 43 42 66

Performance is presented net of A-share mutual fund expense ratios but gross of loads. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. 

Board Book Page 134



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a
a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Calendar YearsEnding September 30, 2024

OR MFS Lifetime Income A 5.0 8.5 15.3 1.9 4.4 -- 4.3 Feb-15 8.5 -11.8 6.2 9.8 0.2

 OR 529 Lifetime Inc Allocation Index 5.5 8.4 17.0 1.8 4.0 4.5 5.6 10.0 -13.7 5.2 10.0 0.2

Over/Under -0.5 0.2 -1.6 0.2 0.4 -1.3 -1.6 1.9 1.0 -0.2 0.0

529 Static Conservative Allocation MStar Rank 48 8 32 33 13 -- 12 68 51 8 5 13

OR MFS Ltd Maturity A 3.0 4.8 8.0 1.7 2.0 1.8 2.2 Aug-02 5.7 -4.5 -0.2 4.1 --

 Bloomberg US Govt/Credit 1-3 Yr TR USD Index 3.0 4.4 7.2 1.5 1.7 1.6 2.3 4.6 -3.7 -0.5 3.3 0.2

Over/Under 0.0 0.4 0.8 0.2 0.3 0.2 -0.1 1.0 -0.8 0.3 0.8

529 Static Short-Term Bond MStar Rank 48 33 47 47 45 43 -- 26 44 53 48 --

OR MFS US Govt Cash Reserve A 1.2 3.6 4.9 3.0 1.9 1.2 1.2 Aug-02 4.4 1.1 0.0 0.2 --

 ICE BofA 3M US Trsy Note TR USD Index 1.3 4.0 5.4 3.5 2.3 1.7 1.6 5.0 1.5 0.1 0.7 --

Over/Under -0.1 -0.4 -0.5 -0.5 -0.5 -0.5 -0.4 -0.7 -0.4 -0.1 -0.6

529 Static Money Market MStar Rank 46 46 48 52 78 92 -- 57 83 60 92 --

Performance is presented net of A-share mutual fund expense ratios but gross of loads. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. 

Board Book Page 135



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Annual Fee Information
a As of September 30, 2024 

Beneficiaries: 83,073
Total Plan Assets: $1,955,378,138

% of $ Per Assets % of $ Per
$ Assets Beneficiary ($) Assets Beneficiary

Fees Paid by Beneficiary
Invst Mngmt + Shareholder Servicing 9,500,529        0.49% 114     0.49% -     
Brokers - A Share Class 4,779,229        0.24% 58       $1,911,691,509 0.25% -     
Brokers - I Share Class - 0.00% - $43,686,629 - -     
Administration Fees 5,572,920        0.29% 67 0.25% 25*     

Total Plan Fees 19,852,678      1.02% 239     0.98% 25*     

Annual Fee Schedule

*Accounts are subject to an annual $25 account maintenance fee, which is waived for accounts with a balance in excess of $25,000 or for accounts of Oregon residents. Fees
shown exclude loads.
MFS agrees to pay the State $350,000 per year for Board and other expenses.

Total Annual Fees

Board Book Page 136



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Plan Fee History
a As of September 30, 2024 

Beneficiaries

Plan Assets

Fees shown exclude loads and $25 Annual Account Maintenance Fee. MFS retains a portion of loads, depending on the size of the investment. As of June 2017, 33% of 
beneficiaries were assessed the $25 Annual Account Maintenance Fee. 

$177 $169 $186 $208 $211 $201 $209 $226 $216
$251 $265 $285

$197 $213 $231

Dec
2010

Dec
2011

Dec
2012

Dec
2013

Dec
2014

Dec
2015

Dec
2016

Dec
2017

Dec
2018

Dec
2019

Dec
2020

Dec
2021

Dec
2022

Dec
2023

Sep
2024

Total Plan Fees Per Beneficiary

MFS Brokers Administration Fees

$10.7M $10.7M $12.3M $14.5M $15.7M $15.6M $16.8M $18.4M $17.8M $21.0M $22.3M $24.3M
$17.3M $18.1M $19.2M

1.60% 1.52% 1.48% 1.42% 1.41% 1.36% 1.33% 1.27% 1.27% 1.25% 1.19% 1.17%
0.99% 0.98% 0.98%

Dec
2010

Dec
2011

Dec
2012

Dec
2013

Dec
2014

Dec
2015

Dec
2016

Dec
2017

Dec
2018

Dec
2019

Dec
2020

Dec
2021

Dec
2022

Dec
2023

Sep
2024

60,288 63,109 66,265 69,876 74,602 77,878 80,408 81,397 82,417 83,688 84,261 85,469 87,654 84,907 83,073

$666M $699 Mil$835 Mil $1,024
Mil

$1,118
Mil

$1,150
Mil

$1,259
Mil

$1,450
Mil

$1,398
Mil

$1,681
Mil

$1,873
Mil

$2,083
Mil

$1,736
Mil

$1,845
Mil

$1,955
Mil

Total Plan Fees

MFS Brokers Administration Fees Total Plan Fees Per Beneficiary (% of Assets)

Board Book Page 137



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan 

Plan Composition
a As of September 30, 2024 
aa Current Market % of
a Oregon ABLE Plan Value ($) Total

Target-Risk Portfolios 33,315,827 38.9%
OR ABLE Aggressive 12,893,162 15.0%
OR ABLE Moderate 15,051,526 17.6%
OR ABLE Conservative 5,371,139 6.3%

Cash Option 52,385,070 61.1%
OR ABLE Cash 52,385,070 61.1%

Total Assets 85,700,898 100.0%

a ABLE for All Plan
Target-Risk Portfolios 6,145,510 43.8%

ABLE for All Aggressive 2,322,198 16.5%
ABLE for All Moderate 2,872,006 20.5%
ABLE for All Conservative 951,307 6.8%

Cash Option 7,898,406 56.2%
ABLE for All Cash 7,898,406 56.2%

Total Assets 14,043,917 100.0%

a Combined Plans
Target-Risk Portfolios 39,461,338 39.6%

Total ABLE Aggressive 15,215,360 15.3%
Total ABLE Moderate 17,923,532 18.0%
Total ABLE Conservative 6,322,445 6.3%

Cash Option 60,283,477 60.4%
Total ABLE Cash 60,283,477 60.4%

Total Assets 99,744,814 100.0%

Mkt Val % by
Option Type

Board Book Page 138



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan 

Plan Composition
a As of September 30, 2024 

a

a

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Dec-16 Dec-17 Dec-18 Dec-19 Dec-20 Dec-21 Dec-22 Dec-23

Historical Plan Allocation by Option Type

Total ABLE Aggressive

Total ABLE Moderate

Total ABLE Conservative

Total ABLE Cash

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Dec-16 Dec-17 Dec-18 Dec-19 Dec-20 Dec-21 Dec-22 Dec-23

M
ill

io
ns

Plan Market Value History
ABLE for All Plan

Oregon ABLE Plan

Board Book Page 139



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan 

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Plan Portfolios

OR ABLE Aggressive 6.4 14.6 26.6 5.3 8.9 8.9 Jan-17 17.3 -17.1 12.9 13.8 0.4

 OR ABLE Aggressive Index 6.6 15.2 27.0 5.6 9.2 9.2 17.5 -16.9 13.7 13.7 0.4

Over/Under -0.2 -0.6 -0.4 -0.3 -0.3 -0.3 -0.2 -0.2 -0.8 0.1 0.0

529 Static Moderately Aggressive Rank 32 42 40 67 69 61 60 68 84 63 81

OR ABLE Moderate 5.8 10.7 20.4 2.8 5.8 6.2 Jan-17 13.0 -15.5 7.1 12.3 0.3

 OR ABLE Moderate Index 5.9 11.0 20.8 3.1 6.0 6.5 13.2 -15.3 7.7 11.9 0.3

Over/Under -0.1 -0.3 -0.4 -0.3 -0.2 -0.3 -0.2 -0.2 -0.6 0.4 0.0

529 Static Moderately Conservative Rank 32 33 28 62 52 42 36 84 61 19 61

OR ABLE Conservative 4.6 6.9 13.5 1.2 3.1 3.6 Jan-17 8.2 -11.1 2.4 8.7 0.1

 OR ABLE Conservative Index 4.7 7.1 13.8 1.5 3.3 3.9 8.5 -11.0 2.8 8.6 0.1

Over/Under -0.1 -0.2 -0.3 -0.3 -0.2 -0.3 -0.3 -0.1 -0.4 0.1 0.0

529 Static Conservative Allocation MStar Rank 56 64 69 56 50 72 75 49 75 38 41
OR ABLE Cash 1.3 3.8 5.2 3.4 2.1 1.8 Jan-17 4.8 1.5 0.0 0.3 --

 ICE BofA 3M US Trsy Note TR USD Index 1.3 4.0 5.4 3.5 2.3 2.1 5.0 1.5 0.1 0.7
Over/Under 0.0 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 -0.2 -0.3 -0.2 0.0 -0.1 -0.4

529 Static Money Market MStar Rank 33 27 29 23 33 42 26 38 68 75 --

Ending September 30, 2024

Returns for the Aggressive, Moderate, and Conservative options are based on model performance net of the 30 bps state fee until December 2018. Returns starting in January 2019 are actual results and provided by 
Vestwell.         
To the extent the interest rate on the Cash option during a particular period is less than the state fee, the Program Manager and State will waive the portion of the Administrative Fee that exceeds such interest rate for the 
applicable period.
Index returns are based on target allocations.

Calendar Years

Performance is presented net of all fees, including program administration fees and underlying mutual fund fees and expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst.

Board Book Page 140



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan 

Annual Fee Information
a As of September 30, 2024 

Total Beneficiaries: 7,988
Oregon ABLE Beneficiaries: 6,865
ABLE for All Beneficiaries: 1,123

% of $ Per Assets % of $ Per
$ Assets Beneficiary $ Assets Beneficiary

Fees Paid by Beneficiary
Investment Management 17,062    0.02% 2       0.02% -

Oregon Annual Account Maintenance Fee 240,275  0.24% 30     85,700,898 - 35     
Fee paid to the State 54,920 0.06% 7 - 8

Fee paid to Vestwell 185,355 0.19% 23 - 27

ABLE for All Annual Account Maintenance Fee 39,305    0.04% 5       14,043,917 - 35     
Fee paid to the State 8,984 0.01% 1 - 8

Fee paid to Vestwell 30,321 0.03% 4 - 27

Board Administration Fee 299,234  0.30% 37     0.30% -

Total Plan Fees 595,876  0.60% 75     99,744,814    0.32% 35     

Total Net Fees by Service Provider
Investment Managers 17,062    0.02% 2       0.02% -

Vestwell 215,676  0.22% 27     - 27     
State 363,138  0.36% 45     0.30% 8       

Total Plan Fees 595,876  0.60% 75     99,744,814    0.32% 35     

Total Annual Fees Annual Fee Schedule

Total Plan Assets: $99,744,814
Oregon Plan Assets: $85,700,898
ABLE for All Plan Assets: $14,043,917

Board Book Page 141



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan 

Plan Fee History
a As of September 30, 2024 

Beneficiaries

Plan Assets

$32 $37

$51 $56
$63

$69 $67 $71 $73 $73 $75

Dec 2016 Dec 2017 Dec 2018 Dec 2019 Dec 2020 Dec 2021 Dec 2022 Dec 2023 Mar 2024 Jun 2024 Sep 2024

Total Plan Fees Per Beneficiary

Investment Managers Vestwell State

$7,005 $42,218 $103,571 $158,768 $227,759
$314,275

$399,218
$505,227 $538,551 $565,054 $595,876

1.56%

0.99% 1.02% 0.86% 0.72% 0.65% 0.66% 0.62% 0.61% 0.61% 0.60%

Dec 2016 Dec 2017 Dec 2018 Dec 2019 Dec 2020 Dec 2021 Dec 2022 Dec 2023 Mar 2024 Jun 2024 Sep 2024

217 1,140 2,035 2,855 3,615 4,571 5,968 7,120 7,395 7,698 7,988

$0.4 Mil $4.3 Mil $10.2 Mil $18.4 Mil $31.8 Mil $48.4 Mil $60.1 Mil $81.2 Mil $88.3 Mil $93.3 Mil $99.7 Mil

Total Plan Fees

Investment Managers Vestwell State Total Plan Fees Per Beneficiary (% of Assets)

Board Book Page 142



Appendix

Board Book Page 143



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 # 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

College Enrollment Year Portfolios

OR CSP 2043 -- -- -- -- -- 4.4 Aug-24 -- -- -- -- --

 OR CSP 2043 Index 4.6

Over/Under -0.2

529 Target-Enrollment 2039+ MStar Rank -- -- -- -- -- 26 -- -- -- -- --

OR CSP 2042 6.7 16.1 28.8 -- -- 17.1 Aug-23 -- -- -- -- --

 OR CSP 2042 Index 6.8 16.6 29.1 17.5

Over/Under -0.1 -0.5 -0.3 -0.4

529 Target-Enrollment 2039+ MStar Rank 42 39 39 -- -- 37 -- -- -- -- --

OR CSP 2041 6.7 16.1 28.8 -- -- 13.7 Aug-22 18.7 -- -- -- --

 OR CSP 2041 Index 6.8 16.5 29.0 14.1 18.8

Over/Under -0.1 -0.4 -0.2 -0.4 -0.1

529 Target-Enrollment 2039+ MStar Rank 42 39 39 -- -- 49 74 -- -- -- --

OR CSP 2040 6.6 15.9 28.5 6.2 -- 5.3 Aug-21 18.6 -16.9 -- -- --

 OR CSP 2040 Index 6.8 16.4 28.8 6.4 5.6 18.6 -16.7

Over/Under -0.2 -0.5 -0.3 -0.2 -0.3 0.0 -0.2

529 Target-Enrollment 2039+ MStar Rank 47 44 41 46 -- 41 77 26 -- -- --

OR CSP 2039 6.6 15.6 28.1 6.1 -- 10.7 Aug-20 18.1 -16.7 14.9 -- --

 OR CSP 2039 Index 6.7 16.1 28.3 6.3 10.9 18.3 -16.6 15.2

Over/Under -0.1 -0.5 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 -0.3

529 Target-Enrollment 2039+ MStar Rank 52 58 54 48 -- 64 83 13 82 -- --

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

Performance is presented net of all fees, including program administration fees and underlying mutual fund fees and expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst.

Board Book Page 144



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 # 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

OR CSP 2038 6.5 15.3 27.6 5.9 9.9 9.9 Oct-19 17.9 -16.6 14.5 14.6 0.5

 OR CSP 2038 Index 6.6 15.7 27.8 6.1 10.1 10.1 18.0 -16.5 15.0 14.8 0.5

Over/Under -0.1 -0.4 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 -0.1 -0.5 -0.2 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2039+ MStar Rank 60 75 74 59 64 64 85 6 90 80 61

OR CSP 2037 6.5 14.9 26.9 5.6 9.6 9.8 Nov-18 17.5 -16.5 14.2 14.2 0.5

 OR CSP 2037 Index 6.5 15.2 27.2 5.8 9.9 10.0 17.6 -16.4 14.6 14.4 0.5

Over/Under 0.0 -0.3 -0.3 -0.2 -0.3 -0.2 -0.1 -0.1 -0.4 -0.2 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2036 MStar Rank 30 15 15 36 48 42 51 22 83 66 49

OR CSP 2036 6.4 14.4 26.2 5.4 9.3 8.1 Oct-18 17.1 -16.4 13.7 14.2 0.4

 OR CSP 2036 Index 6.5 14.7 26.4 5.6 9.6 8.3 17.2 -16.3 14.2 14.3 0.5

Over/Under -0.1 -0.3 -0.2 -0.2 -0.3 -0.2 -0.1 -0.1 -0.5 -0.1 -0.1

529 Target-Enrollment 2036 MStar Rank 38 34 34 46 66 64 70 17 89 66 68

OR CSP 2035 6.3 13.9 25.4 5.1 9.1 7.9 Oct-18 16.6 -16.3 13.3 14.4 0.4

 OR CSP 2035 Index 6.4 14.2 25.6 5.3 9.3 8.1 16.8 -16.2 13.9 14.1 0.5

Over/Under -0.1 -0.3 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 -0.6 0.3 -0.1

529 Target-Enrollment 2036 MStar Rank 54 61 59 54 72 74 84 13 92 65 73

OR CSP 2034 6.2 13.4 24.6 4.8 8.8 7.7 Oct-18 16.2 -16.2 13.0 14.2 0.4

 OR CSP 2034 Index 6.3 13.7 24.8 5.0 9.0 7.9 16.4 -16.1 13.5 14.0 0.4

Over/Under -0.1 -0.3 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 -0.5 0.2 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2033 MStar Rank 24 21 23 32 24 18 28 47 48 49 34

Performance is presented net of all fees, including program administration fees and underlying mutual fund fees and expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst.

Board Book Page 145



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 # 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

OR CSP 2033 6.1 12.9 23.9 4.5 8.5 7.5 Oct-18 15.8 -16.1 12.6 14.2 0.4

 OR CSP 2033 Index 6.2 13.2 24.1 4.7 8.7 7.7 15.9 -16.0 13.0 13.8 0.4

Over/Under -0.1 -0.3 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 -0.1 -0.4 0.4 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2033 MStar Rank 30 30 29 39 29 22 34 44 53 49 37

OR CSP 2032 6.1 12.5 23.3 4.3 8.3 7.3 Oct-18 15.2 -16.0 12.1 14.1 0.4

 OR CSP 2032 Index 6.1 12.7 23.4 4.4 8.4 7.5 15.4 -15.8 12.6 13.7 0.4

Over/Under 0.0 -0.2 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.5 0.4 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2033 MStar Rank 35 41 40 45 45 45 45 37 65 49 47

OR CSP 2031 6.0 11.9 22.4 3.9 8.0 7.1 Oct-18 14.7 -15.8 11.7 14.2 0.4

 OR CSP 2031 Index 6.0 12.1 22.6 4.1 8.1 7.2 14.9 -15.6 12.1 13.5 0.4

Over/Under 0.0 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 -0.1 -0.2 -0.2 -0.4 0.7 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2030 MStar Rank 14 18 16 31 22 18 20 57 42 31 26

OR CSP 2030 5.9 11.3 21.4 3.5 7.5 6.8 Oct-18 14.0 -15.6 11.0 13.9 0.4

 OR CSP 2030 Index 5.9 11.4 21.5 3.7 7.6 6.9 14.2 -15.5 11.5 13.1 0.4

Over/Under 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 -0.2 -0.1 -0.1 -0.2 -0.1 -0.5 0.8 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2030 MStar Rank 21 27 22 41 26 19 33 47 49 49 33

OR CSP 2029 5.8 10.6 20.4 3.1 7.1 6.5 Oct-18 13.2 -15.4 10.5 13.6 0.4

 OR CSP 2029 Index 5.7 10.7 20.4 3.3 7.1 6.5 13.4 -15.3 10.9 12.9 0.4

Over/Under 0.1 -0.1 0.0 -0.2 0.0 0.0 -0.2 -0.1 -0.4 0.7 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2030 MStar Rank 32 37 34 53 33 26 49 40 55 52 45

Performance is presented net of all fees, including program administration fees and underlying mutual fund fees and expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst.

Board Book Page 146



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 # 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

OR CSP 2028 5.4 9.8 19.1 2.6 6.5 6.1 Oct-18 12.3 -15.2 9.7 13.3 0.3

 OR CSP 2028 Index 5.3 9.8 19.1 2.7 6.6 6.2 12.5 -15.0 10.1 12.6 0.3

Over/Under 0.1 0.0 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.2 -0.2 -0.4 0.7 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2027 MStar Rank 9 8 6 24 18 14 13 87 28 7 20

OR CSP 2027 5.0 8.9 17.3 2.0 5.9 5.6 Oct-18 11.4 -15.0 8.8 12.7 0.3

 OR CSP 2027 Index 4.7 8.9 17.3 2.2 5.9 5.7 11.6 -14.8 9.2 12.0 0.3

Over/Under 0.3 0.0 0.0 -0.2 0.0 -0.1 -0.2 -0.2 -0.4 0.7 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2027 MStar Rank 25 23 22 45 26 25 25 84 36 10 32

OR CSP 2026 4.4 7.8 15.0 1.6 5.4 5.2 Oct-18 10.2 -14.0 7.9 12.4 0.3

 OR CSP 2026 Index 4.1 7.8 15.0 1.8 5.4 5.3 10.4 -13.8 8.3 11.6 0.3

Over/Under 0.3 0.0 0.0 -0.2 0.0 -0.1 -0.2 -0.2 -0.4 0.8 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2027 MStar Rank 64 64 67 67 48 43 67 60 45 31 62

OR CSP 2025 3.8 6.8 12.6 1.4 4.9 4.9 Oct-18 8.8 -12.4 7.0 12.0 0.3

 OR CSP 2025 Index 3.4 6.6 12.5 1.5 4.9 5.0 9.1 -12.3 7.4 11.2 0.3

Over/Under 0.4 0.2 0.1 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.3 -0.1 -0.4 0.8 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2024 MStar Rank 41 16 17 46 6 14 17 87 24 8 9

OR CSP 2024 2.9 5.6 10.1 1.2 4.5 4.7 Oct-18 7.4 -10.4 6.1 11.2 0.3

 OR CSP 2024 Index 2.6 5.6 10.1 1.4 4.6 4.7 7.7 -10.1 6.4 10.5 0.3

Over/Under 0.3 0.0 0.0 -0.2 -0.1 0.0 -0.3 -0.3 -0.3 0.7 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2024 MStar Rank 75 68 79 56 25 25 69 43 34 10 21

Performance is presented net of all fees, including program administration fees and underlying mutual fund fees and expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst.

Board Book Page 147



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 # 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

OR CSP 2023 2.3 4.9 8.1 1.3 4.1 4.3 Oct-18 6.3 -8.0 4.9 9.9 0.3

 OR CSP 2023 Index 2.1 4.8 8.1 1.4 4.1 4.4 6.6 -7.8 5.1 9.2 0.3

Over/Under 0.2 0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.3 -0.2 -0.2 0.7 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2024 MStar Rank 94 84 96 50 51 31 91 17 53 55 21

OR CSP 2022 1.8 4.1 6.5 1.7 3.9 4.1 Oct-18 5.4 -5.1 3.9 8.4 0.3

 OR CSP 2022 Index 1.6 4.1 6.6 1.9 3.9 4.1 5.7 -4.8 4.2 7.8 0.3

Over/Under 0.2 0.0 -0.1 -0.2 0.0 0.0 -0.3 -0.3 -0.3 0.6 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2021 MStar Rank 23 42 42 64 36 18 38 48 16 9 61

OR CSP 2021 1.4 3.8 5.6 2.1 3.6 3.8 Oct-18 4.9 -2.9 3.0 6.8 0.3

 OR CSP 2021 Index 1.5 4.0 5.8 2.3 3.7 3.9 5.1 -2.7 3.2 6.6 0.4

Over/Under -0.1 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 -0.1 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 0.2 -0.1

529 Target-Enrollment 2021 MStar Rank 55 55 46 52 36 18 64 25 28 65 35
OR CSP 2020 1.4 3.9 5.5 2.7 3.2 3.4 Oct-18 4.8 -0.9 1.8 4.5 0.4
 OR CSP 2020 Index 1.4 4.0 5.5 2.8 3.3 3.5 5.0 -0.7 2.1 4.4 0.4

Over/Under 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.2 -0.2 -0.3 0.1 0.0
529 Target-Enrollment 2021 MStar Rank 55 42 55 25 50 35 64 1 86 90 22

OR CSP 2019 1.3 3.8 5.3 3.1 2.3 2.4 Oct-18 4.8 0.7 0.1 1.2 --
 OR CSP 2019 Index 1.3 3.9 5.5 3.2 3.0 3.1 5.0 0.7 1.0 3.0

Over/Under 0.0 -0.1 -0.2 -0.1 -0.7 -0.7 -0.2 0.0 -0.9 -1.8 --

Ranks for the oldest college enrollment date fund are not shown due to insufficient peer group members.

Performance is presented net of all fees, including program administration fees and underlying mutual fund fees and expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst.

Board Book Page 148



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

College Enrollment Year Glidepath
As of September 30, 2024 

a

a

Underlying Funds Ticker Asset Class '43 '42 '41 '40 '39 '38 '37 '36 '35 '34 '33 '32 '31 '30 '29 '28 '27 '26 '25 '24 '23 '22 '21 '20 '19

Vanguard Total Stk Mkt Idx Inst+ VSMPX US Equity 54 54 54 53 52 50 48 46 43 41 39 37 34 31 28 25 20 15 11 6 3 - - - -

Vanguard Total Intl Stk Idx Inst+ VTPSX Non-US Equity 36 36 36 35 34 33 32 30 29 27 26 25 23 21 19 17 14 10 7 4 2 - - - -

Vanguard Inflation-Prot Secs I VIPIX Inflation Rel 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 5 5 6 6 7 8 9 8 6 3 0 - - - - - -

Vanguard Total Bd Mkt Idx Inst+ VBMPX Intermediate FI 7 7 7 8 9 11 13 16 19 21 23 25 29 32 35 30 23 13 1 - - - - - -

Vanguard Total Intl Bd Idx Inst VTIFX Intermediate FI 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 5 5 6 6 7 8 9 8 6 3 0 - - - - - -

Vanguard ST Bond Idx Ins+ VBIPX Short Term - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 8 21 35 50 30 23 15 5 5 -

Vanguard ST Infl-Prot Sec Idx VTSPX Short Term - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 6 11 20 31 30 23 15 5 5 -

Vanguard Treasury Money Mkt VUSXX Money Market - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 30 49 71 90 90 100

Allocations may not add up to 100% due to rounding.

Underlying Asset Allocation by College Enrollment Year

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2043 2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

US Equity Non-US Equity Inflation Rel Intermediate FI Short Term Money Market

Board Book Page 149



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Target-Risk Portfolios
As of September 30, 2024 

a

a

Underlying Funds Ticker Asset Class Aggressive Moderate Conservative

Vanguard Total Stock Mkt Idx Inst+ VSMPX US Equity 48 30 12

Vanguard Total Intl Stock Idx Inst+ VTPSX Non-US Equity 32 20 8

Vanguard Inflation-Protected Secs I VIPIX Inflation Rel 3 8 7

Vanguard Total Bond Market Idx Inst+ VBMPX Intermediate FI 14 34 31

Vanguard Total Intl Bd Idx Inst VTIFX Intermediate FI 3 8 7

Vanguard Short-Term Bond Idx Ins+ VBIPX Short Term - - 25

Vanguard ST Infl-Prot Sec Idx Ins VTSPX Short Term - - 10

Allocations may not add up to 100% due to rounding.

Underlying Asset Allocation by Target-Risk Portfolio

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Aggressive Moderate Conservative

US Equity Non-US Equity Inflation Related Intermediate Fixed Income Short-Term Fixed Income

Board Book Page 150



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Fee Information
a As of September 30, 2024 
a Underlying State 529 Direct Sold
a Current Market Expense Administration Median

Value ($) Ratio Fee Total Fee Fee Difference
College Enrollment Year Portfolios
OR CSP 2043 629,850 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.27% -0.02%
OR CSP 2042 5,046,981 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.27% -0.02%
OR CSP 2041 14,290,119 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.27% -0.02%
OR CSP 2040 25,037,965 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.27% -0.02%
OR CSP 2039 33,830,577 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.27% -0.02%
OR CSP 2038 47,882,121 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.27% -0.02%
OR CSP 2037 50,383,677 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.27% -0.03%
OR CSP 2036 70,874,256 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.27% -0.03%
OR CSP 2035 74,868,516 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.27% -0.03%
OR CSP 2034 81,038,097 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.29% -0.04%
OR CSP 2033 87,853,091 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.29% -0.04%
OR CSP 2032 96,864,632 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.29% -0.04%
OR CSP 2031 97,207,920 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.28% -0.04%
OR CSP 2030 110,851,006 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.28% -0.04%
OR CSP 2029 112,997,271 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.28% -0.04%
OR CSP 2028 119,315,860 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.28% -0.04%
OR CSP 2027 116,082,632 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.28% -0.04%
OR CSP 2026 121,905,077 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.28% -0.04%
OR CSP 2025 128,699,403 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.40% -0.16%
OR CSP 2024 107,487,313 0.06% 0.20% 0.26% 0.40% -0.15%
OR CSP 2023 74,139,214 0.06% 0.20% 0.26% 0.40% -0.14%
OR CSP 2022 49,617,684 0.08% 0.20% 0.28% 0.98% -0.70%
OR CSP 2021 35,053,327 0.09% 0.20% 0.29% 0.98% -0.70%
OR CSP 2020 22,809,413 0.09% 0.20% 0.29% 0.98% -0.70%
OR CSP 2019 15,904,257 0.09% 0.20% 0.29% 0.29% 0.00%

Board Book Page 151



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan 

Fee Information
a As of September 30, 2024 
a Underlying State 529 Direct Sold
a Current Market Expense Administration Median

Value ($) Ratio Fee Total Fee Fee Difference
Target-Risk Portfolios
OR CSP Aggressive 287,072,357 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.35% -0.10%
OR CSP Moderate 117,698,151 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.38% -0.14%
OR CSP Conservative 43,064,037 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.34% -0.10%
Balanced
OR CSP Balanced Index 117,392,929 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.38% -0.14%
OR CSP Social Choice Balanced 48,028,887 0.30% 0.20% 0.50% 0.38% 0.12%
US Equity
OR CSP US Equity Index 526,170,850 0.02% 0.20% 0.22% 0.32% -0.10%
OR CSP Diversified US Equity 185,344,058 0.47% 0.20% 0.67% 0.32% 0.35%
Non-US Equity
OR CSP International Equity Index 67,986,052 0.07% 0.20% 0.27% 0.36% -0.09%
OR CSP Diversified Intl Equity 26,425,458 0.38% 0.20% 0.58% 0.36% 0.22%
Fixed Income
OR CSP Fixed Income Index 30,666,547 0.03% 0.20% 0.23% 0.36% -0.13%
OR CSP Diversified Fixed Income 11,009,831 0.35% 0.20% 0.55% 0.36% 0.19%
OR CSP ST Fixed Income Index 9,333,318 0.04% 0.20% 0.24% 0.45% -0.21%
Inflation-Related Strategies
OR CSP Diversified Inflation Protection 11,598,161 0.17% 0.20% 0.37% 0.35% 0.02%
Stable Value/Cash
OR CSP FDIC-Insured Cash 174,473,998 N/A N/A N/A 0.25%

Total Plan 3,356,934,894

Total Plan Ex Cash 3,182,460,895 0.07% 0.20% 0.27%

Board Book Page 152



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a Ticker Target QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 15 Yrs 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Underlying Funds - Glidepath, Target-Risk, and Static Index Portfolios
Vanguard Total Stock Mkt Idx Instl Pls VSMPX -- 6.2 20.6 35.3 10.1 15.2 12.8 13.7 26.0 -19.5 25.7 21.0 30.8 -5.1 21.2 0.7
 Custom Index (CRSP US Total Mkt) 6.2 20.6 35.2 10.1 15.2 12.8 13.8 26.0 -19.5 25.7 21.0 30.8 -5.2 21.2 0.7

Over/Under 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0
Large Blend MStar MF Rank 33 48 45 62 46 38 36 36 79 65 19 47 51 58 52

Vanguard Total Intl Stock Idx InstlPls VTPSX -- 8.0 13.6 24.9 4.0 7.8 5.5 5.6 15.5 -16.0 8.7 11.3 21.6 -14.4 27.6 0.3
 Custom Index (FTSE Glo All Cap ex US) 8.4 14.1 25.2 4.1 8.0 5.5 5.6 15.8 -16.1 8.8 11.2 21.8 -14.6 27.4 0.3

Over/Under -0.4 -0.5 -0.3 -0.1 -0.2 0.0 0.0 -0.3 0.1 -0.1 0.1 -0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0
Foreign Large Blend MStar MF Rank 29 39 46 56 54 57 75 64 55 69 42 64 48 33 50

Vanguard Inflation-Protected Secs I VIPIX -- 4.1 5.0 9.9 -0.6 2.5 2.5 3.1 3.8 -11.9 5.7 11.0 8.2 -1.4 3.0 0.0
 Bloomberg US Treasury US TIPS TR USD Index 4.1 4.9 9.8 -0.6 2.6 2.5 3.2 3.9 -11.8 6.0 11.0 8.4 -1.3 3.0 0.0

Over/Under 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.3 0.0 -0.2 -0.1 0.0 0.0
Inflation-Protected Bond MStar MF Rank 70 50 49 43 50 32 33 43 48 35 48 66 33 64 46

Vanguard Total Bond Market Idx InstlPls VBMPX -- 5.1 4.4 11.4 -1.4 0.3 1.8 2.6 5.7 -13.1 -1.6 7.7 8.7 0.0 3.6 N/A
 Custom Index (Barclays US Agg Flt-Adj) 5.1 4.5 11.5 -1.4 0.4 1.9 2.6 5.6 -13.1 -1.6 7.7 8.9 -0.1 3.6 N/A

Over/Under 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.2 0.1 0.0 N/A
Intermediate Core Bond MStar MF Rank 66 82 76 60 74 65 72 51 42 62 57 43 35 49 N/A

Vanguard Total Intl Bd Idx Institutional VTIFX -- 4.1 3.6 10.4 -0.7 -0.2 2.2 -- 8.9 -12.9 -2.2 4.6 7.9 3.0 2.5 N/A
 Bloomberg Gbl Agg xUSD Fl Aj RIC TR HUSD Index 3.9 3.6 10.2 -0.6 -0.1 2.3 8.7 -12.7 -2.1 4.7 8.1 3.2 2.6 N/A

Over/Under 0.2 0.0 0.2 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 0.2 -0.2 -0.1 -0.1 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 N/A
Global Bond MStar MF Rank 77 69 77 43 54 13 -- 12 45 37 85 40 4 100 N/A

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

Performance for the OCSP plan options is net of mutual fund expenses and program administration fees. Performance for the underlying mutual funds is net of mutual fund expenses. Percentile ranks 
are 1 = best and 100 = worst. 

Board Book Page 153



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a Ticker Target QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 15 Yrs 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

Vanguard Short-Term Bond Idx InstlPls VBIPX -- 3.5 4.5 8.1 0.9 1.5 1.7 1.9 4.9 -5.5 -1.1 4.7 4.9 1.4 1.2 N/A
 Bloomberg US Govt/Credit 1-5 Yr TR USD Index 3.5 4.5 8.1 0.9 1.5 1.8 1.9 4.9 -5.5 -1.0 4.7 5.0 1.4 1.3 N/A

Over/Under 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 N/A
Short-Term Bond MStar MF Rank 19 90 64 93 89 86 88 87 73 93 28 47 30 87 N/A

Vanguard Shrt-Term Infl-Prot Sec Idx Ins VTSPX -- 2.5 4.9 7.5 2.5 3.6 2.4 -- 4.6 -2.8 5.3 5.0 4.8 0.6 0.8 0.4
 Bloomberg US TIPS 0-5 Year TR USD Index 2.5 4.8 7.5 2.5 3.6 2.4 2.3 4.6 -2.7 5.3 5.1 4.9 0.6 0.9 0.4

Over/Under 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0
Inflation-Protected Bond MStar MF Rank 100 77 100 4 8 43 -- 31 1 61 97 100 1 100 1

Vanguard Treasury Money Market Investor VUSXX -- 1.3 4.0 5.4 3.5 2.3 1.6 1.1 5.1 1.5 0.0 0.5 2.1 1.8 0.8 N/A
 ICE BofA 3M US Trsy Note TR USD Index 1.3 4.0 5.4 3.5 2.3 1.7 1.1 5.0 1.5 0.1 0.7 2.3 1.9 0.8 N/A

Over/Under 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 0.0 N/A
Money Market - Taxable MStar MF Rank 4 2 3 13 5 3 8 14 40 34 2 4 2 5 N/A

Performance for the OCSP plan options is net of mutual fund expenses and program administration fees. Performance for the underlying mutual funds is net of mutual fund expenses. Percentile ranks 
are 1 = best and 100 = worst. 

Board Book Page 154



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a Ticker Target QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 15 Yrs 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

US Equity
OR CSP Diversified US Equity 100 5.5 18.4 32.2 8.2 13.9 12.1 -- 25.0 -20.5 26.9 17.6 27.6 -5.4 23.8 0.6
 Russell 3000 TR USD Index 6.2 20.6 35.2 10.3 15.3 12.8 13.8 26.0 -19.2 25.7 20.9 31.0 -5.2 21.1 0.7

Over/Under -0.7 -2.2 -3.0 -2.1 -1.4 -0.7 -1.0 -1.3 1.2 -3.3 -3.4 -0.2 2.7 -0.1
529 Static All Cap MStar Rank 79 43 41 46 38 34 -- 37 73 25 52 58 33 19 37
LSV Value Equity LSVEX 30 7.7 15.5 26.2 9.2 11.1 8.9 11.4 12.4 -5.8 28.5 -1.6 25.2 -14.6 18.3 0.4
 Russell 1000 Value TR USD Index 9.4 16.7 27.8 9.0 10.7 9.2 11.2 11.5 -7.5 25.2 2.8 26.5 -8.3 13.7 0.4

Over/Under -1.7 -1.2 -1.6 0.2 0.4 -0.3 0.2 0.9 1.7 3.3 -4.4 -1.3 -6.3 4.6 0.0
Large Value MStar MF Rank 53 56 63 64 60 71 44 45 55 29 88 57 95 30 80

Vanguard Institutional Index I VINIX 30 5.9 22.0 36.3 11.9 15.9 13.3 14.1 26.2 -18.1 28.7 18.4 31.5 -4.4 21.8 0.7
 S&P 500 TR USD Index 5.9 22.1 36.4 11.9 16.0 13.4 14.1 26.3 -18.1 28.7 18.4 31.5 -4.4 21.8 0.7

Over/Under 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Large Blend MStar MF Rank 47 24 27 23 22 11 13 27 51 21 40 24 26 36 19

T. Rowe Price Lrg Cp Gr I TRLGX 25 2.6 24.6 42.4 7.8 17.4 16.1 16.4 46.2 -35.2 23.2 39.6 28.5 4.3 37.8 0.7
 Russell 1000 Growth TR USD Index 3.2 24.5 42.2 12.0 19.7 16.5 16.5 42.7 -29.1 27.6 38.5 36.4 -1.5 30.2 0.8

Over/Under -0.6 0.1 0.2 -4.2 -2.3 -0.4 -0.1 3.5 -6.1 -4.4 1.1 -7.9 5.8 7.6 -0.1
Large Growth MStar MF Rank 66 31 37 58 35 13 9 18 76 45 34 88 10 5 35

Champlain Mid Cap Institutional CIPIX 10 3.4 4.8 17.4 -1.7 9.0 11.1 12.5 15.7 -26.3 24.9 29.4 26.6 3.8 19.5 0.3
 Russell Mid Cap TR USD Index 9.2 14.6 29.3 5.8 11.3 10.2 12.5 17.2 -17.3 22.6 17.1 30.5 -9.1 18.5 0.4

Over/Under -5.8 -9.8 -11.9 -7.5 -2.3 0.9 0.0 -1.5 -9.0 2.3 12.3 -3.9 12.9 1.0 -0.1
Mid-Cap Blend MStar MF Rank 98 97 96 99 86 4 10 55 98 39 4 57 1 20 80

DFA US Small Cap I DFSTX 5 8.6 10.9 26.1 6.6 12.2 9.6 11.8 17.6 -13.5 30.6 11.2 21.7 -13.1 11.5 0.4
 Russell 2000 TR USD Index 9.3 11.2 26.8 1.8 9.4 8.8 10.6 16.9 -20.4 14.8 20.0 25.5 -11.0 14.6 0.3

Over/Under -0.7 -0.3 -0.7 4.8 2.8 0.8 1.2 0.7 6.9 15.8 -8.8 -3.8 -2.1 -3.1 0.1
Small Blend MStar MF Rank 54 51 39 28 21 30 26 34 24 14 58 80 54 62 20

Performance for the OCSP plan options is net of mutual fund expenses and program administration fees. Performance for the underlying mutual funds is net of mutual fund expenses. Percentile ranks 
are 1 = best and 100 = worst. 

Board Book Page 155



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a Ticker Target QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 15 Yrs 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

Non-US Equity
OR CSP Diversified Intl Equity 100.0 8.8 14.1 24.2 2.1 9.0 6.9 -- 17.3 -20.5 4.6 24.2 24.2 -14.3 33.0 0.3
 MSCI ACWI Ex USA NR USD Index 8.1 14.2 25.4 4.1 7.6 5.2 5.5 15.6 -16.0 7.8 10.7 21.5 -14.2 27.2 0.3

Over/Under 0.7 -0.1 -1.2 -2.0 1.4 1.7 1.7 -4.5 -3.2 13.5 2.7 -0.1 5.8 0.0
529 Static Non US Equity MStar Rank 15 24 66 70 14 9 -- 28 77 85 8 28 32 8 19
Vanguard International Growth Adm VWILX 25 7.4 15.8 28.9 -3.6 10.8 9.0 8.8 14.8 -30.8 -0.7 59.7 31.5 -12.6 43.2 0.4
 MSCI ACWI Ex USA Growth NR USD Index 6.9 14.1 26.7 0.8 7.1 6.0 6.2 14.0 -23.1 5.1 22.2 27.3 -14.4 32.0 0.3

Over/Under 0.5 1.7 2.2 -4.4 3.7 3.0 2.6 0.8 -7.7 -5.8 37.5 4.2 1.8 11.2 0.1
Foreign Large Growth MStar MF Rank 42 20 32 85 10 10 12 70 81 88 3 25 40 7 24

Dodge & Cox International Stock I DODFX 40 10.0 13.4 21.2 8.1 9.1 4.8 6.3 16.7 -6.8 11.0 2.1 22.8 -18.0 23.9 0.3
 MSCI EAFE NR USD Index 7.3 13.0 24.8 5.5 8.2 5.7 6.0 18.2 -14.5 11.3 7.8 22.0 -13.8 25.0 0.3

Over/Under 2.7 0.4 -3.6 2.6 0.9 -0.9 0.3 -1.5 7.7 -0.3 -5.7 0.8 -4.2 -1.1 0.0
Foreign Large Value MStar MF Rank 19 45 66 44 37 63 24 67 31 62 62 9 78 49 54

Vanguard Total Intl Stock Idx InstlPls VTPSX 22.5 8.0 13.6 24.9 4.0 7.8 5.5 5.6 15.5 -16.0 8.7 11.3 21.6 -14.4 27.6 0.3
 Custom Index (FTSE Glo All Cap ex US) 8.4 14.1 25.2 4.1 8.0 5.5 5.6 15.8 -16.1 8.8 11.2 21.8 -14.6 27.4 0.3

Over/Under -0.4 -0.5 -0.3 -0.1 -0.2 0.0 0.0 -0.3 0.1 -0.1 0.1 -0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0
Foreign Large Blend MStar MF Rank 29 39 46 56 54 57 75 64 55 69 42 64 48 33 50

Vanguard Emerging Mkts Stock Idx Adm VEMAX 5.0 9.3 17.3 25.0 1.6 6.4 4.2 4.2 9.2 -17.8 0.9 15.2 20.3 -14.6 31.4 0.2
 Custom Index (FTSE EMs AC CHN A) 10.2 18.8 26.8 2.3 6.9 4.5 4.6 9.7 -17.6 1.4 15.4 20.5 -14.8 31.6 0.2

Over/Under -0.9 -1.5 -1.8 -0.7 -0.5 -0.3 -0.4 -0.5 -0.2 -0.5 -0.2 -0.2 0.2 -0.2 0.0
Diversified Emerging Mkts MStar MF Rank 11 17 34 30 47 48 55 67 26 39 70 51 28 71 41

DFA International Small Company I DFISX 7.5 9.0 12.4 24.5 2.7 8.4 6.4 7.4 14.4 -17.1 14.2 9.3 24.2 -19.4 30.2 0.3
 MSCI World Ex USA Small Cap NR USD Index 10.4 11.5 23.4 0.0 6.9 6.0 6.9 12.6 -20.6 11.1 12.8 25.4 -18.1 31.0 0.2

Over/Under -1.4 0.9 1.1 2.7 1.5 0.4 0.5 1.8 3.5 3.1 -3.5 -1.2 -1.3 -0.8 0.1
Foregin Small/Mid Blend MStar MF Rank 44 40 44 24 34 48 48 57 15 17 62 44 63 84 34

Performance for the OCSP plan options is net of mutual fund expenses and program administration fees. Performance for the underlying mutual funds is net of mutual fund expenses. Percentile ranks 
are 1 = best and 100 = worst. 

Board Book Page 156



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a Ticker Target QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 15 Yrs 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

Fixed Income
OR CSP Diversified Fixed Income 100.0 5.5 5.3 12.5 -0.6 0.9 2.1 -- 6.6 -12.3 -1.2 7.0 8.3 0.0 3.6 N/A
 Bloomberg US Agg Bond TR USD Index 5.2 4.4 11.6 -1.4 0.3 1.8 2.6 5.5 -13.0 -1.5 7.5 8.7 0.0 3.5 N/A

Over/Under 0.3 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.3 1.1 0.7 0.3 -0.5 -0.4 0.0 0.1 N/A
529 Static Intermediate Bond MStar Rank 10 26 31 46 49 32 -- 29 47 54 54 59 27 29 N/A
Dodge & Cox Income I DODIX 40 5.6 5.8 13.5 0.4 2.1 2.9 3.7 7.7 -10.9 -0.9 9.5 9.7 -0.3 4.4 N/A
 Bloomberg US Agg Bond TR USD Index 5.2 4.4 11.6 -1.4 0.3 1.8 2.6 5.5 -13.0 -1.5 7.5 8.7 0.0 3.5 N/A

Over/Under 0.4 1.4 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.1 1.1 2.2 2.1 0.6 2.0 1.0 -0.3 0.9 N/A
Intermediate Core-Plus Bond MStar MF Rank 17 32 23 5 7 9 30 10 9 67 27 38 38 57 N/A

DoubleLine Core Fixed Income I DBLFX 40 5.6 5.7 12.6 -0.7 0.7 2.2 -- 6.4 -12.8 -0.3 5.6 8.0 0.0 4.7 N/A
 Bloomberg US Agg Bond TR USD 5.2 4.4 11.6 -1.4 0.3 1.8 2.6 5.5 -13.0 -1.5 7.5 8.7 0.0 3.5 N/A

Over/Under 0.4 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.4 0.4 0.9 0.2 1.2 -1.9 -0.7 0.0 1.2 N/A
Intermediate Core-Plus Bond MStar MF Rank 15 35 64 34 67 58 -- 54 28 40 93 82 30 45 N/A

Vanguard Total Bond Market Idx InstlPls VBMPX 20 5.1 4.4 11.4 -1.4 0.3 1.8 2.6 5.7 -13.1 -1.6 7.7 8.7 0.0 3.6 N/A
 Custom Index (Barclays US Agg Flt-Adj) 5.1 4.5 11.5 -1.4 0.4 1.9 2.6 5.6 -13.1 -1.6 7.7 8.9 -0.1 3.6 N/A

Over/Under 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.2 0.1 0.0 N/A
Intermediate Core Bond MStar MF Rank 66 82 76 60 74 65 72 51 42 62 57 43 35 49 N/A

Performance for the OCSP plan options is net of mutual fund expenses and program administration fees. Performance for the underlying mutual funds is net of mutual fund expenses. Percentile ranks 
are 1 = best and 100 = worst. 

Board Book Page 157



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a Ticker Target QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 15 Yrs 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

Inflation-Related Strategies
OR CSP Diversified Inflation Protection 100 5.8 7.2 12.3 1.6 4.5 3.0 -- 2.1 -7.2 16.9 2.8 11.4 -3.6 2.6 0.2
 OR CSP Diversified Inflation Protection Index 5.8 7.3 12.1 2.3 4.6 3.1 2.9 -6.3 17.2 1.6 11.0 -3.4 3.1 0.2

Over/Under 0.0 -0.1 0.2 -0.7 -0.1 -0.1 -0.8 -0.9 -0.3 1.2 0.4 -0.2 -0.5 0.0
Vanguard Inflation-Protected Secs I VIPIX 25 4.1 5.0 9.9 -0.6 2.5 2.5 3.1 3.8 -11.9 5.7 11.0 8.2 -1.4 3.0 0.0
 Bloomberg US Treasury US TIPS TR USD Index 4.1 4.9 9.8 -0.6 2.6 2.5 3.2 3.9 -11.8 6.0 11.0 8.4 -1.3 3.0 0.0

Over/Under 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.3 0.0 -0.2 -0.1 0.0 0.0
Inflation-Protected Bond MStar MF Rank 70 50 49 43 50 32 33 43 48 35 48 66 33 64 46

Vanguard Shrt-Term Infl-Prot Sec Idx Ins VTSPX 25 2.5 4.9 7.5 2.5 3.6 2.4 -- 4.6 -2.8 5.3 5.0 4.8 0.6 0.8 0.4
 Bloomberg US TIPS 0-5 Year TR USD Index 2.5 4.8 7.5 2.5 3.6 2.4 2.3 4.6 -2.7 5.3 5.1 4.9 0.6 0.9 0.4

Over/Under 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0
DFA Global Real Estate Securities Port DFGEX 25 16.1 12.9 32.2 1.8 3.1 6.0 8.3 9.4 -23.8 31.0 -6.7 26.4 -4.2 9.2 0.0
 S&P Global REIT NR USD Index 16.0 13.0 30.4 1.9 2.5 4.9 7.3 10.2 -24.4 31.4 -9.1 23.1 -5.9 7.4 0.0

Over/Under 0.1 -0.1 1.8 -0.1 0.6 1.1 1.0 -0.8 0.6 -0.4 2.4 3.3 1.7 1.8 0.0
Real Estate MStar MF Rank 48 78 61 90 93 95 97 96 8 93 81 69 18 12 92
DFA Commodity Strategy Institutional DCMSX 25 0.6 6.1 1.2 1.7 7.3 0.2 -- -9.1 11.4 28.5 -1.8 8.0 -11.2 2.7 0.3
 Bloomberg Commodity TR USD Index 0.7 5.9 1.0 3.7 7.8 0.0 -0.4 -7.9 16.1 27.1 -3.1 7.7 -11.2 1.7 0.3

Over/Under -0.1 0.2 0.2 -2.0 -0.5 0.2 -1.2 -4.7 1.4 1.3 0.3 0.0 1.0 0.0
Commodities Broad Basket MStar MF Rank 54 46 64 100 85 82 -- 96 82 65 71 59 39 61 85

Performance for the OCSP plan options is net of mutual fund expenses and program administration fees. Performance for the underlying mutual funds is net of mutual fund expenses. Percentile ranks 
are 1 = best and 100 = worst. 

Board Book Page 158



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a Ticker Target QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 15 Yrs 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

Balanced
OR CSP Balanced Index 100 6.2 12.1 22.8 4.0 7.6 7.5 -- 15.2 -16.0 9.9 15.0 19.5 -2.0 13.7 0.4
 OR CSP Balanced Index 6.3 12.4 23.1 4.2 7.7 7.6 8.8 15.2 -15.8 10.3 14.0 19.8 -2.2 13.8 0.4

Over/Under -0.1 -0.3 -0.3 -0.2 -0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.2 -0.4 1.0 -0.2 0.2 -0.1 0.0
529 Static Moderate Allocation MStar Rank 24 61 55 63 52 23 -- 49 54 77 22 46 1 65 50
Vanguard Total Stock Mkt Idx Instl Pls VSMPX 36 6.2 20.6 35.3 10.1 15.2 12.8 13.7 26.0 -19.5 25.7 21.0 30.8 -5.1 21.2 0.7
 Custom Index (CRSP US Total Mkt) 6.2 20.6 35.2 10.1 15.2 12.8 13.8 26.0 -19.5 25.7 21.0 30.8 -5.2 21.2 0.7

Over/Under -0.0 -0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.1 -0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Large Blend MStar MF Rank 33 48 45 62 46 38 36 36 79 65 19 47 51 58 52

Vanguard Total Intl Stock Idx InstlPls VTPSX 24 8.0 13.6 24.9 4.0 7.8 5.5 5.6 15.5 -16.0 8.7 11.3 21.6 -14.4 27.6 0.3
 Custom Index (FTSE Glo All Cap ex US) 8.4 14.1 25.2 4.1 8.0 5.5 5.6 15.8 -16.1 8.8 11.2 21.8 -14.6 27.4 0.3

Over/Under -0.4 -0.5 -0.3 -0.0 -0.2 -0.1 0.0 -0.2 0.1 -0.2 0.1 -0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0
Foreign Large Blend MStar MF Rank 29 39 46 56 54 57 75 64 55 69 42 64 48 33 50

Vanguard Total Bond Market Idx InstlPls VBMPX 40 5.1 4.4 11.4 -1.4 0.3 1.8 2.6 5.7 -13.1 -1.6 7.7 8.7 0.0 3.6 N/A
 Custom Index (Barclays US Agg Flt-Adj) 5.1 4.5 11.5 -1.4 0.4 1.9 2.6 5.6 -13.1 -1.6 7.7 8.9 -0.1 3.6 N/A

Over/Under -0.1 -0.0 -0.1 -0.0 -0.0 -0.0 -0.1 0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.0 -0.1 0.1 -0.0 N/A
Intermediate Core Bond MStar MF Rank 66 82 76 60 74 65 72 51 42 62 57 43 35 49 N/A

Performance for the OCSP plan options is net of mutual fund expenses and program administration fees. Performance for the underlying mutual funds is net of mutual fund expenses. Percentile ranks 
are 1 = best and 100 = worst. 

Board Book Page 159



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon College Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a Ticker Target QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 15 Yrs 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

OR CSP Social Choice Balanced 100 6.2 11.8 22.7 3.9 7.6 -- -- 14.7 -15.8 10.8 14.2 19.7 -- -- 0.4
 OR CSP Social Choice Balanced Index 6.2 12.5 23.1 4.3 7.7 15.2 -15.6 10.3 13.8 19.7 0.4

Over/Under -0.1 -0.7 -0.4 -0.5 -0.1 -0.5 -0.2 0.5 0.4 -0.1 0.0
529 Static Moderate Allocation MStar Rank 23 67 59 67 52 -- -- 58 45 65 29 44 -- -- 60
Nuveen Large Cap Responsible Eq R6 TISCX 36 6.3 18.8 33.9 9.4 14.7 12.2 13.2 22.5 -17.8 26.5 20.3 31.5 -5.5 20.9 0.6
 Russell 3000 TR USD Index 6.2 20.6 35.2 10.3 15.3 12.8 13.8 26.0 -19.2 25.7 20.9 31.0 -5.2 21.1 0.7

Over/Under 0.0 -1.9 -1.3 -0.9 -0.6 -0.7 -0.6 -3.5 1.4 0.8 -0.5 0.5 -0.3 -0.2 -0.0
Large Blend MStar MF Rank 31 67 57 73 59 55 56 65 46 56 25 25 57 64 63

DFA International Social Cor Eq Instl DSCLX 18 8.9 12.7 25.8 4.4 8.3 5.7 -- 18.5 -16.6 13.4 7.5 21.1 -17.4 27.7 0.3
 MSCI World ex USA NR USD Index 7.8 13.1 25.0 5.6 8.4 5.7 6.0 17.9 -14.3 12.6 7.6 22.5 -14.1 24.2 0.3

Over/Under 1.2 -0.4 0.8 -1.2 -0.1 0.0 0.5 -2.3 0.8 -0.1 -1.4 -3.3 3.4 -0.0
Foreign Large Blend MStar MF Rank 11 61 30 48 39 46 -- 20 61 18 82 74 82 31 60

DFA Emerging Markets Social Core Port DFESX 6 6.7 15.0 24.2 2.7 7.0 4.7 4.8 14.6 -18.5 4.2 13.0 17.1 -14.9 37.3 0.2
 MSCI EM NR USD Index 8.7 16.9 26.1 0.4 5.7 4.0 4.2 9.8 -20.1 -2.5 18.3 18.4 -14.6 37.3 0.2

Over/Under -2.0 -1.9 -1.9 2.3 1.2 0.7 0.6 4.8 1.6 6.7 -5.3 -1.3 -0.3 0.0 0.1
Diversified Emerging Mkts MStar MF Rank 46 37 43 24 36 37 31 34 28 30 81 78 32 46 35

Nuveen Core Impact Bond R6 TSBIX 20 5.2 5.6 12.4 -1.3 0.5 2.2 -- 6.0 -14.0 -1.0 7.4 8.7 0.3 4.5 -0.3
 Bloomberg US Agg Bond TR USD Index 5.2 4.4 11.6 -1.4 0.3 1.8 2.6 5.5 -13.0 -1.5 7.5 8.7 0.0 3.5 -0.3

Over/Under -0.0 1.1 0.9 0.1 0.1 0.4 0.5 -1.0 0.5 -0.1 0.0 0.3 1.0 0.0
Intermediate Core Bond MStar MF Rank 49 9 19 46 60 21 -- 33 80 30 66 44 19 16 50

DFA Social Fixed Income Institutional DSFIX 20 4.6 4.7 11.6 -1.0 0.8 -- -- 7.2 -13.1 -2.2 9.3 9.8 -0.3 3.4 -0.3
 Bloomberg US Agg Bond TR USD Index 5.2 4.4 11.6 -1.4 0.3 1.8 2.6 5.5 -13.0 -1.5 7.5 8.7 0.0 3.5 -0.3

Over/Under -0.6 0.3 0.1 0.4 0.5 1.6 -0.1 -0.6 1.8 1.1 -0.3 -0.2 0.1
Intermediate Core Bond MStar MF Rank 92 58 65 23 27 -- -- 5 35 96 19 8 60 63 25

Performance for the OCSP plan options is net of mutual fund expenses and program administration fees. Performance for the underlying mutual funds is net of mutual fund expenses. Percentile ranks 
are 1 = best and 100 = worst. 

Board Book Page 160



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a
a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

College Enrollment Year Portfolios

OR MFS 2043 A -- -- -- -- -- -- 3.7 Aug-24 -- -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2043 Index 4.5

Over/Under -0.8

529 Target-Enrollment 2039+ MStar Rank -- -- -- -- -- -- 94 -- -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2042 A 7.0 14.4 25.3 -- -- -- 14.8 Aug-23 -- -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2042 Index 6.7 16.5 28.8 17.4

Over/Under 0.3 -2.1 -3.5 -2.6

529 Target-Enrollment 2039+ MStar Rank 8 89 94 -- -- -- 94 -- -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2041 A 7.0 14.2 25.7 -- -- -- 9.8 Jun-22 14.6 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2041 Index 6.7 16.3 28.6 12.2 19.7

Over/Under 0.3 -2.1 -2.9 -2.4 -5.1

529 Target-Enrollment 2039+ MStar Rank 13 90 91 -- -- -- 95 95 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2040 A 7.0 14.1 25.6 -- -- -- 9.9 Jun-22 14.6 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2040 Index 6.6 16.0 28.2 12.0 19.5

Over/Under 0.4 -1.9 -2.6 -2.1 -4.9

529 Target-Enrollment 2039+ MStar Rank 12 92 91 -- -- -- 93 93 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2039 A 6.9 13.9 25.3 -- -- -- 9.9 Jun-22 14.6 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2039 Index 6.6 15.8 27.8 11.8 19.2

Over/Under 0.3 -1.9 -2.5 -1.9 -4.6

529 Target-Enrollment 2039+ MStar Rank 15 95 93 -- -- -- 93 94 -- -- -- --

Calendar YearsEnding September 30, 2024

Performance is presented net of A-share mutual fund expense ratios but gross of loads. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. 

Board Book Page 161



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a
a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Calendar YearsEnding September 30, 2024

OR MFS 2038 A 6.9 13.6 24.9 -- -- -- 9.8 Jun-22 14.4 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2038 Index 6.5 15.5 27.4 11.5 18.9

Over/Under 0.4 -1.9 -2.5 -1.7 -4.5

529 Target-Enrollment 2039+ MStar Rank 20 96 96 -- -- -- 96 95 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2037 A 6.8 13.4 24.6 -- -- -- 9.6 Jun-22 14.2 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2037 Index 6.5 15.2 27.0 11.3 18.5

Over/Under 0.3 -1.8 -2.4 -1.7 -4.3

529 Target-Enrollment 2036 MStar Rank 7 79 80 -- -- -- 88 95 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2036 A 6.8 13.2 24.3 -- -- -- 9.4 Jun-22 14.0 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2036 Index 6.5 14.8 26.5 11.0 18.2

Over/Under 0.3 -1.6 -2.2 -1.6 -4.2

529 Target-Enrollment 2036 MStar Rank 9 83 82 -- -- -- 93 96 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2035 A 6.7 12.9 23.8 -- -- -- 9.1 Jun-22 13.8 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2035 Index 6.4 14.5 26.0 10.8 17.8

Over/Under 0.3 -1.6 -2.2 -1.7 -4.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2036 MStar Rank 11 90 92 -- -- -- 95 97 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2034 A 6.7 12.6 23.5 -- -- -- 9.0 Jun-22 13.6 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2034 Index 6.4 14.1 25.5 10.5 17.4

Over/Under 0.3 -1.5 -2.0 -1.5 -3.8

529 Target-Enrollment 2033 MStar Rank 2 37 36 -- -- -- 44 86 -- -- -- --

Performance is presented net of A-share mutual fund expense ratios but gross of loads. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. 

Board Book Page 162



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a
a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Calendar YearsEnding September 30, 2024

OR MFS 2033 A 6.6 12.2 22.9 -- -- -- 8.7 Jun-22 13.4 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2033 Index 6.3 13.6 24.8 10.1 16.9

Over/Under 0.3 -1.4 -1.9 -1.4 -3.5

529 Target-Enrollment 2033 MStar Rank 6 48 43 -- -- -- 54 87 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2032 A 6.6 11.9 22.4 -- -- -- 8.4 Jun-22 13.1 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2032 Index 6.3 13.2 24.1 9.8 16.4

Over/Under 0.3 -1.3 -1.7 -1.4 -3.3

529 Target-Enrollment 2033 MStar Rank 7 63 57 -- -- -- 66 88 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2031 A 6.4 11.4 21.7 -- -- -- 8.1 Jun-22 12.8 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2031 Index 6.2 12.6 23.3 9.3 15.8

Over/Under 0.2 -1.2 -1.6 -1.2 -3.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2030 MStar Rank 1 24 20 -- -- -- 30 55 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2030 A 6.3 10.9 20.9 -- -- -- 7.7 Jun-22 12.3 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2030 Index 6.1 11.9 22.3 8.8 15.1

Over/Under 0.2 -1.0 -1.4 -1.1 -2.8

529 Target-Enrollment 2030 MStar Rank 6 34 29 -- -- -- 44 80 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2029 A 6.2 10.4 20.1 -- -- -- 7.3 Jun-22 11.9 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2029 Index 6.0 11.2 21.3 8.2 14.2

Over/Under 0.2 -0.8 -1.2 -0.9 -2.3

529 Target-Enrollment 2030 MStar Rank 7 47 43 -- -- -- 56 86 -- -- -- --

Performance is presented net of A-share mutual fund expense ratios but gross of loads. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst.

Board Book Page 163



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a
a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Calendar YearsEnding September 30, 2024

OR MFS 2028 A 6.2 9.8 19.3 -- -- -- 6.8 Jun-22 11.4 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2028 Index 5.9 10.4 20.2 7.6 13.4

Over/Under 0.3 -0.6 -0.9 -0.8 -2.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2027 MStar Rank 1 8 4 -- -- -- 14 24 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2027 A 5.6 8.9 18.0 -- -- -- 6.2 Jun-22 10.8 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2027 Index 5.4 9.4 18.6 6.7 12.3

Over/Under 0.2 -0.5 -0.6 -0.5 -1.5

529 Target-Enrollment 2027 MStar Rank 6 24 15 -- -- -- 31 38 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2026 A 4.9 7.8 16.0 -- -- -- 5.4 Jun-22 10.1 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2026 Index 4.8 8.1 16.1 5.6 11.0

Over/Under 0.1 -0.3 -0.1 -0.2 -0.9

529 Target-Enrollment 2027 MStar Rank 28 63 54 -- -- -- 66 67 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2025 A 4.1 6.8 13.6 -- -- -- 4.8 Jun-22 9.0 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2025 Index 4.0 6.9 13.4 4.8 9.4

Over/Under 0.1 -0.1 0.2 0.0 -0.4

529 Target-Enrollment 2024 MStar Rank 18 17 12 -- -- -- 21 15 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2024 A 3.2 5.8 11.1 -- -- -- 4.3 Jun-22 7.9 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2024 Index 3.2 5.8 10.7 4.0 7.9

Over/Under 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.3 0.0

529 Target-Enrollment 2024 MStar Rank 69 65 65 -- -- -- 50 62 -- -- -- --

Performance is presented net of A-share mutual fund expense ratios but gross of loads. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. 

Board Book Page 164



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a
a Sharpe
a QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs Incep. Since 2023 2022 2021 2020 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Calendar YearsEnding September 30, 2024

OR MFS 2023 A 2.4 4.8 8.6 -- -- -- 4.0 Jun-22 7.1 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2023 Index 2.5 4.9 8.3 3.6 6.6

Over/Under -0.1 -0.1 0.3 0.4 0.5

529 Target-Enrollment 2024 MStar Rank 93 88 92 -- -- -- 74 76 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2022 A 1.7 3.9 6.6 -- -- -- 3.5 Jun-22 5.7 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2022 Index 1.8 4.2 6.7 3.4 5.6

Over/Under -0.1 -0.3 -0.1 0.1 0.1

529 Target-Enrollment 2021 MStar Rank 42 55 33 -- -- -- 51 30 -- -- -- --

OR MFS 2021 A 1.0 3.2 4.9 -- -- -- 3.2 Jun-22 4.8 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2021 Index 1.3 3.8 5.5 3.4 5.0

Over/Under -0.3 -0.6 -0.6 -0.2 -0.2

OR MFS 2020 A 1.1 3.3 4.6 -- -- -- 3.4 Jun-22 4.3 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2020 Index 1.3 4.0 5.4 4.0 5.0

Over/Under -0.2 -0.7 -0.8 -0.6 -0.7

OR MFS 2019 A 1.2 3.4 4.6 -- -- -- 3.7 Jun-22 4.2 -- -- -- --

 OR MFS 2019 Index 1.3 4.0 5.4 4.4 5.0

Over/Under -0.1 -0.6 -0.8 -0.7 -0.8

Performance is presented net of A-share mutual fund expense ratios but gross of loads. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. Ranks for options that are 
three years or more past college do not show ranks due to insufficient peer group members.

Board Book Page 165



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

College Enrollment Year Glidepath
As of September 30, 2024 

Underlying Funds Ticker Asset Class '43 '42 '41 '40 '39 '38 '37 '36 '35 '34 '33 '32 '31 '30 '29 '28 '27 '26 '25 '24 '23 '22 '21 '20 '19

MFS Massachusetts Investors Tr R6 MITJX US Equity 15 15 15 15 14 14 14 13 13 12 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 4 3 2 1 - - - -

MFS Massachusetts Inv Gr Stk R6 MIGNX US Equity 15 15 15 15 14 14 14 13 13 12 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 4 3 2 1 - - - -

MFS Value R6 MEIKX US Equity 15 15 15 15 14 14 14 13 13 12 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 4 3 2 1 - - - -

MFS Blended Research Mid Cap Eq R6 BMSYX US Equity 9 9 9 9 8 8 8 8 8 7 7 6 6 6 5 4 4 3 2 1 1 - - - -

MFS Blended Research Small Cap Eq R6 BRSYX US Equity 4 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 0 0 - - - -

MFS Blended Research Intl Eq R6 BRXVX Non-US Equity 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 3 3 2 1 1 0 - - - -

MFS International Large Cap Value R6 MKVHX Non-US Equity 6 6 6 6 6 6 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 3 3 2 2 1 1 0 - - - -

MFS International Equity R6 MIEIX Non-US Equity 6 6 6 6 6 6 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 3 3 2 2 1 1 0 - - - -

MFS International New Discovery R6 MIDLX Non-US Equity 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 1 1 1 0 - - - -

MFS Emerging Markets Equity R6 MEMJX Non-US Equity 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 0 0 - - - -

MFS Commodity Strategy R6 MCSRX Inflation Rel 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 - - - -

MFS Global Real Estate R6 MGLRX Inflation Rel 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 - - - -

MFS Total Return Bond R6 MRBKX Intermediate FI 12 12 14 16 18 20 22 25 27 30 34 37 42 47 52 58 50 37 19 - - - - - -

MFS Limited Maturity R6 MQLKX Short Term - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 15 38 64 80 56 30 - - -

MFS® US Government Cash Rsrv R6 CRRXX Money Market - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 10 39 70 100 100 100

Allocations may not add up to 100% due to rounding.

Underlying Asset Allocation by College Enrollment Year

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2043 2042 2041 2040 2039 2038 2037 2036 2035 2034 2033 2032 2031 2030 2029 2028 2027 2026 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

US Equity Non-US Equity Inflation-Related Intermediate Fixed Income Short Term Cash

Board Book Page 166



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Target-Risk Portfolio Allocations
As of September 30, 2024 

Underlying Funds Asset Class Aggressive Growth Growth Moderate Conservative Lifetime Income Ltd Mat

MFS Blended Research Value US Equity -- -- -- -- 2.0% --
MFS Blended Research Core US Equity -- -- -- -- 1.6% --
MFS Blended Research Growth US Equity -- -- -- -- 1.6% --
MFS Blended Research Mid US Equity -- -- -- -- 3.0% --
MFS Blended Research Small US Equity -- -- -- -- 1.0% --
MFS Value US Equity 12.0% 10.0% 8.0% 6.0% 2.0% --
MFS Research US Equity 10.3% 9.3% 7.3% 5.3% 1.6% --
MFS Growth US Equity 11.3% 9.3% 7.3% 5.3% 1.6% --
MFS Mid Cap Value US Equity 10.0% 9.0% 7.0% 4.0% 1.5% --
MFS Mid Cap Growth US Equity 10.0% 9.0% 7.0% 4.0% 1.5% --
MFS New Discovery US Equity 2.5% 2.0% 1.5% 1.0% 0.5% --
MFS New Discovery Value US Equity 2.5% 2.0% 1.5% 1.0% 0.5% --
MFS Blended Research Intl Non-US Equity -- -- -- -- 2.5% --
MFS Intl Large Cap Value Non-US Equity 5.0% 3.0% 2.0% 1.5% -- --
MFS Intl Intrinsic Value Non-US Equity 5.0% 3.0% 2.0% 1.5% 0.5% --
MFS Research Intl Non-US Equity 8.0% 7.0% 5.0% 3.5% 1.5% --
MFS Intl Growth Non-US Equity 5.0% 3.0% 2.0% 1.5% 0.5% --
MFS Intl New Dscv Non-US Equity 4.0% 2.0% 1.0% -- -- --
MFS Emerg Mkt Eq Non-US Equity 3.0% 2.0% 1.0% -- -- --
MFS Total Return Bond Fixed Income -- 2.3% 8.3% 14.3% 19.3% --
MFS Govt Securities Fixed Income -- -- 9.3% 9.3% 9.3% --
MFS Emerg Mkt Debt Lcl Crc Fixed Income -- 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 1.0% --
MFS Emerg Mkt Debt Fixed Income -- 3.0% 3.0% 2.0% 1.0% --
MFS High Income Fixed Income -- 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 2.0% --
MFS Global Opportunistic Bond Fixed Income -- 3.0% 5.0% 7.0% 7.0% --
MFS Infl Adj Bd TIPS -- 4.9% 6.9% 9.9% 9.9% --
MFS Ltd Mat ST Fixed Income -- -- -- 10.0% 20.0% 100.0%
MFS Global Real Estate Diversifiers 5.0% 4.0% 3.0% 2.0% 2.0% --
MFS Commodity Strategy Diversifiers 5.0% 4.0% 3.0% 2.0% 2.0% --
MFS Institutional Money Market Portfolio Money Market 1.5% 2.3% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% --

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Aggressive Growth Growth Moderate Conservative Lifetime Inc Ltd. Mat

Money Market

Diversifiers

ST Fixed income

TIPS

Fixed Income

Non-US Equity

US Equity

Board Book Page 167



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Fee Information - A Shares
a As of September 30, 2024 
a Underlying Annual State 529 Advisor-Sold
a Current Market Expense Distribution and Administration Median

Value ($) Ratio Service Fee Fee Total Fee Fee Difference
College Enrollment Year Portfolios
OR MFS 2043 A 132,898 0.51% 0.25% 0.25% 1.01% 0.89% 0.12%
OR MFS 2042 A 3,356,242 0.51% 0.25% 0.25% 1.01% 0.89% 0.12%
OR MFS 2041 A 7,056,338 0.50% 0.25% 0.25% 1.00% 0.89% 0.11%
OR MFS 2040 A 9,405,160 0.50% 0.25% 0.25% 1.00% 0.89% 0.11%
OR MFS 2039 A 13,707,403 0.50% 0.25% 0.25% 1.00% 0.89% 0.11%
OR MFS 2038 A 18,611,986 0.49% 0.25% 0.25% 0.99% 0.89% 0.10%
OR MFS 2037 A 23,967,200 0.49% 0.25% 0.25% 0.99% 0.97% 0.03%
OR MFS 2036 A 28,613,151 0.49% 0.25% 0.25% 0.99% 0.97% 0.03%
OR MFS 2035 A 37,285,010 0.48% 0.25% 0.25% 0.98% 0.97% 0.02%
OR MFS 2034 A 44,526,185 0.48% 0.25% 0.25% 0.98% 0.90% 0.09%
OR MFS 2033 A 50,224,250 0.47% 0.25% 0.25% 0.97% 0.90% 0.08%
OR MFS 2032 A 59,573,889 0.47% 0.25% 0.25% 0.97% 0.90% 0.08%
OR MFS 2031 A 63,898,271 0.46% 0.25% 0.25% 0.96% 0.93% 0.03%
OR MFS 2030 A 73,749,707 0.45% 0.25% 0.25% 0.95% 0.93% 0.02%
OR MFS 2029 A 79,196,665 0.44% 0.25% 0.25% 0.94% 0.93% 0.01%
OR MFS 2028 A 82,198,280 0.43% 0.25% 0.25% 0.93% 0.87% 0.06%
OR MFS 2027 A 88,781,067 0.42% 0.25% 0.25% 0.92% 0.87% 0.05%
OR MFS 2026 A 98,507,809 0.40% 0.25% 0.25% 0.90% 0.87% 0.03%
OR MFS 2025 A 87,325,484 0.38% 0.25% 0.25% 0.88% 0.89% 0.00%
OR MFS 2024 A 76,955,370 0.37% 0.25% 0.25% 0.87% 0.89% -0.02%
OR MFS 2023 A 64,273,342 0.37% 0.25% 0.25% 0.87% 0.89% -0.02%
OR MFS 2022 A 55,347,720 0.36% 0.25% 0.25% 0.86% 1.00% -0.14%
OR MFS 2021 A 37,899,416 0.37% 0.25% 0.25% 0.87% 1.00% -0.13%
OR MFS 2020 A 22,540,665 0.37% 0.25% 0.25% 0.87% 1.00% -0.13%
OR MFS 2019 A 15,842,837 0.37% 0.25% 0.25% 0.87% 0.75% 0.13%
Target-Risk Portfolios
OR MFS Aggressive Growth A 206,753,154 0.67% 0.25% 0.25% 1.17% 0.98% 0.19%
OR MFS Growth A 241,610,014 0.61% 0.25% 0.25% 1.11% 0.91% 0.21%
OR MFS Moderate A 160,352,085 0.57% 0.25% 0.25% 1.07% 0.94% 0.13%
OR MFS Conservative A 47,969,929 0.52% 0.25% 0.25% 1.02% 0.83% 0.19%
OR MFS Lifetime Income A 7,656,055 0.33% 0.25% 0.25% 0.83% 0.79% 0.04%
OR MFS Ltd Maturity A 16,028,935 0.35% 0.25% 0.25% 0.85% 0.71% 0.14%
Cash
OR MFS US Govt Cash Reserve A 88,344,990 0.37% 0.25% 0.25% 0.87% 0.33% 0.54%

Total Plan 1,911,691,509 0.49% 0.25% 0.25% 0.99%

Board Book Page 168



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Fee Information - Institutional Shares
a As of September 30, 2024 
a Underlying Annual State 529 Advisor-Sold
a Current Market Expense Distribution and Administration Median

Value ($) Ratio Service Fee Fee Total Fee Fee Difference
College Enrollment Year Portfolios
OR MFS 2043 I 18,866 0.51% 0.00% 0.25% 0.76% 0.89% -0.13%
OR MFS 2042 I 15,960 0.51% 0.00% 0.25% 0.76% 0.89% -0.13%
OR MFS 2041 I 149,156 0.50% 0.00% 0.25% 0.75% 0.89% -0.14%
OR MFS 2040 I 234,671 0.50% 0.00% 0.25% 0.75% 0.89% -0.14%
OR MFS 2039 I 339,426 0.50% 0.00% 0.25% 0.75% 0.89% -0.14%
OR MFS 2038 I 445,351 0.49% 0.00% 0.25% 0.74% 0.89% -0.15%
OR MFS 2037 I 145,940 0.49% 0.00% 0.25% 0.74% 0.97% -0.23%
OR MFS 2036 I 654,269 0.49% 0.00% 0.25% 0.74% 0.97% -0.23%
OR MFS 2035 I 619,997 0.48% 0.00% 0.25% 0.73% 0.97% -0.24%
OR MFS 2034 I 1,743,857 0.48% 0.00% 0.25% 0.73% 0.90% -0.17%
OR MFS 2033 I 645,472 0.47% 0.00% 0.25% 0.72% 0.90% -0.18%
OR MFS 2032 I 1,431,679 0.47% 0.00% 0.25% 0.72% 0.90% -0.18%
OR MFS 2031 I 1,957,629 0.46% 0.00% 0.25% 0.71% 0.93% -0.22%
OR MFS 2030 I 1,552,967 0.45% 0.00% 0.25% 0.70% 0.93% -0.23%
OR MFS 2029 I 1,918,730 0.44% 0.00% 0.25% 0.69% 0.93% -0.24%
OR MFS 2028 I 1,235,875 0.43% 0.00% 0.25% 0.68% 0.87% -0.19%
OR MFS 2027 I 1,081,242 0.42% 0.00% 0.25% 0.67% 0.87% -0.20%
OR MFS 2026 I 1,026,969 0.40% 0.00% 0.25% 0.65% 0.87% -0.22%
OR MFS 2025 I 1,009,811 0.38% 0.00% 0.25% 0.63% 0.89% -0.26%
OR MFS 2024 I 1,263,934 0.37% 0.00% 0.25% 0.62% 0.89% -0.27%
OR MFS 2023 I 1,837,874 0.37% 0.00% 0.25% 0.62% 0.89% -0.27%
OR MFS 2022 I 641,179 0.36% 0.00% 0.25% 0.61% 1.00% -0.39%
OR MFS 2021 I 1,010,417 0.37% 0.00% 0.25% 0.62% 1.00% -0.38%
OR MFS 2020 I 429,788 0.37% 0.00% 0.25% 0.62% 1.00% -0.38%
OR MFS 2019 I 132,678 0.37% 0.00% 0.25% 0.62% 0.75% -0.13%
Target-Risk Portfolios
OR MFS Aggressive Growth I 6,842,309 0.67% 0.00% 0.25% 0.92% 0.98% -0.06%
OR MFS Growth I 4,559,734 0.61% 0.00% 0.25% 0.86% 0.91% -0.05%
OR MFS Moderate I 2,589,144 0.57% 0.00% 0.25% 0.82% 0.94% -0.12%
OR MFS Conservative I 1,415,730 0.52% 0.00% 0.25% 0.77% 0.83% -0.06%
OR MFS Lifetime Income I 636,029 0.33% 0.00% 0.25% 0.58% 0.79% -0.21%
OR MFS Ltd Maturity I 1,345,630 0.35% 0.00% 0.25% 0.60% 0.71% -0.11%
Cash
OR MFS US Govt Cash Reserve I 4,754,316 0.37% 0.00% 0.25% 0.62% 0.33% 0.29%

Total Plan 43,686,629 0.49% 0.00% 0.25% 0.74%

Board Book Page 169



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a
a Sharpe
a Ticker QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 15 Yrs 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Underlying Funds - Age-Based and Target-Risk Portfolios
MFS Value R6 MEIKX 8.4 15.6 26.6 8.6 10.5 9.9 11.3 8.3 -5.8 25.6 4.0 30.2 -9.8 17.9 0.5
 Russell 1000 Value TR USD Index 9.4 16.7 27.8 9.0 10.7 9.2 11.2 11.5 -7.5 25.2 2.8 26.5 -8.3 13.7 0.4

Over/Under -1.0 -1.1 -1.2 -0.4 -0.2 0.7 0.1 -3.2 1.7 0.4 1.2 3.7 -1.5 4.2 0.1
Large Value MStar MF Rank 37 54 58 79 74 39 46 80 55 62 42 12 68 38 60

MFS Blended Research Value Equity R6 BRUNX 6.2 15.4 28.5 10.9 11.8 -- -- 14.7 -4.1 26.4 1.7 23.4 -8.3 16.7 0.5
 Russell 1000 Value TR USD Index 9.4 16.7 27.8 9.0 10.7 9.2 11.2 11.5 -7.5 25.2 2.8 26.5 -8.3 13.7 0.4

Over/Under -3.2 -1.3 0.7 1.9 1.1 3.2 3.4 1.2 -1.1 -3.1 0.0 3.0 0.1
Large Value MStar MF Rank 83 58 34 29 43 -- -- 28 38 51 64 77 45 50 47

MFS Research R6 MFRKX 4.5 17.1 31.8 9.1 13.5 12.3 13.1 22.9 -17.0 25.1 17.0 33.5 -4.1 23.7 0.6
 S&P 500 TR USD Index 5.9 22.1 36.4 11.9 16.0 13.4 14.1 26.3 -18.1 28.7 18.4 31.5 -4.4 21.8 0.7

Over/Under -1.4 -5.0 -4.6 -2.8 -2.5 -1.1 -1.0 -3.4 1.1 -3.6 -1.4 2.0 0.3 1.9 -0.1
Large Blend MStar MF Rank 86 77 70 76 72 53 57 64 42 73 57 9 25 18 70

MFS Blended Research Core Equity R6 MUEVX 3.7 22.4 37.1 13.4 16.7 12.5 13.8 28.4 -15.9 29.5 15.5 29.0 -7.7 20.8 0.8
 S&P 500 TR USD Index 5.9 22.1 36.4 11.9 16.0 13.4 14.1 26.3 -18.1 28.7 18.4 31.5 -4.4 21.8 0.7

Over/Under -2.2 0.3 0.7 1.5 0.7 -0.9 -0.3 2.1 2.2 0.8 -2.9 -2.5 -3.3 -1.0 0.1
Large Blend MStar MF Rank 92 20 19 5 10 46 35 11 34 15 65 70 80 66 11

MFS Growth R6 MFEKX 1.1 25.8 42.0 8.5 15.9 15.3 15.2 36.2 -31.1 23.8 31.7 37.8 2.7 31.0 0.7
 Russell 1000 Growth TR USD Index 3.2 24.5 42.2 12.0 19.7 16.5 16.5 42.7 -29.1 27.6 38.5 36.4 -1.5 30.2 0.8

Over/Under -2.1 1.3 -0.2 -3.5 -3.8 -1.2 -1.3 -6.5 -2.0 -3.8 -6.8 1.4 4.2 0.8 -0.1
Large Growth MStar MF Rank 93 22 39 51 59 26 30 61 55 38 68 12 16 39 49

MFS Blended Research Growth Eq R6 BRWVX 3.2 27.4 44.8 11.8 18.7 -- -- 41.1 -29.7 29.1 30.9 32.5 -4.8 27.2 0.8
 Russell 1000 Growth TR USD Index 3.2 24.5 42.2 12.0 19.7 16.5 16.5 42.7 -29.1 27.6 38.5 36.4 -1.5 30.2 0.8

Over/Under 0.0 2.9 2.6 -0.2 -1.0 -1.6 -0.6 1.5 -7.6 -3.9 -3.3 -3.0 0.0
Large Growth MStar MF Rank 53 15 17 9 18 -- -- 41 43 13 71 58 84 69 12

MFS Massachusetts Inv Gr Stk R6 MIGNX 5.7 17.4 31.7 9.6 15.0 14.5 14.6 24.5 -19.0 26.7 22.8 40.4 1.1 29.1 0.7
 Russell 1000 Growth TR USD Index 3.2 24.5 42.2 12.0 19.7 16.5 16.5 42.7 -29.1 27.6 38.5 36.4 -1.5 30.2 0.8

Over/Under 2.5 -7.1 -10.5 -2.4 -4.7 -2.0 -1.9 -18.2 10.1 -0.9 -15.7 4.0 2.6 -1.1 -0.1
Large Growth MStar MF Rank 14 82 86 35 71 46 50 90 6 24 89 4 29 55 42

MFS Massachusetts Investors Tr R6 MITJX 3.7 18.9 32.8 8.8 13.3 12.1 12.8 19.5 -16.1 27.3 14.5 32.3 -5.0 23.9 0.6
 Russell 1000 TR USD Index 6.1 21.2 35.7 10.8 15.6 13.1 14.0 26.5 -19.1 26.5 21.0 31.4 -4.8 21.7 0.7

Over/Under -2.4 -2.3 -2.9 -2.0 -2.3 -1.0 -1.2 -7.0 3.0 0.8 -6.5 0.9 -0.2 2.2 -0.1
Large Blend MStar MF Rank 93 65 65 79 75 56 69 77 34 49 69 18 49 15 72

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

Performance for the underlying mutual funds is net of mutual fund expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. Glidepath funds are shown in tan.

Board Book Page 170



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a
a Sharpe
a Ticker QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 15 Yrs 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

MFS Mid Cap Value R6 MVCKX 10.0 16.8 30.1 9.9 12.0 10.1 12.5 12.9 -8.6 31.0 4.4 31.1 -11.3 13.8 0.5
 Russell Mid Cap Value TR USD Index 10.1 15.1 29.0 7.4 10.3 8.9 11.6 12.7 -12.0 28.3 5.0 27.1 -12.3 13.3 0.4

Over/Under -0.1 1.7 1.1 2.5 1.7 1.2 0.9 0.2 3.4 2.7 -0.6 4.0 1.0 0.5 0.1
Mid-Cap Value MStar MF Rank 26 12 15 23 25 10 8 43 57 31 45 9 27 53 20

MFS Blended Research Mid Cap Eq R6 BMSYX 9.2 19.7 35.4 10.2 13.1 -- -- 19.8 -13.6 26.8 10.6 30.3 -11.0 19.1 0.5
 Russell Mid Cap TR USD Index 9.2 14.6 29.3 5.8 11.3 10.2 12.5 17.2 -17.3 22.6 17.1 30.5 -9.1 18.5 0.4

Over/Under 0.0 5.1 6.1 4.4 1.8 2.6 3.7 4.2 -6.5 -0.2 -1.9 0.6 0.1
Mid-Cap Blend MStar MF Rank 28 7 6 7 10 -- -- 15 39 24 66 35 61 26 10

MFS Mid Cap Growth R6 OTCKX 4.9 13.1 27.9 1.4 10.2 12.1 13.4 21.5 -28.3 14.2 35.8 37.9 1.2 26.4 0.4
 Russell Mid Cap Growth TR USD Index 6.5 12.9 29.3 2.3 11.5 11.3 13.2 25.9 -26.7 12.7 35.6 35.5 -4.8 25.3 0.4

Over/Under -1.6 0.2 -1.4 -0.9 -1.3 0.8 0.2 -4.4 -1.6 1.5 0.2 2.4 6.0 1.1 0.0
Mid-Cap Growth MStar MF Rank 73 38 33 37 54 15 20 45 54 48 48 25 12 42 45

MFS New Discovery Value R6 NDVVX 10.0 10.1 23.4 5.8 10.7 10.6 -- 11.3 -10.8 34.0 3.7 33.8 -11.0 15.0 0.3
 Russell 2000 Value TR USD Index 10.2 9.2 25.9 3.8 9.3 8.2 9.8 14.6 -14.5 28.3 4.6 22.4 -12.9 7.8 0.3

Over/Under -0.2 0.9 -2.5 2.0 1.4 2.4 -3.3 3.7 5.7 -0.9 11.4 1.9 7.2 0.0
Small Value MStar MF Rank 18 43 50 67 54 5 -- 84 54 34 52 2 14 13 49

MFS Blended Research Small Cap Eq R6 BRSYX 6.3 5.6 20.3 2.5 8.6 -- -- 18.9 -18.3 29.2 2.2 26.3 -5.3 13.9 0.3
 Russell 2000 TR USD Index 9.3 11.2 26.8 1.8 9.4 8.8 10.6 16.9 -20.4 14.8 20.0 25.5 -11.0 14.6 0.3

Over/Under -3.0 -5.6 -6.5 0.7 -0.8 2.0 2.1 14.4 -17.8 0.8 5.7 -0.7 0.0
Small Blend MStar MF Rank 88 94 87 75 84 -- -- 21 70 20 88 36 3 47 84

MFS New Discovery R6 MNDKX 3.9 6.7 17.7 -6.6 7.1 9.6 11.2 14.4 -29.6 1.6 45.2 41.3 -1.3 26.5 0.2
 Russell 2000 Growth TR USD Index 8.4 13.2 27.7 -0.4 8.8 8.9 11.1 18.7 -26.4 2.8 34.6 28.5 -9.3 22.2 0.3

Over/Under -4.5 -6.5 -10.0 -6.2 -1.7 0.7 0.1 -4.3 -3.2 -1.2 10.6 12.8 8.0 4.3 -0.1
Small Growth MStar MF Rank 90 90 88 86 89 58 69 67 65 87 36 4 29 31 86

MFS International Large Cap Value R6 MKVHX 9.5 14.5 24.0 8.4 -- -- -- 16.2 -8.8 14.9 -- -- -- -- --
 MSCI EAFE Value NR USD Index 8.9 13.8 23.1 8.9 8.3 4.6 4.9 19.0 -5.6 10.9 -2.6 16.1 -14.8 21.4 0.3

Over/Under 0.6 0.7 0.9 -0.5 -2.8 -3.2 4.0
Foreign Large Value MStar MF Rank 21 26 28 40 -- -- -- 71 47 25 -- -- -- -- --

MFS International Intrinsic Value R6 MINJX 8.2 15.8 27.5 4.0 8.6 8.7 9.2 18.0 -23.0 10.7 20.6 26.0 -8.9 27.3 0.4
 MSCI EAFE Value NR USD Index 8.9 13.8 23.1 8.9 8.3 4.6 4.9 19.0 -5.6 10.9 -2.6 16.1 -14.8 21.4 0.3

Over/Under -0.7 2.0 4.4 -4.9 0.3 4.1 4.3 -1.0 -17.4 -0.2 23.2 9.9 5.9 5.9 0.1
Foreign Large Value MStar MF Rank 43 19 7 88 45 1 1 56 100 67 1 2 2 19 29

Performance for the underlying mutual funds is net of mutual fund expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. Glidepath funds are shown in tan.

Board Book Page 171



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a
a Sharpe
a Ticker QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 15 Yrs 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

MFS Research International R6 MRSKX 7.2 12.6 23.0 3.2 8.0 6.0 6.2 13.5 -17.2 12.0 13.3 28.1 -13.9 28.5 0.3
 MSCI EAFE NR USD Index 7.3 13.0 24.8 5.5 8.2 5.7 6.0 18.2 -14.5 11.3 7.8 22.0 -13.8 25.0 0.3

Over/Under -0.1 -0.4 -1.8 -2.3 -0.2 0.3 0.2 -4.7 -2.7 0.7 5.5 6.1 -0.1 3.5 0.0
Foreign Large Blend MStar MF Rank 53 63 69 73 44 30 44 83 67 32 31 6 39 24 36

MFS International Equity R6 MIEIX 8.1 13.3 26.9 7.0 9.9 7.7 8.0 19.0 -14.8 15.2 11.1 28.4 -10.7 28.0 0.4
 MSCI EAFE NR USD Index 7.3 13.0 24.8 5.5 8.2 5.7 6.0 18.2 -14.5 11.3 7.8 22.0 -13.8 25.0 0.3

Over/Under 0.8 0.3 2.1 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.0 0.8 -0.3 3.9 3.3 6.4 3.1 3.0 0.1
Foreign Large Blend MStar MF Rank 25 45 17 8 9 3 6 17 38 7 44 5 10 29 9

MFS Blended Research Intl Eq R6 BRXVX 8.6 18.5 28.9 7.0 9.8 -- -- 14.5 -13.3 13.5 9.3 22.1 -15.4 27.1 0.4
 MSCI ACWI Ex USA NR USD Index 8.1 14.2 25.4 4.1 7.6 5.2 5.5 15.6 -16.0 7.8 10.7 21.5 -14.2 27.2 0.3

Over/Under 0.5 4.3 3.5 2.9 2.2 -1.1 2.7 5.7 -1.4 0.6 -1.2 -0.1 0.1
Foreign Large Blend MStar MF Rank 16 1 7 8 11 -- -- 75 18 17 57 53 64 42 9

MFS International Growth R6 MGRDX 11.1 18.2 31.0 6.6 9.8 8.6 8.2 15.0 -15.0 9.6 15.8 27.3 -8.8 32.6 0.4
 MSCI ACWI Ex USA Growth NR USD Index 6.9 14.1 26.7 0.8 7.1 6.0 6.2 14.0 -23.1 5.1 22.2 27.3 -14.4 32.0 0.3

Over/Under 4.2 4.1 4.3 5.8 2.7 2.6 2.0 1.0 8.1 4.5 -6.4 0.0 5.6 0.6 0.1
Foreign Large Growth MStar MF Rank 4 9 18 1 19 14 20 72 2 42 83 73 16 36 7

MFS International New Discovery R6 MIDLX 11.5 12.2 23.8 1.1 5.6 6.1 7.7 13.2 -18.5 5.0 10.1 22.9 -10.3 32.2 0.2
 MSCI ACWI Ex USA SMID NR USD Index 9.3 11.9 23.0 1.6 7.3 5.6 6.2 15.8 -19.5 10.2 12.0 22.4 -17.1 30.3 0.2

Over/Under 2.2 0.3 0.8 -0.5 -1.7 0.5 1.5 -2.6 1.0 -5.2 -1.9 0.5 6.8 1.9 0.0
Foreign Small/Mid Growth MStar MF Rank 15 28 44 2 57 40 48 39 1 80 96 91 20 81 41

MFS Emerging Markets Equity R6 MEMJX 10.3 18.7 24.8 1.4 4.2 3.4 3.5 11.3 -19.8 -6.6 10.6 20.2 -13.7 37.9 0.1
 MSCI EM NR USD Index 8.7 16.9 26.1 0.4 5.7 4.0 4.2 9.8 -20.1 -2.5 18.3 18.4 -14.6 37.3 0.2

Over/Under 1.6 1.8 -1.3 1.0 -1.5 -0.6 -0.7 1.5 0.3 -4.1 -7.7 1.8 0.9 0.6 -0.1
Diversified Emerging Mkts MStar MF Rank 5 12 36 32 72 63 72 54 33 85 84 54 18 43 72

MFS Total Return Bond R6 MRBKX 5.4 5.4 12.9 -0.8 1.1 2.3 3.4 7.4 -13.8 -0.7 8.9 10.1 -0.9 4.3 N/A
 Bloomberg US Agg Bond TR USD Index 5.2 4.4 11.6 -1.4 0.3 1.8 2.6 5.5 -13.0 -1.5 7.5 8.7 0.0 3.5 N/A

Over/Under 0.2 1.0 1.3 0.6 0.8 0.5 0.8 1.9 -0.8 0.8 1.4 1.4 -0.9 0.8 N/A
Intermediate Core Bond MStar MF Rank 12 11 5 19 15 8 12 2 77 19 28 5 94 22 N/A

MFS Government Securities R6 MFGKX 4.8 4.2 10.7 -1.6 -0.1 1.2 1.8 4.3 -12.0 -1.8 6.6 6.6 0.6 2.3 N/A
 Bloomberg US Govt/Mortgage TR USD Index 5.0 4.1 10.7 -1.5 -0.1 1.4 2.0 4.5 -12.1 -1.8 6.4 6.6 0.9 2.4 N/A

Over/Under -0.2 0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 0.1 0.0 0.2 0.0 -0.3 -0.1 N/A
Intermediate Government MStar MF Rank 79 77 68 66 57 53 79 69 58 63 40 18 65 24 N/A

Performance for the underlying mutual funds is net of mutual fund expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. Glidepath funds are shown in tan.

Board Book Page 172



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - MFS 529 Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a
a Sharpe
a Ticker QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 15 Yrs 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

MFS Emerging Markets Debt Lcl Ccy R6 EMLNX 9.4 3.8 13.7 1.9 1.5 1.0 -- 13.6 -8.8 -8.0 2.8 16.1 -5.9 14.7 N/A
 ICE BofA Diversified EMD Sov Bnd TR USD Index 6.8 8.1 19.2 -1.3 0.3 2.4 4.0 11.0 -19.3 -3.6 6.6 12.8 -4.0 11.1 N/A

Over/Under 2.6 -4.3 -5.5 3.2 1.2 -1.4 2.6 10.5 -4.4 -3.8 3.3 -1.9 3.6 N/A
Emerging Markets Bond MStar MF Rank 1 100 94 13 67 93 -- 14 9 94 92 11 59 9 N/A

MFS Emerging Markets Debt R6 MEDHX 6.2 9.1 19.4 0.6 2.2 3.3 4.7 10.6 -14.7 -2.3 8.1 14.2 -4.9 9.6 N/A
 ICE BofA Diversified EMD Sov Bnd TR HUSD Index 6.1 8.2 18.5 -0.6 0.6 3.0 4.6 10.8 -17.8 -2.1 5.2 13.7 -2.7 9.1 N/A

Over/Under 0.1 0.9 0.9 1.2 1.6 0.3 0.1 -0.2 3.1 -0.2 2.9 0.5 -2.2 0.5 N/A
Emerging Markets Bond MStar MF Rank 45 29 36 44 36 24 15 66 45 50 9 42 44 70 N/A

MFS High Income R6 MHIKX 4.6 7.3 14.7 2.9 3.9 4.3 6.1 12.6 -10.2 3.6 4.8 14.8 -3.0 6.5 0.2
 Bloomberg US HY 2% Issuer Cap TR USD Index 5.3 8.0 15.7 3.1 4.7 5.0 6.8 13.4 -11.2 5.3 7.0 14.3 -2.1 7.5 0.2

Over/Under -0.7 -0.7 -1.0 -0.2 -0.8 -0.7 -0.7 -0.8 1.0 -1.7 -2.2 0.5 -0.9 -1.0 0.0
High Yield Bond MStar MF Rank 34 52 38 53 74 58 61 40 45 84 64 26 70 68 64

MFS Global Opportunistic Bd R6 MGBOX 4.7 4.2 12.9 0.2 1.9 1.8 -- 8.9 -10.9 -2.9 11.1 8.5 -2.1 8.0 N/A
 Bloomberg Global Aggregate TR USD Index 7.0 3.6 12.0 -3.1 -0.8 0.6 1.3 5.7 -16.2 -4.7 9.2 6.8 -1.2 7.4 N/A

Over/Under -2.3 0.6 0.9 3.3 2.7 1.2 3.2 5.3 1.8 1.9 1.7 -0.9 0.6 N/A
Global Bond MStar MF Rank 68 50 34 32 24 19 -- 12 33 43 19 25 55 44 N/A

MFS Inflation-Adjusted Bond R6 MIAKX 4.3 5.0 10.2 -1.1 2.0 2.0 2.6 2.5 -11.8 4.7 10.7 8.1 -1.7 2.7 N/A
 Bloomberg US Treasury US TIPS TR USD Index 4.1 4.9 9.8 -0.6 2.6 2.5 3.2 3.9 -11.8 6.0 11.0 8.4 -1.3 3.0 0.0

Over/Under 0.2 0.1 0.4 -0.5 -0.6 -0.5 -0.6 -1.4 0.0 -1.3 -0.3 -0.3 -0.4 -0.3 N/A
Inflation-Protected Bond MStar MF Rank 44 66 38 78 86 85 93 86 38 91 58 73 48 89 N/A

MFS Limited Maturity R6 MQLKX 3.1 5.1 8.5 2.2 2.4 2.1 2.2 6.2 -4.1 0.0 4.4 5.1 1.2 1.7 0.0
 Bloomberg US Govt/Credit 1-3 Yr TR USD Index 3.0 4.4 7.2 1.5 1.7 1.6 1.6 4.6 -3.7 -0.5 3.3 4.0 1.6 0.8 -0.4

Over/Under 0.1 0.7 1.3 0.7 0.7 0.5 0.6 1.6 -0.4 0.4 1.0 1.1 -0.4 0.8 0.4
Short-Term Bond MStar MF Rank 56 51 45 34 37 51 56 37 35 53 38 40 43 62 35

MFS Global Real Estate R6 MGLRX 13.6 8.8 26.8 -0.3 3.8 6.5 7.9 11.4 -27.0 29.9 2.2 26.5 -3.6 13.0 0.1
 FTSE EPRA Nareit Developed TR USD Index 16.3 12.6 30.2 1.4 2.4 5.0 7.1 10.9 -24.4 27.2 -8.2 23.1 -4.7 11.4 0.0

Over/Under -2.7 -3.9 -3.4 -1.7 1.4 1.5 0.9 0.5 -2.5 2.7 10.4 3.4 1.2 1.6 0.1
Global Real Estate MStar MF Rank 88 85 72 83 25 9 15 50 91 19 10 22 5 47 25

MFS Commodity Strategy R6 MCSRX 1.4 5.7 3.4 3.3 8.4 0.5 -- -6.1 13.2 28.4 -0.4 7.8 -12.8 3.8 0.3
 Bloomberg Commodity TR USD Index 0.7 5.9 1.0 3.7 7.8 0.0 -0.4 -7.9 16.1 27.1 -3.1 7.7 -11.2 1.7 0.3

Over/Under 0.7 -0.1 2.5 -0.4 0.6 0.5 1.8 -2.9 1.3 2.8 0.1 -1.5 2.1 0.0
Commodities Broad Basket MStar MF Rank 23 63 22 72 61 64 -- 48 70 67 43 62 64 60 66

Performance for the underlying mutual funds is net of mutual fund expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst. Glidepath funds are shown in tan.

Board Book Page 173



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan 

Portfolio Allocations
As of September 30, 2024 

a

a

Underlying Funds Ticker Asset Class Aggressive Moderate Conservative
Vanguard Total Stock Mkt Idx Inst+ VSMPX US Equity 48.0% 30.0% 12.0%
Vanguard Total Intl Stock Idx Inst+ VTPSX Non-US Equity 32.0% 20.0% 8.0%
Vanguard Inflation-Protected Secs I VIPIX Inflation Related 3.0% 8.0% 7.0%
Vanguard Total Bond Market Idx Inst+ VBMPX Intermediate Fixed Income 14.0% 34.0% 31.0%
Vanguard Total Intl Bd Idx Inst VTIFX Intermediate Fixed Income 3.0% 8.0% 7.0%
Vanguard Short-Term Bond Idx Ins+ VBIPX Short-Term Fixed Income 0.0% 0.0% 25.0%
Vanguard ST Infl-Prot Sec Idx Ins VTSPX Short-Term Fixed Income 0.0% 0.0% 10.0%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Aggressive Moderate Conservative

US Equity Non-US Equity Inflation Related Intermediate Fixed Income Short-Term Fixed Income

Board Book Page 174



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan 

Fee Information
a As of September 30, 2024 
a

a Underlying Board 529 Direct Sold
a Current Market Expense Administration Median

Value ($) Ratio Fee Total Fee Fee Difference
Target-Risk Portfolios
Total ABLE Aggressive 15,215,360 0.04% 0.30% 0.34% 0.35% 0.00%
Total ABLE Moderate 17,923,532 0.04% 0.30% 0.34% 0.29% 0.05%
Total ABLE Conservative 6,322,445 0.04% 0.30% 0.34% 0.34% 0.00%
Cash Option
Total ABLE Cash 60,283,477 0.00% 0.30% 0.30% 0.25% 0.05%

Total Plan 99,744,814 0.02% 0.30% 0.32% 0.28% 0.04%

The Oregon ABLE Plan and the ABLE for All Plan have an Annual Account Maintenance Fee of $35 beginning at the start of 2018. 

To the extent the interest rate on the Bank Account in which assets of the Cash Option are deposited is less during a particular period than the State Administrative Fee, the Board 
will waive the portion of the State Administrative Fee that exceeds such interest rate for the applicable period, and the Total Annual Asset-Based Fees for the Cash Option will be 
reduced accordingly for the applicable period.

Board Book Page 175



Oregon Treasury Savings Network - Oregon ABLE Savings Plan

Comparative Performance
a

a Sharpe
a Ticker QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs 5 Yrs 10 Yrs 15 Yrs 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 5 Yrs
a (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Underlying Funds - Target-Risk Portfolios
Vanguard Total Stock Mkt Idx Instl Pls VSMPX 6.2 20.6 35.3 10.1 15.2 12.8 13.7 26.0 -19.5 25.7 21.0 30.8 -5.1 21.2 0.7
 Custom Index (CRSP US Total Mkt) 6.2 20.6 35.2 10.1 15.2 12.8 13.8 26.0 -19.5 25.7 21.0 30.8 -5.2 21.2 0.7

Over/Under 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0
Large Blend MStar MF Rank 33 48 45 61 45 38 36 35 79 64 19 47 51 58 52

Vanguard Total Intl Stock Idx InstlPls VTPSX 8.0 13.6 24.9 4.0 7.8 5.5 5.6 15.5 -16.0 8.7 11.3 21.6 -14.4 27.6 0.3
 Custom Index (FTSE Glo All Cap ex US) 8.4 14.1 25.2 4.1 8.0 5.5 5.6 15.8 -16.1 8.8 11.2 21.8 -14.6 27.4 0.3

Over/Under -0.4 -0.5 -0.3 -0.1 -0.2 0.0 0.0 -0.3 0.1 -0.1 0.1 -0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0
Foreign Large Blend MStar MF Rank 29 39 46 56 54 57 75 64 55 69 42 64 48 33 50

Vanguard Inflation-Protected Secs I VIPIX 4.1 5.0 9.9 -0.6 2.5 2.5 3.1 3.8 -11.9 5.7 11.0 8.2 -1.4 3.0 0.0
 Bloomberg US Treasury US TIPS TR USD Index 4.1 4.9 9.8 -0.6 2.6 2.5 3.2 3.9 -11.8 6.0 11.0 8.4 -1.3 3.0 0.0

Over/Under 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.3 0.0 -0.2 -0.1 0.0 0.0
Inflation-Protected Bond MStar MF Rank 68 48 48 41 48 34 35 42 46 34 45 65 32 62 48

Vanguard Total Bond Market Idx InstlPls VBMPX 5.1 4.4 11.4 -1.4 0.3 1.8 2.6 5.7 -13.1 -1.6 7.7 8.7 0.0 3.6 N/A
 Custom Index (Barclays US Agg Flt-Adj) 5.1 4.5 11.5 -1.4 0.4 1.9 2.6 5.6 -13.1 -1.6 7.7 8.9 -0.1 3.6 N/A

Over/Under 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.2 0.1 0.0 N/A
Intermediate Core Bond MStar MF Rank 66 82 76 60 74 65 73 51 43 62 57 44 35 49 N/A

Vanguard Total Intl Bd Idx Institutional VTIFX 4.1 3.6 10.4 -0.7 -0.2 2.2 -- 8.9 -12.9 -2.2 4.6 7.9 3.0 2.5 N/A
 Bloomberg Gbl Agg xUSD Fl Aj RIC TR HUSD Index 3.9 3.6 10.2 -0.6 -0.1 2.3 8.7 -12.7 -2.1 4.7 8.1 3.2 2.6 N/A

Over/Under 0.2 0.0 0.2 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 0.2 -0.2 -0.1 -0.1 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 N/A
Global Bond MStar MF Rank 77 69 77 43 54 13 -- 12 45 37 85 40 4 100 N/A

Vanguard Short-Term Bond Idx InstlPls VBIPX 3.5 4.5 8.1 0.9 1.5 1.7 1.9 4.9 -5.5 -1.1 4.7 4.9 1.4 1.2 N/A
 Bloomberg US Govt/Credit 1-5 Yr TR USD Index 3.5 4.5 8.1 0.9 1.5 1.8 1.9 4.9 -5.5 -1.0 4.7 5.0 1.4 1.3 N/A

Over/Under 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 N/A
Short-Term Bond MStar MF Rank 19 90 64 93 89 86 88 87 73 93 28 47 30 87 N/A

Vanguard Shrt-Term Infl-Prot Sec Idx Ins VTSPX 2.5 4.9 7.5 2.5 3.6 2.4 -- 4.6 -2.8 5.3 5.0 4.8 0.6 0.8 0.4
 Bloomberg US TIPS 0-5 Year TR USD Index 2.5 4.8 7.5 2.5 3.6 2.4 2.3 4.6 -2.7 5.3 5.1 4.9 0.6 0.9 0.4

Over/Under 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0
Inflation-Protected Bond MStar MF Rank 100 77 100 4 8 43 -- 31 1 61 97 100 1 100 1

Ending September 30, 2024 Calendar Years

Performance for the underlying mutual funds is net of mutual fund expenses. Percentile ranks are 1 = best and 100 = worst.

Board Book Page 176



Sources: Sellwood Investment Partners LLC, Morningstar Direct, Investment Metrics, eVestment, and investment managers.

Performance is annualized for periods greater than one year.

Morningstar Mutual Fund peer groups are based on the institutional share class.

OR CSP Glidepath, Target-Risk, Balanced, and Diversified Inflation Indices are weighted returns in accordance with the target asset allocation of each fund, the indices for each fund are as follows:

Vanguard Total Stock Mkt Idx Instl Pls  CRSP US Total Stock Market

Vanguard Total Intl Stock Idx InstlPls  FTSE Global ex US All Cap NR USD

Vanguard Inflation-Protected Secs I  Bloomberg US Treasury US TIPS TR USD

DFA Global Real Estate Securities Port  S&P Global REIT NR USD

DFA Commodity Strategy Institutional  Bloomberg Commodity TR USD

Vanguard Total Bond Market Idx InstlPls  Bloomberg US Agg Bond TR USD

Vanguard Total Intl Bd Idx Institutional  Bloomberg Gbl Agg x USD Fl Aj RIC TR HUSD

Vanguard Short-Term Bond Idx InstlPls  Bloomberg US Govt/Credit 1-5 Yr TR USD

Vanguard Shrt-Term Infl-Prot Sec Idx Ins  Bloomberg U.S. Treasury TIPS 0-5Y TR USD

Vanguard Treasury Money Market Inv  ICE BofAML 3M US Trsy Note TR USD

Nuveen Large Cap Responsible Eq R6  Russell 3000 TR USD

DFA International Social Cor Eq Instl  MSCI EAFE NR USD

DFA Emerging Markets Social Core Port  MSCI EM NR USD

Nuveen Core Impact Bond R6  Bloomberg US Agg Bond TR USD

DFA Social Fixed Income Institutional  Bloomberg US Agg Bond TR USD

The OR CSP Custom Index (CRSP US Total Mkt) consists of the Russell 3000 through August 2018 and the CRSP US Total Stock Market Index thereafter.

Notes: Oregon College Savings Plan 

© Morningstar 2024. All rights reserved. Use of Morningstar content requires expert knowledge. It is to be used by specialist institutions only. The information from Morningstar contained herein: (1) is proprietary to 
Morningstar and/or its content providers; (2) may not be copied, adapted or distributed (except as required by state or federal law); and (3) is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. Neither Morningstar nor its 
content providers are responsible for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information, except where such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by law in your jurisdiction. Past financial 
performance is no guarantee of future results.

Board Book Page 177



Sources: Sellwood Investment Partners LLC, Morningstar Direct, Investment Metrics, eVestment, and investment managers.

Performance is annualized for periods greater than one year.

OR MFS Glidepath Indices are weighted returns in accordance with the target asset allocation of each corresponding asset class, the indices for each asset class are as follows:

 Russell 3000 TR USD

 MSCI ACWI Ex USA IMI NR USD

 Bloomberg Commodity TR USD

 FTSE EPRA Nareit Developed NR USD

 Bloomberg US Agg Bond TR USD

 Bloomberg US Govt/Credit 1-3 Yr TR USD

 ICE BofA 3M US Trsy Note TR USD

Morningstar MF Peer Groups are based on all share class types for this report.

© Morningstar 2024. All rights reserved. Use of Morningstar content requires expert knowledge. It is to be used by specialist institutions only. The information from Morningstar contained herein: (1) is proprietary to 
Morningstar and/or its content providers; (2) may not be copied, adapted or distributed (except as required by state or federal law); and (3) is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. Neither Morningstar nor its 
content providers are responsible for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information, except where such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by law in your jurisdiction. Past financial 
performance is no guarantee of future results.

Notes: MFS 529 Savings Plan

Aggressive Growth Allocation Index consists of 60% S&P 500 Index, 30% MSCI EAFE Index, 5% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Index, and 5% Bloomberg Commodity Index.

Growth Allocation Index consists of 52% S&P 500 Index, 20% MSCI EAFE Index, 21% Barclays US Aggregate Bond Index, 3% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Index, and 4% Bloomberg Commodity Index.

Moderate Allocation Index consists of 41% S&P 500 Index, 13% MSCI EAFE Index, 41% Barclays US Aggregate Bond Index, 2% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed, and 3% Bloomberg Commodity Index.

Conservative Allocation Index consists of 28% S&P 500 Index, 8% MSCI EAFE Index, 62% Barclays US Aggregate Bond Index, 1% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Index, and 1% Bloomberg Commodity Index.

Lifetime consists of 20% S&P 500 Index, 5% MSCI EAFE Index, 73% Barclays US Aggregate Bond Index, 1% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed, and 1% Bloomberg Commodity Index.

US Equity

Non-U.S. Equity

Commodities

Global Real Estate

Intermediate Bonds

Short Term Bonds

Cash Equivalents

Board Book Page 178



Yield to Maturity - Rate of return an investor will receive if a long-term, interest-bearing security, such as a bond, is held to its maturity date.

Price/Book (P/B) -  Ratio of a stock's current price divided by the company's book value per share (total assets of a company, less total liabilities, divided by the number of shares 
outstanding).  For a portfolio, calculated as the weighted average of P/B ratios of all stocks in the portfolio, with any stocks with negative book values being excluded.

R-squared (R2) – The percentage of a portfolio's return variance explained by the benchmark's returns.

Sharpe Ratio – Measure of risk-adjusted performance, calculated by dividing a portfolio's annualized excess returns over the risk-free rate (90 Day T-Bills) by its annualized standard 
deviation. The Sharpe ratio is not meaningful for comparison purposes when annualized excess return over the risk-free rate is negative.

Standard Deviation - Measure of dispersion about an average, depicts how widely a portfolio's returns varied over a certain period of time.

Tracking Error – The standard deviation (variability) of a portfolio’s excess return relative to a benchmark.

Upside/Downside Capture – Upside/downside capture measures the percentage of a benchmark return realized by a portfolio during positive return periods (upside) or negative return 
periods (downside) within a defined time period.  A value over 100 indicates outperformance for upside capture and underperformance for downside capture.

Price/Earnings (P/E) - Ratio of a stock's current price divided by the company's trailing 12-month earnings per share from continuous operations.  For a portfolio, calculated as the 
weighted average of P/E ratios of all stocks in the portfolio.

Glossary

Active Share - Measure of the proportion to which a portfolio's holdings composition differs from the composition found in its benchmark. The greater the difference between the asset 
composition of the fund and its benchmark, the greater the active share.
Average Credit Quality - Measure of a bond portfolio's overall credit quality, calculated as an average of each bond's credit rating, as assigned by Standard & Poor's or Moody's, adjusted 
for its relative weighting in the portfolio.
Batting Average - Measure of an investment manager's ability to meet or beat an index, calculated by dividing the number of days (or months, quarters, etc.) in which the manager beats 
or matches the index by the total number of days (or months, quarters, etc.) in the period of question and multiplying that factor by 100.
Beta - Measure of a portfolio's sensitivity to market movements, calculated by comparing a portfolio's excess return over the risk-free rate (90 Day T-Bills) to the market's excess return 
over the same risk-free rate.  The beta of the market is 1.00 by definition.

Correlation – Measure of how two securities move in relation to each other, calculated as a correlation coefficient, which ranges between -1 and +1. Perfect positive correlation (+1) 
implies that as one security moves up or down the other security will always move in the same direction. Alternatively, perfect negative correlation (-1) means that the securities always 
move in the opposite direction. If the correlation is 0, the security movements have no correlation.

Dividend Yield - Dividends per share of a security or portfolio over the trailing one-year period as a percentage of the current stock price(s).

Duration - Measure of a bond or bond portfolio's sensitivity to changes in interest rates, calculated based on the weighted average of the time periods over which bond cash flows accrue 
to the bondholder. A portfolio with a 5-year duration would be expected to lose 5% of its net asset value if interest rates rose by 1 percentage point, or gain 5% if interest rates fell by 1 
percentage point.

Excess Return - Measure of a portfolio's achieved rate of return minus the return of a benchmark over the same period.

Information Ratio - Portfolio excess return relative to a benchmark divided by the portfolio return’s tracking error relative to the same benchmark.  Information ratio measures how much 
excess return is generated from the amount of excess risk taken relative to a benchmark.  

Board Book Page 179



Retrospective (2017 to 2024)
OREGON TREASURY SAVINGS NETWORK

OR 529 SAVINGS BOARD

S EP T EM B ER  3 0 ,  2 0 2 4

Board Book Page 180



Timeline

Oregon ABLE and ABLE for 
All are launched

The country's first state-mandated 
Secure Choice retirement plan, 

OregonSaves, is launched

Oregon College Savings Plan Modernization:
-Most progressive glidepath in the country

-Open architecture investment platform

Oregon 529 contributions 
are adjusted to a tax credit

MFS 529 Plan Modernization:
-Matches OCSP's progressive glidepath

-Streamlined investment line-up

Se
p 

20
16

Ja
n 

20
17

M
ay

 2
01

7

Se
p 

20
17

Ja
n 

20
18

M
ay

 2
01

8

Se
p 

20
18

Ja
n 

20
19

M
ay

 2
01

9

Se
p 

20
19

Ja
n 

20
20

M
ay

 2
02

0

Se
p 

20
20

Ja
n 

20
21

M
ay

 2
02

1

Se
p 

20
21

Ja
n 

20
22

M
ay

 2
02

2

Se
p 

20
22

Ja
n 

20
23

M
ay

 2
02

3

Se
p 

20
23

Ja
n 

20
24

M
ay

 2
02

4

Se
p 

20
24

Board Book Page 181



Plan Funded Account History

 -

 50,000

 100,000

 150,000

 200,000

 250,000

 300,000

 350,000

 400,000
Ja

n-
17

Ju
n-

17
N

ov
-1

7
Ap

r-
18

Se
p-

18
Fe

b-
19

Ju
l-1

9
D

ec
-1

9
M

ay
-2

0
O

ct
-2

0
M

ar
-2

1
Au

g-
21

Ja
n-

22
Ju

n-
22

N
ov

-2
2

Ap
r-

23
Se

p-
23

Fe
b-

24
Ju

l-2
4

Funded Acccount History

OregonSaves

OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL

MFS 529 Savings Plan

Oregon College Savings Plan

363,730

177,008

TotalOregonSaves
OR ABLE and ABLE 

for ALL
MFS 529 Savings Plan

Oregon College 
Savings Plan

177,008 -300 81,095 95,613 Jan-17

363,730 130,791 7,988 83,073 141,878 Sep-24

186,722 130,791 7,688 1,978 46,265 Difference

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence.

Board Book Page 182



Plan Market Value History

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

$5.0

$6.0

$7.0
Se

p-
16

M
ar

-1
7

Se
p-

17

M
ar

-1
8

Se
p-

18

M
ar

-1
9

Se
p-

19

M
ar

-2
0

Se
p-

20

M
ar

-2
1

Se
p-

21

M
ar

-2
2

Se
p-

22

M
ar

-2
3

Se
p-

23

M
ar

-2
4

Se
p-

24

Bi
lli

on
s

Market Value History

OregonSaves

OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL

MFS 529 Savings Plan

Oregon College Savings Plan

$5.7B

TotalOregonSaves
OR ABLE and ABLE 

for ALL
MFS 529 Savings Plan

Oregon College 
Savings PlanMarket Value 

$2,830,530,059$0$1,213,210$1,318,757,059$1,510,559,790Jan-17

$5,735,188,549$323,422,013$99,730,827$1,955,116,392$3,356,919,316Sep-24

$2,904,658,490$323,422,013$98,517,617$636,359,333$1,846,359,526Difference

$2.8B

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence.

Board Book Page 183



Oregon College Savings Plan

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence.

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

YTD 202420232022202120202019201820172016

Plan Account History

Previous Accounts New Accounts National Direct-Sold Account Growth (Scaled to Dec 2010)

Board Book Page 184



Oregon College Savings Plan

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence.

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

$4,000

D
ec

-1
6

Ap
r-1

7

Au
g-

17

D
ec

-1
7

Ap
r-1

8

Au
g-

18

D
ec

-1
8

Ap
r-1

9

Au
g-

19

D
ec

-1
9

Ap
r-2

0

Au
g-

20

D
ec

-2
0

Ap
r-2

1

Au
g-

21

D
ec

-2
1

Ap
r-2

2

Au
g-

22

D
ec

-2
2

Ap
r-2

3

Au
g-

23

D
ec

-2
3

Ap
r-2

4

Au
g-

24

M
illi

on
s

Plan Market Value History

Cumulative Net Cash Flow Total Plan Market Value

National Direct-Sold Plan Growth (Scaled to Dec 2016)

Board Book Page 185



MFS 529 Savings Plan

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence.

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

YTD 202420232022202120202019201820172016

Plan Account History

Previous Accounts New Accounts National Advisor-Sold Account Growth (Scaled to Dec 2010)

Board Book Page 186



MFS 529 Savings Plan

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence.

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

D
ec

-1
6

Ap
r-1

7

Au
g-

17

D
ec

-1
7

Ap
r-1

8

Au
g-

18

D
ec

-1
8

Ap
r-1

9

Au
g-

19

D
ec

-1
9

Ap
r-2

0

Au
g-

20

D
ec

-2
0

Ap
r-2

1

Au
g-

21

D
ec

-2
1

Ap
r-2

2

Au
g-

22

D
ec

-2
2

Ap
r-2

3

Au
g-

23

D
ec

-2
3

Ap
r-2

4

Au
g-

24

M
illi

on
s

Plan Market Value History

Total Plan Market Value

Cumulative Net Cash Flow

National Advisor-Sold Plan Growth (Scaled to Dec 2010)

Board Book Page 187



OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners, ISS Market Intelligence.

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Sep-24Dec-23Dec-22Dec-21Dec-20Dec-19Dec-18Dec-17Dec-16

Plan Account History

Previous Accounts Zero Balance Accounts New Accounts

Board Book Page 188



OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

$0.0

$20.0

$40.0

$60.0

$80.0

$100.0

$120.0

D
ec

-1
6

M
ar

-1
7

Ju
n-

17

Se
p-

17

D
ec

-1
7

M
ar

-1
8

Ju
n-

18

Se
p-

18

D
ec

-1
8

M
ar

-1
9

Ju
n-

19

Se
p-

19

D
ec

-1
9

M
ar

-2
0

Ju
n-

20

Se
p-

20

D
ec

-2
0

M
ar

-2
1

Ju
n-

21

Se
p-

21

D
ec

-2
1

M
ar

-2
2

Ju
n-

22

Se
p-

22

D
ec

-2
2

M
ar

-2
3

Ju
n-

23

Se
p-

23

D
ec

-2
3

M
ar

-2
4

Ju
n-

24

Se
p-

24

M
illi

on
s

Plan Market Value History

Cumulative Net Cash Flow Total Plan Market Value

Board Book Page 189



Cumulative Cash Flows Since Jan 2017

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

$1,970$1,767
$1,505

$1,245
$947

$692
$442$216

$1,044$948$825$699$512$375$237$102 $126$104$79$57$36$20$10
$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

YTD 20242023202220212020201920182017

M
illi

on
s

Cumulative Contributions

-$1,339
-$1,146

-$915
-$716

-$530
-$382

-$230
-$104

-$993-$886
-$750

-$602
-$414

-$279
-$154-$75 -$43-$34-$23-$16-$9-$2

-$1,500

-$1,000

-$500

$0
YTD 20242023202220212020201920182017

M
illi

on
s

Cumulative Distributions

$631$622$590
$528

$417

$310

$212

$112
$51$61$75$97$98$96$83

$26
$84$71$55$41$27$15$8

$0
$100
$200
$300
$400
$500
$600
$700

YTD 20242023202220212020201920182017

M
illi

on
s

Cumulative Net Cash FlowOregon College Savings Plan
MFS 529 Savings Plan
OR ABLE and ABLE for ALL Plans

Board Book Page 190



Geographic Coverage

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners. Coverage rate based on Total Population under 25 per county based on July 1, 2023 annual population 
report tables from Portland State University's Population Research Center.

Beneficiary Coverage Rate by County - OCSP & MFS Plan Combined

Board Book Page 191



Geographic Coverage Growth Since 2017

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners. Coverage rate based on Total Population under 25 per county based on July 1, 2023 and 2017 annual 
population report tables from Portland State University's Population Research Center.

Beneficiary Coverage Growth Rate by County - OCSP & MFS Plan Combined

Board Book Page 192



Geographic Coverage – ABLE

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

Oregon ABLE Savings Plan and ABLE for ALL Savings Plan

Board Book Page 193



Beneficiary Coverage Rate by Zip Code 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

Oregon College Savings Plan

R² = 0.47

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

$0 $20,000 $40,000 $60,000 $80,000 $100,000 $120,000

C
ov

er
ag

e 
R

at
e

Median Income per Household (2017)

Median Income versus Coverage Rate
As of September 2024

Board Book Page 194



Beneficiary Coverage Rate by Zip Code 

Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners.

Oregon College Savings Plan

R² = 0.06

-5.0%

-3.0%

-1.0%

1.0%

3.0%

5.0%

7.0%

9.0%

$0 $20,000 $40,000 $60,000 $80,000 $100,000 $120,000

C
ov

er
ag

e 
R

at
e 

G
ro

w
th

Median Income per Household

Coverage Rate Growth versus Median Income
Sept 2017 to September 2024

Board Book Page 195



Beneficiary Coverage Rate by Zip Code 

Coverage rate is equal to the Total Beneficiaries divided by the Total Households per Zip Code. Total Households per Zip Code is sourced from American Community 
Survey 5-Year Estimates provided by the U.S. Census Bureau. Source: Program Managers, Sellwood Investment Partners. U.S. Census Bureau.

Oregon College Savings Plan

1.6%
2.8%

6.5%

10.8%

19.5%

5.0%

2.5%
4.4%

9.6%

14.8%

22.8%

7.2%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

$00 - $40,000 $40,000 - $60,000 $60,000 - $80,000 $80,000 - $100,000 $100,000 -
$1,000,000

Total

Coverage Rate – By Household

Coverage Rate - Sept 2017 Coverage Rate - Sept 2024

Board Book Page 196



PROPRIETARY & CONFIDENTIAL TO VESTWELL HOLDINGS / FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

Oregon 529 Savings Board 
November 21, 2024

Board Book Page 197



AGENDA

Program Success

Program Success 

Customer Service

2

Board Book Page 198



Oregon ABLE Savings Plan

Program Success

3

Board Book Page 199



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

4

October 2015

Then Representative Read 
worked to pass the 
Oregon ABLE legislation 
in the 2015 Session

Oregon ABLE Savings Plan

Passing of SB 777 Launch of Oregon ABLE Creation of the       
ABLE Collaboration

December 6, 2016

Treasurer Read spoke at 
Oregon ABLE launch 
events across the state

July 2017

Created by Oregon and 
Sumday/Vestwell.  
Lowered fees by $10 per 
year for all savers

Maryland, Washington, 
Alabama & Hawaii

Timeline

Board Book Page 200



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

• 7th largest for Accounts (7,988)
• 8th largest for AUM ($99.7M)

Nationally Recognized 

5

Empowering Saving

Fostering Accessibility 

• $12,482 Average Account Balance
• This is $10K more than people

could save prior to ABLE

• ⅓ of all accounts are managed by
the person with the disability

• Savers in all but 2 Oregon counties
and range from age 1-89

Oregon ABLE & ABLE for ALL

Creating Access
People saving since the launch of the 
program have contributed on average 
$31,559 and have an average balance of 
$27,606 

A snapshot from 2017 to today

Board Book Page 201



Oregon College Savings Plan

Program Success

6

Board Book Page 202



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

7

• Over 46K accounts opened
• Assets increased by $1.8 billion

Oregon College Savings Plan

Increasing Participation Creating Access
There are OCSP accounts in every county 
in Oregon and in over 30 states 
nationwide

• First plan to launch single Year of
Enrollment portfolio

• Known nationally for community
initiatives such as BottleDrop

Nationally Recognized Empowering Saving

People saving since 2019 have 
contributed on average $15,734 and 
have an average balance of $33,191

A snapshot from 2017 to today

Board Book Page 203



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

Streamlining Account 
Opening

Enhancing Account 
Management 

Saver Engagement

8

Community Programs

BottleDrop

Baby Grad & 
Kinder Grad

Ontario Promise

Promo Codes for 
Account Opening 

Incentives for Account 
Management 

Account Incentives

Innovation to Support Engagement
Oregon College Savings Plan

Board Book Page 204



Statistics

Customer Service

9

Board Book Page 205



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

10

Call Center - Oregon College Savings Plan

Board Book Page 206



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

11

Call Center - Oregon ABLE & ABLE for ALL

Board Book Page 207



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

12

Service Levels (1 of 4)

Category and Definition Management Company Performance Standard JUL AUG SEP Q3 24'

Timeliness in Processing Financial Transactions
Grading based on timeliness of processing requests received in good order by 4 PM 
ET
Financials - Purchases/ Redemptions/ Exchanges / Transfers - Process trades on 
trade date for the month and dividing by the total financial transactions processed.
Performance Notes: No issues to report

ABLE - Oregon 98% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

529 - Oregon College Savings Plan 98% 99.71% 100.00% 99.40% 99.70%

529 - MFS/Oregon Advisor 98% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Quality Processing Financial Transactions
Grading based on the accuracy of processing Purchases/ Redemptions/ Exchanges / 
Transfers
Quality is measured by subtracting BNY Mellon financial errors from the total financial 
transactions
Performance Notes: No issues to report

ABLE - Oregon 98%

99.34% 99.32% 98.97% 99.21%
529 - Oregon College Savings Plan 98%

529 - MFS/Oregon Advisor 98% 98.68% 98.14% 98.02% 98.28%

Timeliness in Processing Non Financial Transactions
Grading based on timeliness of processing requests received in good order by 4 PM 
ET
Non Financials -  New Accounts/ Account Maintenances: process by receive IGO 
date (T+4)
Performance Notes: No issues to report

ABLE - Oregon 95% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

529 - Oregon College Savings Plan 95% 98.69% 99.54% 100.00% 99.41%

529 - MFS/Oregon Advisor 95% 99.86% 99.91% 99.28% 99.68%

Board Book Page 208



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

13

Service Levels (2 of 4)

Board Book Page 209



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

14

Service Levels (3 of 4)

Board Book Page 210



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

15

Service Levels (4 of 4)

Board Book Page 211



Thank You!
16

Board Book Page 212



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

Disclosure

This report is prepared for the Oregon 529 Savings Board pursuant to Section529 and 529A of the Internal Revenue Code and Oregon 
State law and should not be used by any other individual or entity or for any other purpose. 

Vestwell State Savings serves as the Program Manager of the Oregon College Savings Plan, MFS 529 Savings Plan, Oregon ABLE 
Savings Plan and the ABLE for ALL Savings Plan. Vestwell State Savings has overall responsibility for the Plan’s day-to-day 
operations, including recordkeeping, customer service and administrative services.

17

Board Book Page 213



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

Beneficiaries & Contributions
• 6,443 beneficiaries with

$1,733,740 contributed
Additional Benefits 
• Over 17 million cans &

bottles recycled
• Close to 36 million

kilowatt-hours of energy
saved

BottleDrop

18

Baby Grad & Kinder Grad

Baby Grad
• 14,404 accounts

opened with $360,100
in seed contributions

Kinder Grad
• 3,714 accounts opened

with $92,850 in seed
contributions

Promo Codes
• 1,690 codes have

been redeemed
• $136,106 contributed

Partners
• Early Head Start
• Financial Beginnings
• Gear Up
• Birch Comm. Services
• and more

Community Incentives

Innovative Programs 
Oregon College Savings Plan

Board Book Page 214



Q3 Marketing Overview
Oregon College Savings Plan | Oregon ABLE Savings Plan
November 21, 2024

Board Book Page 215



AGENDA

• Strategy Overview

• Campaign Overview

• Campaign Highlights

• Website Performance

• Lookback

• Appendix

2024 Marketing Overview 2

Board Book Page 216



Q3 Strategy

2024 Marketing Overview 3

Connect personally at each stage of the savings journey.

Launch and test
Share new educational and 
problem-solving video content 
with Save Smart, Invest Best, and 
What If to build interest and trust. 

Optimize growth
Identify which strategies resonate 
best in Q3 in order to maximize 
Gifting engagement and optimize 
conversions.

Channels | Programmatic, Paid Social, YouTube, Paid Search, and Email

Q3 spending was higher than both the previous quarter and the corresponding quarterly spend in 2023 
due to the planned launch of new campaign strategies.

Sustain engagement
Prioritize retention efforts by nurturing 
existing account holders with a refer-a-
friend Sweepstakes to increase loyalty, 
referrals, and account engagement.

Board Book Page 217



Q3 Overview

2024 Marketing Overview 4

We’re continuing to see new and steady account growth, with 2,103 new accounts opened in Q3 (a drop from last 
quarter); and an 3.3% increase over Q3 2023). We continue to see a consistent percentage of new accounts opting in to 
email communications (91%). Of the new accounts, 714 (34%) set up automatic contributions; consistent with last 
quarter’s percentage.

Seasonal Campaign
o Ontario Promise

o Account Holder Sweepstakes

Evergreen Campaigns
o Baby Grad / Kinder Grad

Primary Campaigns
o Save Smart

o Invest Best

o What If

Emails |
o Account Holder “Refer-a-Friend” Sweepstakes — AUG

HIGHLIGHT | OCSP’s Diversity in Leadership 
Scholarship Award winners were announced in 
September!
• Eberildo Ramos Matias, Accounting,

University of Oregon
• Leanna Rios, Education, Western Oregon

University

Board Book Page 218



Q3 Campaign Overview

Marketing Overview 52024

Invest Best
Shared how OCSP investing offers 
tax-free compound growth that helps 
savings go further.

What If
Campaign that addresses Oregonians 
biggest "what if" questions to encourage 
account sign up.

Save Smart
Informed families of how investing a 
little in the Plan now unlocks bigger 
savings and opportunities later.

PAID SEARCH | Launched Spanish language 
College and Beyond and Grad ads.

For English ads, Branded campaigns continue 
to see the most conversions. 

Ontario Promise
Encouraged account sign-ups with a $100 
geo-specific promo code.

Account Holder Sweepstakes
Encouraged account holder engagement by 
incentivizing referrals and account feature 
setup. 

Baby / Kinder Grad
Encourage parents to start saving early for their 
kid’s future with the offer of a $25 incentive.

Board Book Page 219

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1n1b6i2G7nyHMZG9JTpwaTmb83j8NAKur/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16qd0mvfm_35gvLviIhX8rCBVHtWRxBoA/view?usp=drive_link


Q3 Spanish Paid Search

2024 Marketing Overview 6

Launched September 9, 2024
With the launch of the website translations, we are now able to create Spanish 
language search ads that would drive directly to translated pages on the site. 

Board Book Page 220



Q3 What If?

Trusted Partners
Financial confidence starts with trust.

Backed by industry-leading partners and trusted 
financial expertise, our 529 plan offers you the 
security of a time-tested savings option. Designed 
with families in mind, we’re here to help you 
confidently prepare for your child’s future—no 
matter where their dreams may lead.

Launched September 3, 2024
We launched a new acquisition campaign, What If, informed by website FAQ traffic and account 
holder/non-account holder survey findings. Top FAQ messaging was integrated into our foundation 
campaigns, Save Smart & Invest Best, using a sophisticated targeting strategy to reduce barriers to entry.

Flexible Saving and Spending
Save today, invest in tomorrow’s dreams.

OCSP grows with your family’s needs. Our flexible 
savings adapt as your child’s future unfolds—whether 
it’s college, trade school, or a new path they’re 
passionate about. Enjoy tax advantages and the 
freedom to prioritize how you fund their education, 
no matter where the journey takes them.

Community Support
Saving made social.

OCSP turns saving for education into a team effort 
with a gifting program that lets friends and family 
contribute directly to your child’s future. From 
birthdays to holidays, loved ones can make 
meaningful contributions that add up, helping build 
a brighter tomorrow with each gift. It’s support from 
your community, now made simple and impactful.

2024 Marketing Overview 7

Board Book Page 221



Q3 Account Holder Sweepstakes

Value Propositions:

Flexible Saving and Spending
Community Support
Trusted Partners

August 13 - September 12, 2024
To build momentum during summer, which is historically slower, we launched a new account holder 
sweepstakes. This campaign encouraged users to activate key account features and send referrals in 
order to gain more entries and increase their chances of winning $250.

Account Holder Incentives:

● Turn on automatic contributions
● Connect their BottleDrop account
● Create a Gifting page
● Refer a friend

811 
Unique 

Participants

60%
Engaged with their account 

beyond just the sweepstakes

2024 Marketing Overview 8

Board Book Page 222

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1jNPRiMyrnQR421OpHAXcPclNJfKnTJWw/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1is17C82gEY9TrI5NKJoOYHBBmBgHvZGz/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1is17C82gEY9TrI5NKJoOYHBBmBgHvZGz/view?usp=drive_link


Website Refresh
OCSP’s revamped website now includes 
several language translations and we are 
starting to get a better understanding of 
our audience. 

2024 Marketing Overview 9

Board Book Page 223



Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.

+49%
growth in account 
opens since 2017 

Treasurer Read Lookback

p. 10

95,613 accounts in 2017 → 142,463+ in 2024



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Treasurer Read Lookback

How we did it:

p. 11

Introduced email marketing
and sent over 2.3 million 

emails since 2020.

Heard from 2,834 
Oregon families through 
interviews and surveys.

Built a new website with 
a simplified user experience 

to drive conversion. 

Board Book Page 225



Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.

How we did it (cont.)

Launched 500+ 
paid marketing 
campaigns

p. 12
Will 

need 
design 
help

to build awareness about 
the Plan’s core benefits 
and offerings.

Board Book 
Page 226

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ioQKCBciFTkwQHvAUI_vxssaS6m70x2B/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/14n9R8iw8Al4cw2ooBSrzEGExsWm0NQMN/view?usp=drive_link


Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.

How we did it (cont.)

p. 13

Developed a 
video testimonial 
content library 
for multi-channel 
usage.

Board Book 
Page 227

http://drive.google.com/file/d/12NC-ATNelabWcJLOLfies0QzQEFyOojp/view


Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.

+2616%
growth in account 
opens since 2017 

Treasurer Read Lookback

p. 14

300 accounts in 2017 → 8148+ in 2024

Board Book 
Page 228



Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.

How we did it (cont.)

Launched 75+ 
paid marketing 
campaigns

p. 15

to build awareness 
about the Plan’s core 
benefits and offerings.

Board Book 
Page 229

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1pOHrjODxwosCrjq9Yt-XOOVJ4tcf7q2x/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a0LUQBujPnmrT93MaCSWNlpxdPp-kdWk/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a0LUQBujPnmrT93MaCSWNlpxdPp-kdWk/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a0LUQBujPnmrT93MaCSWNlpxdPp-kdWk/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a0LUQBujPnmrT93MaCSWNlpxdPp-kdWk/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a0LUQBujPnmrT93MaCSWNlpxdPp-kdWk/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a0LUQBujPnmrT93MaCSWNlpxdPp-kdWk/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a0LUQBujPnmrT93MaCSWNlpxdPp-kdWk/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gpyZ432REqItEneNyMBbqCp4CEO_Xe1H/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1sP_Z9VUU4uyIutdOXZlRqB-PPz9rDPdy/view?usp=drive_link


Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.

How we did it (cont.)

p. 16

Developed a 
video testimonial 
content library 
for multi-channel 
usage.

Board Book 
Page 230



THANK YOU

2024 Marketing Overview 17

Kasey Krifka

Marketing and Communications Director

OregonCollegeSavings.com

Board Book Page 231



APPENDIX

Board Book Page 232



Oregon 529 Savings Board Goals

2024 Marketing Overview 19

Shared vision of the 529 Board and the Oregon Treasury Savings Network: “Empowering all Oregonians to build 
lifetime financial security through education and simple, professionally-managed savings programs.”

BOARD VALUES | Accessible, Inclusive, Trusted, Innovative

Making saving accessible by removing barriers. Offering opportunities inclusive of all Oregonians, especially 
underserved populations. Being a trusted partner in achieving personal financial goals. Providing innovative, 
industry-leading savings tools.

No.2: Maximize the 
experience for savers

No.3: Build sustainable 
operations

No. 1: Convert non-
savers to savers

Board Book Page 233



Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.

OTSN Q3 
Performance Report
November 21, 2024

p. 20
Board Book 
Page 234



Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.

OTSN Q3 
Performance Report
November 21, 2024

p. 21
Board Book 
Page 235



Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute. p. 22

Contents Q3 Performance Overview 
● Strategy Objectives Lookback
● Overall CPA/ROI
● Overall Media Strategy

Campaign Performance (Individual)
● Save Smart
● Invest Best
● What If
● AH Sweepstakes
● Ontario Promise
● BBKD
● Paid Search
● Website
● Treasurer Reed Lookback

Appendix
● College & Beyond/& Beyond
● Welcome Series
● Data Tables

Board Book 
Page 236



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 23

Q3 Strategy Overview 

Connect personally at each 
stage of the savings journey.

Launch & test content 

Share new educational and problem-
solving video content with Save Smart, 
Invest Best, and What If
to build interest and trust.

Test new video testimonial campaigns 
with different ad formats, targeting 
options, and channel strategies.

Optimize growth 

Identify which strategies resonate 
best in Q3 in order to maximize 
Gifting engagement and optimize 
conversions. 

Priorities:

Initiatives:

Sustain engagement

Prioritize retention efforts by nurturing 
existing account holders with a refer-a-
friend Sweepstakes to increase loyalty, 
referrals, and account engagement.

Links
Q3/Q4 Campaign Calendar

Q3 Paid Media Program
Q4 Paid Media Program

Board Book 
Page 237



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 24

NEW ACCOUNTS OPENED

2,103
2,035 2023 Q3 | 2,254 2024 Q2

~ 4 (0.1%) attributed  to marketing**
13 attributed to Welcome Series
19 attributed to Sweepstakes

1,910 (91%) opted in to marketing
2,050 (91%) 2024 Q2 

714 (34%) set up auto contributions 
834 (37%)  FY24 Q2

Q3 Performance Overview

**According to Vestwell GA4

Board Book 
Page 238



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 25

Launched our most 
extensive campaign 
lineup yet.

51K

10M

39%

Educational Awareness

5K

1M

7%

Seasonal Incentive

Q3 Performance Overview | Media Strategy

Volume by Campaign Type

Awareness TrafficConversion

71% Programmatic

12% Paid Social

17% YouTube

34% Programmatic
29% YouTube
28% Paid Social
9% Paid Search

66% Paid Search
21% Paid Social
7% Programmatic
6% YouTube

Acquisition

48K

4M

22%

Evergreen Incentive

36K

7M

29%Spend

Impressions

Clicks

Board Book 
Page 239



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

OTSN Q3 Performance Report

p. 26

Connecting audiences 
with the right answers.
Developed a new Save Smart and Invest Best audience ecosystem, using a What If acquisition retargeting 
strategy. The messaging focused on addressing key questions to help build confidence in why OCSP is the 
right choice for them.

Link to targeting strategy wireframe

Board Book 
Page 240



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 27

Save Smart
Educational Awareness Overview

Reporting Dates: August 1–September 30
Platforms: Paid Social, YouTube, and Programmatic
Objectives: Awareness, Traffic

Informed families of how investing a little in the Plan 
now unlocks bigger savings and opportunities later.

TOTAL SPEND

15%
-9% YOY

4M
+21% YOY

Impressions per channel Click-through rate per channel

TOTAL 
IMPRESSIONS

TOTAL 
CLICKS

TARGET 
ACTIONS

N/A
-% YOY

16K
+43% YOY

Board Book Page 241



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Compared to the same period in 
2023, with similar Awareness and 
Traffic objectives, we saw over a 15% 
improvement in impressions, CTR, 
and cost-per-metric.

Utilized the Save Smart audience 
and new video creative to create a 
retarget audience for What If.

p. 28

Wins

Board Book 
Page 242



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Save Smart

Refreshed creative improved 
overall performance.

p. 29

Key Highlights

In addition to improvements in the key metrics for 
awareness and traffic campaigns, Save Smart was 
leveraged as a warm-up funnel for What If retargeting. 

Impressions

+21%
CTR

+18%
Spend

-9%
CPM

-24%
CPC

-36%

2023 Q3 v. 2024 Q3

2024 VP 1.1
Meta ads

2023 VP 1.1
Meta ads

Unique Reach

~8,344
Save Smart 

Retarget Audience

~322
What If 

Retarget Audience

Board Book 
Page 243



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 30

Invest Best
Educational Awareness Overview

Reporting Dates: August 1–September 30
Platforms: Paid Social, YouTube, and Programmatic
Objectives: Awareness, Traffic

Shared how OCSP investing offers tax-free 
compound growth that helps savings go further.

TOTAL SPEND

14%
-70% YOY

3M
-41% YOY

Impressions per channel Click-through rate per channel

TOTAL 
IMPRESSIONS

TOTAL 
CLICKS

TARGET 
ACTIONS

N/A
-% YOY

7K
-75% YOY

Board Book Page 244



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Maintained ad efficiencies by utilizing 
top performing messaging from Q1 and 
altering spend and targeting strategies.

Successfully connected Invest Best 
and What If campaigns by focusing 
on hyper-specific high-income 
audiences and creating a retargeting 
audience funnel.

p. 31

Wins

Board Book 
Page 245



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Invest Best

p. 32

Key Highlights

In Q1, we learned that “Invest Best” (VP 12) resonated better 
with Awareness audiences and “Target Enrollment Portfolios” 
(VP 12.1) did better with Traffic, so we ran each VP to their 
strengths. We also reduced overall spend and expanded the 
targeting strategy to incorporate the What If campaign. 

This resulted in:
● Overall metric changes YoY were proportional to the

reduction in spend, indicating they maintained
efficiencies with spending.

Awareness

RUN TIME IMP.

Q3 2024
VP12 Only

991,292
(-57%)

Q3 2023
VP 12 + VP12.1 2,326,306

Traffic

RUN TIME CTR

Q3 2024
VP12.1 Only

0.12%
(-42%)

Q3 2023
VP 12 + VP12.1 0.21%

Unique Reach

~11,383
Invest Best

Retarget Audience

~188
What If 

Retarget Audience
VP 12- Invest Best | VP 12.1- Target Enrollment Portfolios

Expanded targeting strategy while 
maintaining efficiencies.

Board Book 
Page 246



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Opportunities

p. 33

As we better understand how the new 
video content resonates with audiences, 
we can optimize by objective, time, year, 
or campaign duration.

Incorporate previous ads into the 
mix to keep ads feeling fresh while 
utilizing existing creative. 

Board Book 
Page 247



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 34

What If?
Acquisition

Reporting Dates: September 3–30
Platforms: Paid Social, YouTube, and Programmatic
Objectives: Awareness, Traffic, Conversion

Expressed how OCSP supports families 
wherever they are at on their savings journey.

TOTAL SPEND

16%
N/A YOY

2M
N/A YOY

Impressions per channel Click-through rate per channel

TOTAL 
IMPRESSIONS

TOTAL 
CLICKS

46
-% YOY

21K
N/A YOY

TARGET 
ACTIONS

Board Book Page 248



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 35

Successfully launched 
What If using a 
sophisticated targeting 
approach utilizing both Save 
Smart and Invest Best
audiences for retargeting. 

Value proposition performance 
shows that “Community 
Support” messaging resonates 
best with Save Smart audiences. 

Alternatively, messaging 
around “Flexible Saving / 
Spending” and “Trusted 
Partners” resonates more 
with Invest Best audiences. 

Wins

Board Book 
Page 249



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

What If – Save Smart

Save Smart audiences resonate with 
“Community Support” messaging.

p. 36

Key Highlights

Overall the Save Smart audiences resonated with the 
What If campaign based on a higher than average CTR 
across all value propositions for traffic optimized 
campaigns, with a slight preference for messaging 
around community gifting (VP 11.2).

There was a higher number of Target Actions (clicks on 
“open account”) for community support. However, it had 
the lowest CTR, which indicates there might be a 
disconnect between the ad messaging and taking action. 

Traffic

VALUE PROP. CTR IMP.

VP 11.1 2.00% 169,124

VP 11.2 2.62% 72,054

VP 11.3 2.22% 94,388

Conversion

VALUE PROP.
Target Actions 
(TA)

TA Rate 
(TA/Clicks)

Clicks

VP 11.1 0 0% 516

VP 11.2 24 7% 323

VP 11.3 3 2% 180

VP 11.1 - Flexible Saving and Spending | VP 11.2 - Community Support | VP 11.3 - Trusted Partners

Board Book 
Page 250



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

What If – Invest Best

p. 37

Key Highlights

Similar to the Save Smart audience, the Invest Best
traffic audience had a high overall engagement with 
the What If campaign, but this audience had a slight 
preference for “Flexible Savings & Spending” and 
“Trusted Partners” messaging. 

The conversion campaigns also saw a higher number 
of target actions taken with the “Community Support” 
messaging. Despite a low CTR, this does indicate that 
the users who clicked on those ads were more likely to 
click “open an account.”

VP 11.1 - Flexible Saving and Spending | VP 11.2 - Community Support | VP 11.3 - Trusted Partners

Traffic

VALUE PROP. CTR IMP.

VP 11.1 2.26% 142,418

VP 11.2 1.59% 117,007

VP 11.3 2.23% 52,381

Conversion

VALUE PROP.
Target Actions 
(TA)

TA Rate 
(TA/Clicks)

Clicks

VP 11.1 2 0.32% 620

VP 11.2 15 4.5% 331

VP 11.3 2 1.09% 183

Invest Best audience showed mixed 
signals on preferred messaging.

Board Book 
Page 251



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 38

Opportunities

Consider testing copy for conversion 
campaigns to better understand how 
messaging connects to target actions.

Prioritize better performing 
messaging for traffic campaigns
to maintain ad efficiencies while 
reducing the number of campaigns. 

Board Book 
Page 252



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 39

AH Sweepstakes
Seasonal Incentive

Reporting Dates: August 13–September 12
Platforms: Paid Social, YouTube, Programmatic
Objectives: Awareness, Traffic, Conversion

Encouraged AH account engagement by 
incentivizing referrals and account feature setup. 

TOTAL SPEND

5%
-9% YOY

917K
+18% YOY

Impressions per channel Click-through rate per channel

TOTAL 
IMPRESSIONS

TOTAL 
CLICKS

193
-% YOY

3K
+235% YOY

TARGET 
ACTIONS

Board Book 
Page 253



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 40

1,479 total entries from 
811 unique account holders 
indicate high participation in 
engaging with their accounts. 

19 account opens (23% 
conversion rate) were directly 
attributed to refer-a-
friend promos at sign-up, 
compared to paid search, 
which has the highest 
conversion rate at 3.8%.

80 people were referred to 
OCSP. 

Wins

Board Book 
Page 254



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

AH Sweepstakes

Incentivized account 
engagement. 

p. 41

Key Highlights

More than 60% of AH that participated are engaged with 
their account beyond just entering the sweepstakes. 

Over 18% of AH that entered received additional entries for 
having both gifting pages and auto-contributions set up. 4% 
of AH had all three features turned on (BottleDrop, Gifting 
page  and auto-contributions. 

AH Total Entries

1,479
1,457 - 2023 Q3

AH Unique Entries

811
874 - 2023 Q3

AH referred a friend(s)

19
84 - 2023 Q3 (AH/NAH)

Auto-Contributions

385 (47%)
33% Avg. of all AH

Gifting

181 (22%)
23% Avg. of all AH

BottleDrop

153 (10%)
3% Avg. of all AH

Impressions

917,41
4

+18% 2023 Q3

CTR

0.31%
+182% 2023 Q3

Target Actions (Entry)

193
N/A

Board Book 
Page 255

https://drive.google.com/file/d/16qd0mvfm_35gvLviIhX8rCBVHtWRxBoA/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1iqCB_n-T-QwccfH7xTWTL1THgLWzO1bv/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16qd0mvfm_35gvLviIhX8rCBVHtWRxBoA/view?usp=drive_link


CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 42

Consider combining an AH and NAH 
sweepstakes that continues to 
encourage account engagement but 
also helps push for NAH conversion.  

Opportunities

Explore an “always on” affiliate 
referral link that AH can share with 
their friends and family. This incentive 
can continue building word-of-mouth 
and trust over time.

Board Book 
Page 256



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 43

Ontario Promise
Seasonal Incentive

Reporting Dates: September 6–30
Platforms: Paid Social, Programmatic (Display only)
Objectives: Awareness, Traffic, Conversion

Encouraged account sign-ups with a $100 geo-
specific promo code.

TOTAL SPEND

2%
-% YOY (

245K
N/A% YOY

Impressions per channel Click-through rate per channel

TOTAL 
IMPRESSIONS

TOTAL 
CLICKS

N/A
-% YO

2K
N/A% YOY

TARGET 
ACTIONS

Board Book 
Page 257



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 44

Relaunched Ontario Promise and added a 
traffic objective to optimize for clicks. 

Overall performance is tracking 
positively compared to 2023 
considering changes in spend amount. 

Wins

Board Book 
Page 258



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Ontario Promise

Incorporated traffic objectives 
to increase ad engagement.

p. 45

Key Highlights

By incorporating traffic objectives, we saw a big 
increase in CTR compared to when we last ran 
Ontario Promise last year.  

Since the campaign just relaunched, it likely does 
need some time to prime the audience, as we did not 
see any spikes in account opens in Ontario (only 1 
account open). 

Sept. 6–30, 2024
Awareness & Traffic

Feb. 1–May 31, 2023
Awareness only

% Diff

Impressions 244,607 766,335 -68%

CTR 0.76% 0.06% +1,161%

Board Book 
Page 259



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 46

Consider seasonality in timing of 
campaign to coincide with higher traffic 
months (end/beginning of the year).

With such a tight geo-location, 
consider a possible evergreen-type 
campaign that allows ads to build 
some momentum. 

Opportunities

Board Book 
Page 260



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 47

Baby Grad
Evergreen Incentive

Reporting Dates: July 1–September 30
Platforms: Paid Social, YouTube, Programmatic
Objectives: Awareness, Traffic

Inspired new parents to save now for their 
families by offering $25 to get started.

TOTAL SPEND

14%
+40% YOY

4M
+162% YOY

Impressions per channel Click-through rate per channel

TOTAL 
IMPRESSIONS

TOTAL 
CLICKS

N/A
-% YOY

18K
+1,669% YO

TARGET 
ACTIONS

Board Book 
Page 261



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 48

29% (619) of total account 
opens eligible for Baby Grad
(0% YoY | +2% QoQ).

Wins

The strategy of alternating 
between prospecting and 
retargeting all year has 
resulted in a 300%+ increase 
in Baby Grad page traffic 
compared to last year. 

Similar to last quarter, Baby Grad 
postcard contributed directly to
three new account opens.

Board Book 
Page 262



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Baby Grad

Maximize efficiency and 
spend through 
alternating targeting.

p. 49

Key Highlights

The strategy to alternate between 
prospecting and retargeting provides an 
opportunity to maintain a larger retarget 
audience over time, which will be helpful 
during the holiday season. 

Audience Reach (Display/Native)

January Feb. March April May June July August Sept.

Prospecting 1.7K 2.2K
172,5

82
($3.77)

2.8K
220,3

99
($2.77)

3.2K
172,5

82
($3.77)

2.9K

Retargeting 364 2,783 2,413 39
($2.90)

4,457 4,187

Board Book 
Page 263

http://drive.google.com/file/d/1Nqiw9gqWY_ciBiK6_yJn4jy__FBi823E/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Ak4g9zwL6XELioTCxYHohgP0IWnia4rT/view?usp=drive_link


CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 50

Kinder Grad
Evergreen Incentive

Reporting Dates: July 1–September 30
Platforms: Paid Social, YouTube, Programmatic
Objectives: Awareness, Traffic

Inspired kindergarten parents to save now for 
their families by offering $25 to get started.

TOTAL SPEND

15%
+40% YOY

3M
+127% YOY

Spend per channel Impressions per channel Click-through rate per channel

TOTAL 
IMPRESSIONS

TOTAL 
CLICKS

N/A
-% YOY

18K
+1,684% YOY

TARGET 
ACTIONS

Board Book 
Page 264



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 51

Wins

3% (69) of total account opens eligible 
for Kinder Grad (-1% YoY | -2% QoQ).

Similar to Baby Grad, the strategy of 
alternating between prospecting and 
retargeting all year has resulted in a
300%+ increase in Kinder Grad page 
traffic compared to last year. 

Board Book 
Page 265



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Kinder Grad

Increased retargeting 
audience over time.

p. 52

Key Highlights

Similar to Baby Grad, the alternating strategy 
has grown the Kinder Grad retargeting 
audience. 

Audience Reach (Display/Native)

January Feb. March April May June July August Sept.

Prospecting 3.0K 2.4K
172,
582

($3.77)

2.4K
220,
399

($2.77)

2.9K
172,5

82
($3.77)

2.3K

Retargeting  624 3,227 522 39
($2.90)

4,279 5,931

Board Book 
Page 266

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1n1b6i2G7nyHMZG9JTpwaTmb83j8NAKur/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1PnoNK_dk9PZLvD4EIlJ5u8T9JfH77N-Y/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1qTJZ1dq1tUUVSHbDtVruUUoQ4COEFIJ9/view?usp=drive_link


CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

BBKD Opportunities

p. 53

In Q4, we’ll be testing Baby Grad/Kinder 
Grad and Gifting conversion campaigns
to leverage high account opens at the 
end of the year. 

For 2025, continue utilizing an 
alternating targeting strategy for 
Baby Grad/Kinder Grad and 
incorporate learnings from the Q4 
testing. 

Board Book 
Page 267



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 54

Paid Search
Evergreen

Reporting Dates: July 1–September 30
Platforms: Google
Objectives: Traffic, Conversion

Introduced Spanish paid search ads, as well as branded and 
non-branded ads, to better understand the effectiveness of 
language targeting in driving engagement and conversions 
among Spanish-speaking audiences.

TOTAL SPEND

14%
+3% YOY

77K
-17% YOY

Impressions per campaign Click-through rate per campaign Conversions

TOTAL 
IMPRESSIONS

TOTAL 
CLICKS

314
+23% YOY

18K
+1% YOY

CONVERSIONS

Board Book 
Page 268



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Wins

p. 55

Spanish search ads went 
live mid-September, gaining
253 impressions so far.

Despite all Paid Search campaigns 
seeing a slight drop in overall 
conversions, the Grad Programs 
campaign was the only one that 
had an increase in conversions by 
20%. 

Board Book 
Page 269



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Paid Search

p. 56

Spanish language ads 
showing early positive results.

Key Highlights

Reporting Dates: September 9 –September 30

Despite only launching mid-September, CTR for both 
campaigns are on par with the existing English 
equivalent ads. 

Additionally, a bounce rate lower than 80% indicates 
users are taking some time to explore the page. 

College and Beyond in particular had at least 1 click 
on the “open an account” button on the page.

College & Beyond Grad Programs

Impressions 137 116

CTR 17% 13%

CPC $6.95 $9.60

GA4 Bounce Rate 66% 33% BG / 80% KG

GA4 Views per 
Session ~1 ~1

Board Book 
Page 270



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 57

Q4 budget adjustments for non-
branded campaigns will allow for 
testing during the most efficient 
time of the year.

Compare Spanish language ad 
performance for any seasonality
that may differ from existing 
seasonal performance patterns. 

Opportunities

Board Book 
Page 271



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 58

OregonCollegeSavings.com
Launch Date: April 15, 2024
Reporting Dates: July 1–September 30

Users are showing more interest in opening an account; 
campaign traffic is influencing overall engagement 
metrics, such as sessions and average views per user.

Account Open Clicks Total Users Sessions Views Avg. Views per User

10,402
+57% YoY*

+30.93% QoQ

183,040
+4.94% YoY
-1.05% QoQ

237,604
-18.9% YoY
+1.94% QoQ

369,836
-60.7% YoY

-16.74% QoQ

2.05
-62.2% YoY

-14.58% QoQ

TRAFFIC SOURCES 
(Users)

18,239 (7.7%)

REFERRAL

ORGANIC 
PAID SEARCH

825 (5.0%)

MARKETING
paid media, email, 
print

DIRECT

*Comparison only accounts for “open an account”
links in places during the same period in 2023

Board Book Page 272



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Wins

p. 59

Users are showing more 
interest in opening an 
account compared to last 
year and the previous 
quarter—57% and 31%, 
respectively.

The inline FAQ modules are 
driving considerable traffic, 
which demonstrates the value 
of quick, accessible answers. 

User visits are more 
efficient and productive
as evidenced by an 
increase in account 
opens, but with less time 
spent on the site.

Board Book 
Page 273



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Key Pages - Website

p. 60

Quality over quantity is 
providing dividends.

Key Highlights

More users are visiting and engaging the site, 
which is leading to more clicks on “open an 
account.” 

A low engagement time, in comparison to last 
year, could be contributed to more skimmable and 
scrollable pages.

The high bounce rate for the Investing page is 
likely attributed to direct visits from the Invest 
Best campaign. If we filter out campaign traffic, 
the bounce rate goes down to 42%.

Total Users Sessions
Avg. 

Engagement 
Time

Bounce Rate

Home Page 47,062
+29% YoY

76,486
+21% YoY

11s
-8% YoY

44%
+1% YoY

The Basics* 9,625
+1,758%

12,203
+1,855%

31s
+15%

29%
-17%

Investing 14,904
+487% YoY

16,427
+397% YoY

10s
-41% YoY

73%
-22% YoY

Portfolio 
Options

4,570
+194% YoY

6,230
+205% YoY

1m49s
+36% YoY

17%
-82% YoY

Community 
Gifting**

1,417
-67% YoY

1,658
-67% YoY

41s
+310% YoY

14%
-84% YoY

FAQs 7,561
+46% YoY

9,451
+44% YoY

59s
-31% YoY

39%
-80% YoY

*The Basics compared w/ How Do I Get Started page
**Community Gifting compared with Gifting page

Reporting dates: 7/1/2024 -9/30/2024

Board Book 
Page 274



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Campaign Pages - Website

p. 61

Campaigns drive higher traffic 
but lower engagement.

Key Highlights

When looking at page traffic on campaign 
landing pages, the bounce rates are high and 
engagement time low compared to 
organic/referral traffic. 

We are actively viewing recordings on Hotjar to 
assess the user’s journey on campaign landing 
pages to better understand what audiences 
may be looking for. 

Page total Sessions
Avg. 

Engagement 
Time

Bounce Rate

Save Smart
Direct/Referral/Organic

19,844
1,972

2s
4s

89%
80%

Baby Grad
Direct/Referral/Organic

14,441
595

2s
9s

87%
63%

Kinder Grad
Direct/Referral/Organic

14,034
406

2s
6s

87%
69%

Sweepstakes
Direct/Referral/Organic

3,689
1,853

7s
8s

55%
49%

Reporting dates: 7/1/2024 -9/30/2024

Board Book 
Page 275



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

FAQs - Website

p. 62

Users are utilizing FAQ modules 
to find answers.  

Key Highlights

There was a total of 46K clicks on FAQs 
compared to 42K last quarter. 

3 of the top 5 clicked were made using the 
module (opening the module). The Home page, 
The Basics, and the Investing pages saw the most 
clicks on their FAQ modules. 

The overall number of clicks on the top FAQs also 
increased since last quarter. 

Total 
Clicks

Total 
Users

Bounce 
Rate

Module vs 
FAQ page

▲ “What is considered a qualified expense?” 838 682 0.49% 62%/38%

▲ “If my beneficiary decides not to go to school
or doesn't use all of their savings, what do I do
with the leftover funds?”

837 662 0% 60%/40%

How do I make withdrawals from my account? 813 666 0.58% 48%/52%

Are there federal and state tax advantages for 
opening an account? 798 617 0.32% 47%/53%

What is the difference between an OCSP 
account and a traditional savings account? 733 639 0.12% 63%/37%

MoM changes:  New to list     ▲ Moved up in ranking  Moved down in ranking

Reporting dates: 7/1/2024 -9/30/2024

Board Book 
Page 276



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Target Actions - Website

p. 63

Brand familiarity is 
paying dividends.

Key Highlights

Increase in both direct and organic search traffic.

Visitors most often convert from the Home and 
The Basics pages.

Organic Search
● Home (56%)
● The Basics (13%)
● FAQ (7%)
● Portfolios (4%)
● Tax Benefits (3%)

Paid Search
● The Basics (29%)
● Home (28%)
● College & Beyond (8%)
● News (7%)
● FAQ (5%)

Referral
● Home (58%)
● The Basics  (14%)
● Gifting (14%)
● FAQs (3%)
● Portfolios (3%)

Direct
● Home (57%)
● The Basics (11%)
● FAQ (6%)
● Gifting (6%)
● BabyGrad  (5%)

Marketing
(paid media, email, print)
● BabGrad  (22%)
● Save Smart (16%)
● Investing (10%)
● Home  (10%)
● College & Beyond (7%)

210
(2.4%)

*Source: OCSP GA4 → Google measures attribution based on a last click attribution
**Source: Vestwell GA4 → referral traffic not included because only specifies referral from oregoncollegesavings.com

58%
Direct

Conversion Rate**

0.2%
Organic Search

2%
Paid Search

2%
Marketing

Clicks on Open an Account

Reporting dates: 7/1/2024 -9/30/2024

Board Book 
Page 277



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Website

p. 64

Spanish language is the 
most used translation. 

Key Highlights

Views for non-English pages make up about 2% of 
overall views, which is a significant drop 
compared to the previous quarter. 

The most frequent pages visited across all 
languages remains FAQs (29%), Home (14%), 
Portfolios (12%) and News (9%). 

Most visited pages

FAQs
Second most visited page

Home

Views in English

355,595

Reporting dates: 7/1/2024 -9/30/2024

Board Book 
Page 278



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report p. 65

Explore the user experience 
of campaign landing 
pages to better target and 
engage paid, and potentially 
organic, traffic.

Use HotJar surveys to 
better understand user 
content and experience 
preferences. 

Opportunities

Incorporate 
consistently/highly 
trafficked FAQ questions 
into in-page copy.

Board Book 
Page 279



Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.

+184%
growth in account 
opens since 2017 

Treasurer Read Lookback

p. 66

78,436 accounts in 2017 → 158,796+ in 2024

Board Book 
Page 280



CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report

Treasurer Read Lookback

How we did it:

p. 67

Introduced email marketing
and sent over 2.3 million 

emails since 2020.

Heard from 2,834 
Oregon families through 
interviews and surveys.

Built a new website with 
a simplified user experience 

to drive conversion. 

Board Book 
Page 281



Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.

How we did it (cont.)

Launched 500+ 
paid marketing 
campaigns

p. 68
Will 

need 
design 
help

to build awareness about 
the Plan’s core benefits 
and offerings.

Board Book 
Page 282

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ioQKCBciFTkwQHvAUI_vxssaS6m70x2B/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/14n9R8iw8Al4cw2ooBSrzEGExsWm0NQMN/view?usp=drive_link


Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.

How we did it (cont.)

p. 69

Developed a 
video testimonial 
content library 
for multi-channel 
usage.

Board Book 
Page 283

http://drive.google.com/file/d/12NC-ATNelabWcJLOLfies0QzQEFyOojp/view


Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.

+822%
growth in account 
opens since 2017 

Treasurer Read Lookback

p. 70

849 accounts in 2017 → 7,830 in 2024

Board Book 
Page 284



Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.

How we did it (cont.)

Launched 75+ 
paid marketing 
campaigns

p. 71

to build awareness 
about the Plan’s core 
benefits and offerings.

Board Book 
Page 285

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1pOHrjODxwosCrjq9Yt-XOOVJ4tcf7q2x/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a0LUQBujPnmrT93MaCSWNlpxdPp-kdWk/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a0LUQBujPnmrT93MaCSWNlpxdPp-kdWk/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a0LUQBujPnmrT93MaCSWNlpxdPp-kdWk/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a0LUQBujPnmrT93MaCSWNlpxdPp-kdWk/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a0LUQBujPnmrT93MaCSWNlpxdPp-kdWk/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a0LUQBujPnmrT93MaCSWNlpxdPp-kdWk/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1a0LUQBujPnmrT93MaCSWNlpxdPp-kdWk/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gpyZ432REqItEneNyMBbqCp4CEO_Xe1H/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1sP_Z9VUU4uyIutdOXZlRqB-PPz9rDPdy/view?usp=drive_link


Thesis | OTSN FY24Q3 Performance Report CONFIDENTIAL: Do not distribute.

How we did it (cont.)

p. 72

Developed a 
video testimonial 
content library 
for multi-channel 
usage.

Board Book 
Page 286



BREAK

Board Book Page 287



BOSTON  CHICAGO  LONDON  MIAMI   NEW YORK  PORTLAND  SAN DIEGO MEKETA.COM

Oregon 529 Savings Board

November 21, 2024

Board Fiduciary Training

Board Book Page 288



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Agenda

1. Introduction

2. 529 Industry Background

3. Roles and Responsibilities

4. Plan Investment Decisions and Considerations

5. Summary of Common 529 Plan Considerations

6. Plan Fee Considerations

7. Investment Concepts

8. ABLE Industry Overview

9. Bonus Trivia Round

10. Appendix

Page 2 of 87 

Board Book Page 289



Introduction

Page 3 of 87 

Board Book Page 290



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Meketa Team

Presenters

Kay Ceserani
Managing Principal

Mika Malone, CAIA
Managing Principal

Hannah Schriner, CAIA
Managing Principal

Experience

 30+ years of industry experience

 Joined Meketa/PCA in 2008; Shareholder

 Lead consultant on 529 college savings plans

 Member: Executive and Compliance
Committees

 SEC- and MSRB-registered Municipal Advisor
Principal (Series 54) and SEC- and MSRB-
registered Municipal Advisor Representative
(Series 50)

 BS: University of Oregon

 24 years of industry experience

 Joined Meketa in 2003; Shareholder

 Lead consultant for select public and private
pension funds, endowments, and defined
contribution plans

 Speaker at numerous industry events

 Member: Board of Directors, Investment Policy
and Corporate Responsibility Committees, and
Pension Practice Group

 MBA: University of San Diego; BA: University of
Maryland

 18 years of industry experience

 Joined Meketa in 2017; Shareholder

 Consultant on various non-profit, defined
benefit and defined contribution plan sponsors

 Leader: Defined Contribution Practice Group

 Member: Fiduciary Management (OCIO)
Investment and Consulting Leadership
Committees

 MBA: University of Phoenix; BA: Eastern
Washington University

Page 4 of 87 

Board Book Page 291



529 Industry Background

Page 5 of 87 

Board Book Page 292



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

A.

B.

C.

D.

Which state 
doesn’t have a 

529 Plan? Wyoming

Hawaii

Washington DC

None – all states have plans

Page 6 of 87 

Board Book Page 293



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

529 Industry Beginnings

529 college savings plans originated from states rather than the federal government.

These plans came into existence in an effort to combat inflation and taxes.

 High inflation of the 1980’s.

 College tuition inflation soars hitting 13.4% (an all time high) in 1982.

 Prepaid tuition plans not structured as a tax-advantage instrument.

The first college savings plan was a prepaid tuition plan established in 1986 by the Michigan Education Trust (MET).

 In 1986, Michigan Governor James Blanchard had the idea of a state-sponsored prepaid tuition program where families could
invest a lump sum or installments over time to pay for future college expenses at current prices.

 From 1986-1990, approximately 55,000 Michigan residents enrolled in the Michigan Education Prepaid Tuition Plan (MET). Since
the plan was an investment vehicle, Michigan had to pay federal income taxes on any earnings.

 In 1990 the plan filed a lawsuit requesting a refund from the IRS.

 The court initially ruled in favor of the IRS, but after an appeal in 1994, the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals found Michigan in favor
and declared MET to be tax-exempt as an instrument of the state.

 This decision led to a bipartisan effort to seek federal tax relief for all college savings vehicles, and qualified state tuition programs
became part of the Small Business Protection Act of 1996.

 This also led to the creation of Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code.

In 1996 IRC § 529 was signed into law, which created and clarified two types of plans (Prepaid & Savings)

Page 7 of 87 

Board Book Page 294



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training
-0

.4
%

-5
.4

%

-0
.4

%

3
.8

%

8
.7

%

5
.8

%

6
.2

%

4
.8

%

6
.3

%

2
.6

% 3
.3

%

3
.5

%

2
.1

%

9
.0

%

7
.1

%

5
.2

%

3
.6

%

3
.2

%

2
.0

%

2
.9

%

2
.3

%

1.
3

%

1.
1%

4
.6

%

4
.6

%

7
.9

%

5
.3

%

3
.2

% 4
.5

%

2
.0

%

5
.7

%

3
.3

%

2
.6

%

3
.0

%

2
.3

%

2
.4

%

2
.6

%

2
.8

%

0
.2

%

0
.0

%

0
.9

%

-0
.6

%

-0
.7

%

-5
.2

% -4
.2

%

-2
.2

%

-0
.2

%

2.2%
2.4%

-8%

-4%

0%

4%

8%

12%

16%

19
7
8

19
8

0

19
8

2

19
8

4

19
8

6

19
8

8

19
9

0

19
9

2

19
9

4

19
9

6

19
9

8

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
8

2
0

10

2
0

12

2
0

14

2
0

16

2
0

18

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
2

3
Q

 2
0

2
4

Year-Over-Year (1978 – September 2024)

College Tuition Inflation v. the Consumer Price Index, 

US Bureau of Labor Statistics

Difference Tuition Inflation CPI

20 YR AVG10 YR AVG5 YR AVG

3.7%2.1%1.6%Tuition Inflation

2.6%3.0%4.1%CPI

Page 8 of 87 

Board Book Page 295



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

What is a 529 College Savings Plan?

A 529 Plan is an education savings plan operated by a state, state agency, or educational institution designed to
help families set aside funds for future education costs.

Several reforms over the last Decade:

 Creating 529A (2014) and PATH Act removing residency restrictions (2015).

 Expanding the use of 529 (2017, 2019, 2020 and 2024 –Roth IRA Rollover).

529 assets can be used to pay for qualified education expenses of post-secondary education – public or private or
K-12 tuition (limited to $10,000 per year).

 Tuition and fees

 Room and board

 Books, supplies, and equipment

 Computers, technology, equipment, or internet access

 Expenses for special needs services

 Student loan repayment

All earnings and withdrawals from a 529 plan are free from federal and state income taxes if used to pay for
qualified educational expenses.

Many states offer tax benefits for contributions to a 529 plan.

Page 9 of 87 

Board Book Page 296



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

529 Plan Types

Source: ISS Market Intelligence, September 30, 2024

Multiple revenue sources

Platform 
Driven

Prepaid
$26 B

Savings
$502 B

 Pre-purchase tuition at participating
colleges and universities at today’s
cost (K-12 tuition excluded)

 Distributions made at the future cost
when the beneficiary is in college

 Portfolio supporting the program

 Performance goal is often based upon
tuition inflation

 9 Programs exist today

 FL, MA, MI, MS, NV, PA, TX, WA, and
Private College (National Option)

 Pay for qualified education expenses,
including K-12 tuition

 Investment accounts

 Earnings are based upon the market
performance of the underlying
investments

 Offer a menu of investment options

 Earnings are tax-free

1986 MI Education Trust –
prepaid tuition agency enacted

1996 IRC 529 signed into law; 
1998 Fidelity first major firm to 
roll out investment plan, NH

Page 10 of 87 

Board Book Page 297



A B C D

What are different ways you can contribute 
to the OR College Savings Plan?

All OptionsFamily and 
Friends 
Gifting

Bottle DropPayroll 
Deduction

Page 11 of 87 

Board Book Page 298



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Direct-Sold Investment Plans 
 Offered directly to the public by a State or Program Manager

with whom the state contracts most day-to-day operation 
responsibility

 Tends to offer fewer investment options

 Mostly low-cost mutual funds or ETFs

 Primarily index (passively managed) funds

 Do-it-yourself investment philosophy

Advisor-Sold Investment Plans
 Distributed by manager through brokerage firms

 Broker provides tools and resources to guide college savers

 Tend to offer more investment options

 Higher fees

 Primarily actively managed funds

 Help-me-do-it investment philosophy

529 Savings (or Investment) Plan Types

*Source: ISS Market Intelligence, September 30, 2024

Has been the preferred plan 
type by participants over the 
last decade.

61 Plans / $316 B*

Many fee-conscious advisors 
sell away their clients to a 
Direct plan so their client 
avoids high sales charges.

32 Plans / $186 B*

Page 12 of 87 

Board Book Page 299



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training
Size of the Market: Assets and Accounts

Source: ISS Market Intelligence.

$
12

3

$
13

8

$
16

4

$
16

5

$
2

0
1

$
2

3
4

$
2

7
2

$
2

3
9

$
2

7
9

$
3

16

$
11

4

$
13

0

$
12

4

$
12

3

$
14

5

$
16

4

$
18

0

$
14

8

$
16

8

$
18

6$
2

3
7

$
2

6
8

$
2

8
8

$
2

8
8

$
3

4
6

$
3

9
9

$
4

5
3

$
3

8
7 $
4

4
7

$
5

0
2

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 3Q 24

A
ss

e
ts

 (
$

 b
il

li
o

n
s)

Industry Total Assets Under Management by Plan Type

Direct Advisor Total

6
.0 6
.4 6
.9 7
.4 7
.9 8
.4 9

.1 9
.5 9
.9 10

.2

5
.3

5
.3

5
.4

5
.5

5
.5

5
.6

5
.6

5
.6

5
.7

5
.7

11
.3 11
.7 12

.3

12
.9

13
.4 14
.0 14
.7

15
.1

15
.6

15
.9

0

5

10

15

20

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 3Q 24

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 (

#
 m

il
li

o
n

s)

Industry Total Accounts By Plan Type

Direct Advisor Total

Page 13 of 87 

Board Book Page 300



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training
529 Plan Leader Board

 Virginia continues to be the largest 529 Savings Plan.

 Top three Plans represent ~35% of the market.

Source: ISS Market Intelligence

Top-10 529 Savings Plans by 3Q 2024 Assets (in $B)

Market 
Share

% Change% ChangeAssetsProgram ManagerPrimaryProgram NameStateRank

(of Est. 
Total)

1 Year3Q 20243Q 20242Q 20243Q 2023(Administrator)Distributor

19.2%23.4%3.3%$96.3$93.2$78.0American fundsAmerican FundsCollegeAmerica (Advisor)VA1

8.7%24.2%4.0%$43.7$42.0$35.2AscensusVanguardNew York-Direct (Direct)NY2

7.4%25.4%4.6%$37.4$35.7$29.8AscensusVanguardVanguard 529 Plan (Direct)NV3

5.0%25.2%4.7%$25.1$24.0$20.0State of UtahState of UtahMy529 (Direct)UT4

4.5%27.0%4.9%$22.5$21.5$17.8FidelityFidelityUNIQUE CIP (Direct)NH5

3.3%24.4%5.9%$16.5$15.6$13.2TIAATIAAScholarshare (Direct)CA6

2.5%28.3%4.9%$12.7$12.1$9.9Union Bank and TrustUnion Bank and TrustBright Start (Direct)IL7

2.2%23.6%4.0%$11.3$10.8$9.1OTTAOTTACollegeAdvantage (Direct)OH8

2.2%17.2%2.8%$11.2$10.9$9.6Merrill LynchMerrill LynchNextGen Select (Advisor)ME9

2.0%23.1%3.7%$10.2$9.9$8.3T. Rowe PriceT. Rowe PriceMaryland CIP (Direct)MD10

57.2%24.2%2.4%$287.0$275.7$231.0Totals

0.7%22.2%4.3%$3.4$3.2$2.7VestwellState of OROR College Savings (Direct)OR36

0.4%12.9%2.8%$2.0$1.9$1.7VestwellMFSMFS 529 Savingss (Advisor)OR44

Page 14 of 87 

Board Book Page 301



FALSETRUE

Families can only open a 529 account in the 
state in which they reside?

Page 15 of 87 

Board Book Page 302



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

The State
Plan 

(Program) 
Manager

Investment

Advisor

Consultants/ 

Advisors

► State Governance

 State Treasurer’s Office

 Sole Proprietor

 Advisory Committee
 Board

 A Branch of Education Office

 Self-Financing)

 Most state’s do not have dedicated
investment staff

► Multiple Layers of Oversight

 Investment Consultant

 Industry Consultant

 Outside Counsel

 Serve as Fiduciaries to the Plan

► Multiple Entity Types

 Asset Manager

 Record keeper

 Bank

 State Managed

THE PROGRAM 
PLAYERS

► Plan Structure & Monitoring

 Investment  Portfolio Design

 Glidepath Asset Allocation

 Selection and Monitoring of Underling
Strategies

 Continued Manager Due Diligence

 Serve as Fiduciary to the Plan

Page 16 of 87 

Board Book Page 303



States overseeing 529 Plans wear many hats

Ambassador promoting Oregon 529 Plans

Operational Investments

Fund Monitoring and 
Selection

Investment Design

Plan Design

Oversight

Administration

Marketing

Implementation

Governance

Board Book Page 304
Page 17 of 87 



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Plan (Program) Manager Leaderboard

Responsible for Program and Product Management

 Program Operations and Administration

 Customer Service and Recordkeeping

 Investment Management Oversight and Custody

 Distribution and Marketing

 Plan Support

Source: ISS Market Intelligence

Top-5 529 Savings Plan Program Mangers by 3Q 2024 Assets (in $B)

Market Share% Change% ChangeAssetsState(s)Program Manager (Administrator)Rank

(of Est. Total)1 Year3Q 20243Q 20242Q 20243Q 2023

27.2%22.6%3.8%$136.4$131.4$111.316 StatesAscensus1

19.2%23.4%3.3%$96.3$93.2$78.0VAAmerican Funds2

11.8%23.5%4.4%$59.4$44.7$48.18 StatesTIAA3

9.3%24.5%4.1%$46.8$45.0$37.66 StatesFidelity4

5.0%25.2%4.7%$25.1$24.0$20.0UTState of UT5

72.5%23.4%3.9%$364.0$350.4$295.0Top 5 Total

22.9%3.8%$502.0$483.7$408.6Totals

4.2%20.5%3.8%$21.1$20.3$17.5ME, OR, WAVestwell6

Page 18 of 87 

Board Book Page 305



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Consultants / Advisors 

Investment Consultant

 Investment Policy, Plan Development & Maintenance

 Recommendations Regarding Breadth &
Construction of Investment Options

 Investment Option Benchmarking

 Glidepath Analysis

 Quarterly Performance Reporting & Market
Commentary

 Underlying Fund Evaluation & Monitoring

 Fund Replacements

 Underlying Fund Fee Review

 Standalone Option Gap Analysis

 Annual Program Manager Analysis

 Board/Staff Education

 Proxy Voting Recommendations

 Participate in Morningstar Annual Review Meetings

 Program Manager Selection & Evaluation

 Ad Hoc Research Projects

Industry Consultant

 Procurement Strategies

 Annual Industry Landscape

 Regulatory and Legislative Updates

 Peer Program Analysis (Morningstar Ratings)

 Distribution Strategies

Page 19 of 87 

Board Book Page 306



Roles and Responsibilities

Page 20 of 87 

Board Book Page 307



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

A.

B.

C.

D.

Which cities 
have served 
as Oregon’s 
Capital?

Corvallis

Oregon City

Portland

Salem

Page 21 of 87 

Board Book Page 308



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Governance Structure

Office of the State Treasurer

529 Savings Board

Plan Staff 
(HR/benefits, 

Counsel, Finance)

Investment 
Consultant

Plan 
Manager

Other Service 
Providers (auditor, 

specialist consultants, 
investment managers)

Page 22 of 87 

Board Book Page 309



Board

 The Oregon 529 Savings Board is established in the Office
of the State Treasurer of Oregon.

 The Board is responsible for the establishment,
implementation and maintenance of the Plan.

 The Office of the State Treasurer provides staff support to
the Board.

Plan Manager

 Vestwell State Savings, LLC serves as the Plan Manager,
succeeding to a prior administrator as of September 2018.

 The Plan Manager and its contractors are responsible for
day-to-day program operations including recordkeeping,
customer service and administrative services.

Investment Advisor

 Sellwood Investment Partners LLC provides investment
advisory services to the Board for the Oregon College
Savings Plan.

 In this capacity Sellwood Investment Partners LLC is
responsible for the design of the investment options
including asset allocation, underlying investment selection
and monitoring, and providing quarterly reports on market
trends and Plan performance.

Source: Oregon College Savings Plan Disclosure Booklet

College Savings 
Plan Governance

Underlying Investments

 The underlying investments are currently comprised of
allocations to mutual funds managed by Champlain, LSV,
DFA, Dodge & Cox, Double Line, T. Rowe Price, Nuveen and
Vanguard for the Direct plan and MFS for the Advisor plan.

 The FDIC-insured bank account option is held at the Bank
of New York Mellon.

Plan Custodian

 The Bank of New York Mellon is the custodian of the plan
assets (e.g., mutual fund shares) held in the portfolios of
the Trust corresponding to each Investment Option.

Securities Law (Municipal Securities)

 Units held by the Accounts in the Oregon College Savings
Plan are generally considered municipal fund securities.

 The Units will not be registered as securities with the SEC
or any state securities regulator.

 Portfolios will not be registered as investment companies
under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

 Neither the SEC nor any state securities commission has
approved or disapproved the Units or passed upon the
adequacy of the Plan Disclosure Booklet.

Page 23 of 87 

Board Book Page 310



Source: 2023-05 OR 529 Investment Policy Statement

RESPONSIBILITIES

The following powers are reserved for the Board:

 Plan design

 Investment portfolio construction and deletion

 Underlying investment selection and termination

 Program Manager, Investment Consultant, and
Auditor selection and termination

 Adoption, amendment, and repeal of Network
Administrative Rules

 Amendment of Investment Policy Statement

The Oregon 529 
Savings Board

Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 178.310 establishes 
the Oregon 529 Savings Board (the “Board”). The 
Board oversees the Network, which is the 529 
savings program for the State of Oregon. The Board 
is charged with the administration of the Network, 
the establishment of policies and procedures to 
maintain compliance with federal and state law, and 
oversight of all 529 plans operated by the Network, 
including the investment and reinvestment of funds 
contributed to those plans. The Board reviews its 
policies and procedures periodically and makes 
changes to these policies and procedures as it 
considers necessary or desirable.

Page 24 of 87 

Board Book Page 311



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Governing Laws

College Savings

The Oregon Treasury Savings Network (the “Network”) was created by statute found at sections 178.300 to 178.355 of the Oregon
Revised Statutes, as amended (the “Statute”). The Network was founded to empower all Oregonians to build lifetime financial security
through accessible and professionally-managed savings programs. The Plan is administered as part of the Network by the Board, as
trustee of the Oregon 529 Savings Network Trust (the “Trust”). The Network is intended to meet the requirements of a qualified
tuition program under Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) Section 529 (“Section 529”).

The Oregon College Savings Plan is one of two Qualified Tuition Programs administered and distributed by the Board. The Oregon
College Savings Plan is designed to help individuals and families throughout the U.S. save for college in a tax-advantaged way, and
offers valuable advantages including tax-deferred growth, generous contribution limits, attractive Investment Options, and
professional investment management. The Network also offers a 529 advisor-sold plan, which is not offered under this Plan
Disclosure.

ABLE

The Stephen Beck, Jr., Achieving a Better Life Experience Act of 2014 (the “ABLE Act”) provides certain individuals with disabilities a
means to save for disability-related expenses. Added to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“the Code”), Section 529A
allows a state to create a qualified ABLE Program. An individual with a qualifying disability can then open a tax-advantaged account
within the ABLE program allowing them to save for qualified disability expenses without jeopardizing federal or state means-tested
benefits while enjoying tax-free earnings.

The Plan is established pursuant to the ABLE Act and sections 178.300 to 178.380 of the Oregon Revised Statutes, as amended (the
“Oregon Act”). The Plan is designed to be a “qualified ABLE program,” which status permits a Beneficiary of an ABLE Account
established under the Plan to make tax-free withdrawals to pay for Qualified Disability Expenses under certain circumstances

Page 25 of 87 

Board Book Page 312



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Fiduciaries Come in Many Flavors

Trustees, 
Committee 
Members

Investment 
Advisors

All Individuals 
Exercising 

Discretion in Plan 
Administration

Page 26 of 87 

Board Book Page 313



What is a Fiduciary?

 Any individual or entity with discretionary authority over a plan’s administration or
investments.

What is a Fiduciary Responsible for?

 Acting solely in the interest of plan participants and their beneficiaries and with
the exclusive purpose of providing benefits to them;

 Carrying out their duties prudently;
 Following the plan documents;
 Diversifying plan investments; and
 Paying only reasonable plan expenses.

5 General Action Items for a Fiduciary

 Determine investment goals and objectives
 Establish an explicit, written investment policy consistent with the goals and

objectives
 Approve appropriate money managers, mutual funds, other “prudent experts” to

implement the investment policy, at a “reasonable” cost
 Monitor the activities of the overall investment program and compliance with the

investment policy
 Avoid conflicts of interest and prohibited transactions

Being a 
Fiduciary

Page 27 of 87 

Board Book Page 314



Governing 
Documents

Oregon 529 Savings Board Statute ORS 178.300 to 
178.360 (Oregon 529 College Savings Network) and 
ORS 178.375 to 178.385 (ABLE Accounts) time

Delegation of Authority and all Amendments

Plan Disclosure Booklet

Participation Agreement

Page 28 of 87 

Board Book Page 315



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Fiduciary Oversight Best Practices Checklist 

 Provide a best-in-class investment lineup

 Use an open-architecture structure, where
possible

 Implement a simplified, multi-tiered menu that
provides adequate diversification and choice

 Avoid redundancy in investment options

 Consider both passive and active options

 Evaluate and monitor investment options

 Monitor participant activity and utilization of
investment options

 Monitor and review college 529 industry trends

Page 29 of 87 

 Have a strong governance structure in place

 Meet regularly

 Review IPS annually

 Document meetings and decisions

 Delegate, where appropriate, to experts

 Promote participant savings

 Focus on savings outcomes

 Offer a range of options across the risk
spectrum

 Implement a prudent fee structure

 Minimize fees and expenses where possible

 Have a fee structure that is transparent and
equitable across all members

Board Book Page 316



B.A. C.

E.D. F.

What are the Six Primary Fiduciary Duties?

Page 30 of 87 

Board Book Page 317



The Boards Primary Duties: 
Fiduciaries are Held to a High Standard or Conduct

Duty of Disclose

Full transparency is required regarding 
potential conflicts of interest and any 

information that might affect investment 
decisions.

Duty of Obedience

Adhere to governing documents and the entity’s 
mission.

Comply with relevant laws and regulations.

Duty of Loyalty

Prioritize the Plan’s interest ahead of other 
interests.

Avoid conflicts of interest and ensure that 
decisions benefit the stakeholders. 

Duty of Prudence

Act with same care, skill and caution that 
a prudent person would exercise in 
similar circumstances.

This includes diversifying investments to 
minimize risk.

Duty of Care

Act solely in the best interest of the Plan’s account 
owners and beneficiaries by making informed and 
prudent decisions.

Requires thorough research, seeking expert advice, 
and continuously monitoring investment 
performance.

Duty to Delegate

Prudent delegation allowed to other qualified 
individuals or entities.

Due diligence must be exercised in this process.

Responsibilities cannot be abdicated.

Page 31 of 87 

Board Book Page 318



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

 Fiduciaries must discharge their duties with the care, skill, prudence and diligence under the circumstances
then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in
the situation.

 Procedural prudence is the focus and goes to the decision-making process—process, not result, is the key.

 The prudent person standard does not make the Board a guarantor of positive investment results.

 The Board is not responsible for the outcome provided it engaged in a deliberate and diligent analysis in making
its investment decisions.

 Process is not just a “check the box” item; it is a tool for making prudent decisions.

Legal
Principle

Fiduciary or Trustee
(Board Members)

Manage Trust Assets 
with Care, Diligence and 

Intelligence.

Reasonable 
Person

Guides To

PRUDENT
PERSON RULE

Page 32 of 87 

Board Book Page 319



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training
PRUDENT
INVESTOR RULE

Rooted in the principles of fiduciary duty and prudent investment practices.

Uniform Prudent 
Investor Act

Modernized Standards for 
Fiduciary Investment 

Management 

Fiduciary Duty

Obligated to Act in the 
Best Interest of Clients or 

Beneficiaries

Key Principals

Diversification, Risk and 
Return Objectives, Duty to 
Monitor Investments and 
Delegation of Investment 

Functions

Page 33 of 87 

Board Book Page 320



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training
PRUDENT
INVESTOR RULE

 Examples of investment decisions :

 General economic conditions and risk management
best practices.

 The possible effect of inflation or deflation.

 The role that each investment or course of action plays
within the overall trust portfolio.

 The expected total return from income and the
appreciation of capital.

 Other resources of the beneficiaries known to the
trustee.

 Needs for liquidity, regularity of income, and
preservation or appreciation of capital.

 An asset’s special relationship or special value, if any, to
the purposes of the trust or to one or more of the
beneficiaries.

1

2

3

Set Investment Objectives

Create Investment Policy Statement

Exercise Due Diligence in 
Selecting and Monitoring Investments

Page 34 of 87 

Board Book Page 321



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Managing Fiduciary Responsibilities

 Plan fiduciaries, with help from their legal advisors, service providers and partner, can manage fiduciary
responsibility by creating and maintaining a structured, prudent set of procedures and plan records including:

 Investment Policy Plan Disclosure Fiduciary Audit File
 Participant 
Communication

Written document 

defining the 

college savings or 

the ABLE plan's 

design and benefit 

structure

Written statement 

that guides day-to-

day investment 

operations

Documents and 

tools to provide 

required 

information to 

plan participants

Page 35 of 87 

Board Book Page 322



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Elements of an Investment Policy Statement 

 An investment policy statement includes sections to address:

 Purpose and scope.

 Definition of duties (roles and responsibilities).

 Broad objectives.

 Investment Menu framework.

 Permitted program investments.

 Excluded investments.

 Objectives and parameters of specific portfolios.

 Sets forth operational guidelines and rules for monitoring and reviewing the portfolios and underlying
funds.

 Outlasts the longevity of the current administration and other involved parties.

 Dynamic process.

 Identified weaknesses and gaps between actual and best practices and between expectations and reality.

 Resulting in a document that is easily understood and requires somewhat infrequent changes.

A clearly articulated 
investment policy statement 

is central to communicating a 
Board’s governance structure 

and investment decision 
making practices.

Page 36 of 87 

Board Book Page 323



Board members are exposed to fiduciary liability.

A breach of fiduciary duty occurs when a fiduciary, who is entrusted to act in the best 
interests of another party, fails to fulfill their legal obligations and responsibilities. 

Key points about a breach of fiduciary duty:

Violation of Duties: It involves the fiduciary acting in a way that contradicts their duties of 
care, loyalty, or obedience. This could mean making decisions that benefit themselves at the 
expense of the party they are supposed to protect.

Legal Consequences: Breaching fiduciary duties can lead to serious legal implications, 
including financial liability for any damages caused

Page 37 of 87 

Board Book Page 324



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

A.

B.

C.

D.

How can you 
mitigate your 
fiduciary liability?

Active Involvement

Understand Your Duty

Attend Meetings

Follow Processes

Page 38 of 87 

Board Book Page 325



Plan Investment Decisions and Considerations

Page 39 of 87 

Board Book Page 326



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

POLICY OBJECTIVES

Purpose of Program
Governance structure

Investment goals
Role of asset classes

Set acceptable risk limits:
operational & investment 

PORTFOLIO 
STRUCTURING

Model asset classes
Tolerance for risk
Investment biases

Constraints
Optimal Glidepath 

IMPLEMENTATION

Glidepath execution
Investment coverage

Fund selection

MONITORING

Performance
Risk 
Cost 

GREATEST PORTFOLIO IMPACT

The Framework

Page 40 of 87 

Board Book Page 327



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Program Structure Goals

Offer a range of options across the risk spectrum – utilizing high quality funds.

Diversified options should provide broad based capital market exposure.

Efficient from a risk-return perspective; avoiding unnecessary risk.

Identify/remove unintended biases.

Cost conscious.

Page 41 of 87 

Board Book Page 328



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Investment Menu Considerations

5
2

9
  P

la
n

s

A
B

LE
 P

la
n

s

Investment Menu 

 Age- / Enrollment-based Options

 Diversified options that de-risk over the investment horizon

 Static Options

 Diversified options that do not change over time.

 Stand Alone (Individual) Options

 Invests in a single fund

 Can be Passive, or Active

 Capital Preservation Option

 Protects against decline in yield and loss of capital

– Money Market

– Stable Value Fund

– FDIC

Most common choice 
of ABLE participants

Most common choice 
of 529 participants

Page 42 of 87 

Board Book Page 329



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Investment Menu Structure

Diversified / 
Glidepath

Stand Alone -
Passive

Stand Alone -
Active

Stand Alone -
Diversifying

Conservative

Aggressive

Age-based

Static

US Large Cap Core Eq

US Core Fixed

Non-US Eq

US Small/Mid Eq

US Large Cap Eq

Capital Preservation

Non-US Eq

US Small/Mid Eq

Global Real Estate

TIPS

High Yield

Commodities

US Core Fixed

R
is

k

Engagement

Low High

Bank Loans

Absolute Return

MLPs

Emerging Markets Equity

Short-term Fixed

FDIC Savings

Non-US Small Eq

 Age- / Enrollment-based Options:  Diversified options that de-risk over the investment horizon

 Most common choice of participants

 Static Options:  Asset allocation remains the same over time (e.g. 50% equity / 50% fixed income)

 Stand Alone (Individual) Options:  Invests in a single fund

 FDIC Option:  Savings account

 Stable Value Option:  Protects against decline in yield and loss of capital

Page 43 of 87 

Board Book Page 330



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Investment Selection and Monitoring

 While 529 programs are not subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA), ERISA is
considered the gold standard for fiduciary principles, and it is worth being familiar with its framework.

 Under ERISA, fiduciaries are held to an extremely high standard—the “prudent expert” standard. A plan
fiduciary must act: “ . . . with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing
that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use . . . ”

 ERISA’s standard of prudence for fiduciaries is not that of a prudent layperson, but rather that of a prudent
investment professional. A lack of familiarity with investments is no excuse; according to some court rulings, if
fiduciaries are unsure what to do, they are expected to retain professional advisors to make
recommendations.

 Best Practices:

 Ensure an understanding of your investment portfolio’s purpose and objective, with a clear definition of 
success.

 Adopt an investment strategy with expectations for both risk and return, including selecting a default fund 
in a participant-directed DC plan.

 Create a well-defined process for hiring, evaluating, and terminating investment managers.

 Adhere to an Investment Policy Statement (IPS).

Source: Vanguard Best Practices for Plan Fiduciaries

Page 44 of 87 

Board Book Page 331



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

The Investment Option evaluation process should exhibit several key features:

 Objectivity

 Balance between short-term issues and long-term objectives

While the process might be fluid, a systematic documented approach is essential.

 Incorporate quantitative and qualitative aspects of managers/funds’ practices.

 Understanding the role of the manager/fund in the Program.

 Clear and consistent time period of review.

Non-performance issues

 Has there been a change in …

 People – PM/Analysts

 Process

 Philosophy

 Organizational Structure

Implications of change/event

 Is the change a positive or negative?

 How will it impact the management of the fund?

 How will it impact the firm/team culture?

 Will it be a distraction to the investment process?

Formulaic criteria focused on

 Relative performance versus a benchmark/peer
group over various time periods

Understand underperformance

 Is investment style out of favor?

 What are the biases of the investment strategy?

 Do the portfolio characteristics reflect its stated
investment style?

 Is the benchmark/peer group an accurate
representation of  the fund’s opportunity set?

 Is the underperformance consistent with
expectations?

Quantitative Review Qualitative Review

Page 45 of 87 

Board Book Page 332



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Investment Monitoring

 The duty of prudence includes an ongoing duty to review selected investments or services periodically to
determine whether the selections remain prudent.

 Best Practice: have a process in place that can be repeated and measured.

 Establish objective criteria to effectively measure investment performance.

 Evaluating the manager’s team and organization.

 Understanding the philosophy that guides the manager’s firm.

 Understanding the firm’s process and its consistency over time.

 Analyzing performance over time in light of the firm’s philosophy and process.

 Identify criteria that may be used in considering whether to replace an investment vehicle, including:

 Receive and review regular reports describing the performance of the investments

 Performance in comparison to benchmarks and peers;

 Any deviation from initial objectives;

 Organizational changes; and

 Issue spotting (e.g., declining AUM, unusual asset allocation approach).

 Fiduciaries should have a strong understanding and process for when they need to remove an investment.

Page 46 of 87 

Board Book Page 333



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

A.

B.

C.

D.

Which investment 
manager created 
the first mutual 
fund in 1924?

Putnam Investments

Fidelity Investments

MFS Investment Management

The Vanguard Group

Page 47 of 87 

Board Book Page 334



Summary of Common 529 Plan Considerations

Page 48 of 87 

Board Book Page 335



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

529 Portfolio  Structure

 529 portfolios are municipal securities typically comprised of ‘40 Act mutual funds.

 A municipal securities is a security issued by the government or a governmental agency of a municipality.

 Both 529 portfolios (municipal securities) and the underlying funds should be monitored.

Age-based 
portfolios

Static 
portfolios

Individual 
Option 

portfolios

FDIC 
Savings / 

Stable 
Value 

portfolios

Mutual funds
ETFs

Mutual funds
ETFs

Mutual funds
ETFs

Passbook Savings 
Account or Insurance 

Company General 
Account

529 Trust 
creates 

municipal 
securities to sell

Underlying 
funds

Page 49 of 87 

Board Book Page 336



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

529 Investment Time Horizon

 The investment horizon of a 529 plan is < 1/3rd that of a defined contribution plan

 Shorter accumulation horizon = less time to recover from portfolio drawdowns

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29 31 33 35 37 39 41 43 45 47 49 51 53 55 57 59 61 63 65 67 69 71

Years of Savings

Defined Contribution vs. 529 Investment Horizon

Accumulation

Depletion

529 Plan Horizon:
18 Accumulation + 4 Depletion = 22-

Years

DC Plan Horizon (Starting age 30):
36 Accumulation + 35 Depletion = 71-years of 

saving

Page 50 of 87 

Board Book Page 337



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

 Participant: employee (opt-out) vs. public (voluntary).

 Public plans have a predefined (or closed) universe of potential investors.

 529 Participants have complete industry as opportunity set (not limited to their home state).

 Sold to the public: Balance operational and investment responsibilities.

 Investment side of the equation can be second to other considerations.

 Investment structure challenges.

 Fee structure is expensive due to extra layers of fees.

 Municipal security v. ‘40 Act mutual funds and ETFs.

 Business considerations/economics can and do dictate underlying fund choices.

 Can be closed /limited to Program Manager’s proprietary funds or distribution agreements.

 Consultant’s role can be somewhat limited with regard to portfolio construction.

 Typically, program manager is responsible for developing investment products.

 Consultant’s role is often limited to monitoring the Program Manager and analyzing their
recommendations.

 Other limits.

 Account holders are only permitted to change investment options twice per year or when there is a change
in the beneficiary.

Key Differentiating Characteristics of 529 Plans

Page 51 of 87 

Board Book Page 338



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

A.

B.

C.

D.

Which is the largest 
company in Oregon 

by Market Cap? Lattice Semiconductor

Columbia Sportswear

Dutch Bros

Nike

Page 52 of 87 

Board Book Page 339



Plan Fee Considerations

Page 53 of 87 

Board Book Page 340



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

529 Portfolio Fee Components

Underly 
Fund Fees

State 
Admin Fee

Program 
Manager 

Fee

Total 
Participant 

Expense

Operational Costs

Page 54 of 87 

Board Book Page 341



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Fee Considerations

 Fiduciaries, when selecting and monitoring service providers and plan investments, have a duty to act
prudently and solely in interest of the plan’s participants and beneficiaries.

 They must ensure that arrangements with their service providers are “reasonable,” and that only
“reasonable” compensation is paid for services.

 There is no one right answer on what is appropriate, but it is prudent for fiduciaries to have a repeatable,
documented process for evaluating plan-related fees.

 Best Practices:

 Implement a transparent and equitable fee structure.

 Minimize fees and expenses where possible.

 Unbundle the recordkeeping fees from the investment management fees (remove revenue share).

 Have an explicit fee structure appropriate for the plan demographics (asset-based, per capita, or hybrid).

 Benchmark fees periodically.

Page 55 of 87 

Board Book Page 342



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Types of Fees

 Investment (gross/net expense ratio)

 Management Fees (state and plan manager)

 Other Fees (custody, accounting, legal, etc.)

 Revenue Share (is a fee-for-service arrangement between investment companies and plan service
providers that is included into a mutual fund expense ratio.)

 Administrative

 Recordkeeper/custodian, program administration

 Plan Related Fees

 Audit Fees

 Legal Fees

 Consultant Fees

Page 56 of 87 

Board Book Page 343



Investment Concepts

Page 57 of 87 

Board Book Page 344



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Active versus Passive Investing

Active Management

 Active management refers to a portfolio management strategy where the manager makes specific
investments with the goal of outperforming a benchmark index.

 If Manager A returns 10% and the S&P 500 Index returns 8%, Manager A has outperformed the
benchmark index by 2%.

 An active management strategy involves making calculated decisions regarding stocks, sectors, countries,
etc.

Passive Management

 Passive management refers to a portfolio management strategy where the manager makes specific
investments with the goal of mimicking the structure and performance of a benchmark index.

 Investors may choose passive management because it provides broad market exposure, with minimal
operating costs and fees.

Page 58 of 87 

Board Book Page 345



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

What is a Benchmark?

 A benchmark is a standard measure that can be used to analyze the allocation, risk and return of a
portfolio or mutual fund.

 In investing, benchmarks typically come in two flavors:

 There are benchmarks for every type of investment and strategy.

Peer UniverseIndex

 Provides a funds comparative standings (or rank)
within an appropriate peer group of fund with similar
mandates and objectives.

 Indexes include multiple securities, assets, or other
instruments which represent the investable universe
for a specific style of investing.

 Helps gauge the effectiveness of a fund’s
management team versus similar funds especially in
periods when absolute results are outside of
historical norms.

 Provides context in understanding a portfolio’s
absolute performance.

 Peer groups can be broad in nature as well as broken
down into segments based on portfolio
characteristics.

 There are a variety of databases for the institutional
and the mutual fund market.

– Morningstar and Lipper are top providers for
mutual fund peer universes.

 Indexes represent a portfolio of unmanaged
securities that  represent a designated market
segment.

– Index providers create and calculate market
indices and then license their products.

– Each follow their own standardized
methodology.

Page 59 of 87 

Board Book Page 346



A B C D

What is the “Eighth Wonder of the World” 
according to Einstein?

The  Power of 
Compounding

The Firm 
Foundation 

Theory

DiversificationBeta

Page 60 of 87 

Board Book Page 347



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Source: Cartoonstock.com

ECONOMINIC
INDICATORS

Page 61 of 87 

Board Book Page 348



Home Sales

Consumer Spending

GDP

Unemployment

Wage Growth

New Jobs

Industrial Production
Inflation

Construction Spending

Manufacturing Demand

Retail Sales

Home Building

Consumer Savings CPI

PPI

Interest RatesPCE
Page 62 of 87 



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training
TOP US ECONOMIC 
INDICATORS

1 | GDP 2 | Unemployment

3 | Inflation

 Provides the overall value of the
goods and services that the economy
produces

 Indicates if the economy is growing
or slowing

 Measures the percentage of the
nations labor force that is
unemployed

 High unemployment leads to lower
consumer spending and economic
output

 Measures  the change in the price of
goods and services in the economy

 CPI (Consumer Price Index) is the
mot commonly used inflation index

4 | Interest Rates

 Cost of borrowing money set by the
Feder Reserve

 Lower rates encourage spending
and investment, which can boost
GDP and reduce unemployment

Page 63 of 87 

Board Book Page 350



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Economic Indicators Snapshot

3
.5

%

3
.5

%

3
.6

%

3
.8

%

3
.7

%

3
.8

%

4
.1

%

4
.1

%

6
.5

%

6
.7

%

6
.9

%

7
.0

%

7
.1

%

7
.3

%

7
.4

%

7
.7

%

0%

5%

10%

4Q 22 1Q 23 2Q 23 3Q 23 4Q 23 1Q 24 2Q 24 3Q 24

US Unemployment

U-3 U-6

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics. Data as of September 30, 2024. Seasonally adjusted.
U-3 = Total US unemployed, as a percent of the civilian labor forces (official unemployment rate).
U-6 = Total unemployed, plus all persons marginally attached to the labor force, plus total employed part time for 
economic reasons, as a percent of the civilian labor force plus all persons marginally attached to the labor force

6
.5

%

5
.0

%

3
.0

%

3
.7

%

3
.4

%

3
.5

%

3
.0

%

2
.4

%

5
.7

%

5
.6

%

4
.8

%

4
.1

%

3
.9

%

3
.8

%

3
.3

%

3
.3

%

0%

5%

10%

15%

4Q 22 1Q 23 2Q 23 3Q 23 4Q 23 1Q 24 2Q 24 3Q 24

US Inflation Trailing 12 Months

CPI Core CPI*

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics. Data is non-seasonally adjusted CPI, which may be volatile in the short-term. 
Data as September 30, 2024.
* Core CPI excludes Food and Energy. 

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

1M 2M 3M 6M 1Y 2Y 3Y 5Y 7Y 10Y 20Y 30Y

US Yield Curve

12/31/2023 6/30/2024 9/30/2024

Source: US Department of the Treasury.

2.6% 2.2% 2.1%

4.9%
3.4%

1.4%
3.0% 2.8%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

4Q 22 1Q 23 2Q 23 3Q 23 4Q 23 1Q 24 2Q 24 3Q 24

Quarterly Real GDP (Annualized)

Source: Bureau of Economics Analysis. Data as of Q3 2024 represents the “advance” estimate. The Q3 2024  
“second estimate” will be released November 27, 2024.

Page 64 of 87 

Board Book Page 351



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Risk Defined

 Risk is any uncertainty with respect to investments that has the potential to negatively impact financial
outcomes.

 The level of risk associated with a particular investment or asset class typically correlates with the level of
return the investment might achieve. The rationale behind this relationship is that investors willing to take on
risky investments and potentially lose money should be rewarded for their risk.

 Investment Risk cannot be eliminated, but asset allocation and diversification help manage both systemic risk
(risk affecting the economy as a whole) and non-systemic risk (risks that affect a small part of the economy, or
even a single company).

 The members assume the investment risk for the OregonSaves Program. As such, they are responsible for
their own asset allocation and diversification of their Account.

FINRA

Page 65 of 87 

Board Book Page 352



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

A.

B.

C.

D.

What is 
considered the 

only “Free Lunch” 
in investing?

Value Investing

Compound Interest

Diversification

There is no such thing

Page 66 of 87 

Board Book Page 353



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Asset Allocation and Diversification

.

Asset Allocation Diversification

The portion, or percentage, of each 
asset class that an investor has in 
their portfolio. For example, 60% 

stocks and 40% bonds.

A risk management practice to 
reduce the impact of any one 

investment, by investing in a mix of 
assets that move up and down under 

different market conditions.

What’s the difference?

Different, but related.

Page 67 of 87 

Board Book Page 354



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Glidepath

 A glidepath refers to a formula that defines the asset allocation mix of age- or enrollment-based funds

 “One stop shop” for investors, the asset allocation automatically adjusts over time

 From the inception to the end of the investment period

 Reflects risk tolerance changes over time

 Typically, glidepath options gradually become more conservative over time

 Most providers follow similar broad asset class mixes over time (equity v. fixed)

Source: Meketa Investment Group

Page 68 of 87 

Board Book Page 355



ABLE Industry Overview

Page 69 of 87 

Board Book Page 356



FALSETRUE

Funds from a 529 college savings plan can be 
rolled over into an ABLE account.

Page 70 of 87 

Board Book Page 357



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

ABLE Alliance

36%

STABLE

23%

ABLE Collaboration

10%

Independent

23%

No Plan

8%

ABLE Market Share (% of Plans)

States on the Move:

 Nebraska remained independent but engaged Ascensus to serve as program manager, July 2024.

 New Hampshire converted from STABLE to the Alliance, October 2023.

 California converted from TIAA-CREFF to Vestwell, August 2023.

Page 71 of 87 

Board Book Page 358



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

ABLE Alliance 
(IL) Ascensus

 AK
 AR
 CT
 DC
 DE
 IA
 IL
 IN
 KS
 MI (joined 12/21)
 MN
 MS
 MT
 NC
 NH^ (joined 10/23)
 NJ
 NV
 PA
 RI

STABLE 
(OH) Vestwell

 AZ^
 GA^
 KY^
 MO^
 NM^
 OH
 OK^
 SC^
 UT^ (joined 9/21)
 VT^
 WV^
 WY^

ABLE Collaboration 
(OR) Vestwell

 AL (joined 5/21)
 HI (joined 11/21)
 MD
 OR^
 OR ABLE for All
 WA^

Independent

 CA – Vestwell1

 CO – Ascensus2

 FL^ – Vestwell*
 LA^ – In-house
 MA – Fidelity

 ME^ – Bangor

Savings
 NE – Ascensus3

 NY^ – Ascensus
B/D

 TN^ – Ascensus
 TX – Orion
 VA ABLE Now –

In-house**
 VA ABLE America

– American
Funds**

No Plan

 ID
 ND
 SD
 WI

^Closed to out of state residents.
*Residency only required of the beneficiary at the time of application.
**VA plans counted as separately as they have different investment menus.
1 CA transitioned from TIAA-CREF to Vestwell August 21, 2023.
2 CO left the Alliance in June 2023, but Ascensus remains the Program Manager. 
3 NE Ascensus became Program Manager July 1, 2024. Previously these activities were done in-house.
Data Source: State Plan Disclosure Booklets, Ascensus and www.savingforcollege.com.

19 12 5 12 4

ABLE Status Board

Page 72 of 87 

Board Book Page 359



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary TrainingInvestment Options

Fund Families

Money 
Market/ 

LGIPIndividual
Target

RiskBank

FDIC 
Savings/ 
Checking

Vanguard, BlackRock, Schwab, American Funds, Sallie Mae------6Fifth Third1ABLE Alliance

Vanguard------4Fifth Third1STABLE

Vanguard------3BNY Mellon1ABLE Collaboration (AL, HI, OR)

Vanguard, DFA------3BNY Mellon1ABLE Collaboration (WA)

Vanguard, DFA------4BNY Mellon1ABLE Collaboration (MD)

Fidelity, Schwab, Vanguard------7BNY Mellon11CA

Vanguard, BlackRock, Schwab, American Funds, Sallie Mae------6Fifth Third1CO

Vanguard, BlackRock, Florida PRIME (LGIP)133BNY Mellon1FL

Vanguard174------LA

Fidelity1---8------MA

------------Bangor Savings Bank1ME

Vanguard------3
S - NexBank2

C - Fifth Third
2NE

Vanguard, Sallie Mae------4
S - Sallie Mae
C -Fifth Third

2NY

Vanguard, DoubleLine, PRIMECAP, Western Asset114---------TN

Vanguard, PIMCO, Eaton Vance------4Bank of the West1TX

Vanguard, Fidelity1---3------VA – ABLE Now

American Funds1---6------VA – ABLE America

1 Shifted from TIAA Bank to BNY Mellon August 21, 2023.
2 Shifted from First National Bank of Omaha to NexBank June 16, 2023.

 ABLE plans continue to primarily utilize the same fund families.

Page 73 of 87 

Board Book Page 360



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Investment Option Fees (basis points)

Underlying Fund Fees

P
M

 F
e

e

S
ta

te
F
e

e

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l

10
0

%
 E

q
u

it
y

9
0

%
 E

q
u

it
y

8
5

%
 E

q
u

it
y

8
0

%
 E

q
u

it
y

7
5

%
 E

q
u

it
y

7
0

%
 E

q
u

it
y

6
0

%
 E

q
u

it
y

5
0

%
 E

q
u

it
y

4
5

%
 E

q
u

it
y

4
0

%
 E

q
u

it
y

3
5

%
 E

q
u

it
y

3
0

%
 E

q
u

it
y

2
5

%
 E

q
u

it
y

2
0

%
 E

q
u

it
y

15
%

 E
q

u
it

y

10
%

 E
q

u
it

y

0
%

 E
q

u
it

y

M
o

n
e

y
M

k
t

F
D

IC

26---------5------4---4---4------3---------2------0ABLE Alliance^

19*---------------14------13------12--------11------------0STABLE^^

30
20
20
30
20

---
10
10
---
10

---
---
---
---
---

---
---
---
---
---

---
---
---
---
---

---
---

7.36
---

7.50

4.01
4.00
---

4.00
---

---
---
---
---
---

---
---
---
---
---

3.97
---
---
---
---

---
4.10
5.54
4.10
6.90

---
---
---
---
---

---
---
---
---
---

---
---
---
---
---

3.91
---
---
---
---

---
---
---
---
---

---
4.10
5.20
4.10
6.55

---
---
---
---
---

---
---
---
---
---

---
---

4.63
---
---

---
---
---
---
---

0
0

0**
0
0

ABLE Collaboration^^
AL
HI
MD
OR (both plans)
WA

1028---3.1------3.1------3.23.6---4.1---------6.0------7.4---0CA^

28---------5------5---4---4------3---------2------0CO

3.5-
29

---2-5---------3.0------2.9------2.6---------------------00FL

------2-9---------14------13------12--------11---------11---LA

125---------
67

11 Idx
------656657---52---51---49---------40---MA

---------------------------------------------------------------0ME

2911------------4.6------4.7------------5.1------------------
S - 0
C - 0

NE^

28-34------------4---------4---------3---------2---------
S - 0
C - 0

NY^

28
20

---3-65---------------------------------------------------11---TN

1510------------12------20---------------31------35------0TX^

25---------------14------13------------------11---------14---VA – ABLE Now

3-96***---
69-64
44-51

------
58
38

---
58
37

---
52
31

------------------------
52
31

50
36

---
VA – ABLE America A+

VA – ABLE America F2

^ PM Fee not applied to the FDIC option; NE and NY = PM applies to Savings
^^ PM Fee waived on FDIC option in minimum yield support situations
+ Include 12b-1 fees but excludes loads

* Non-partner state residents PM fee = 45 basis points
** 30 basis points for Administrative Fee and 9 basis points for the program cost of providing the prepaid card
*** State fee waived

Page 74 of 87 

Board Book Page 361



Bonus Trivia Round

Page 75 of 87 

Board Book Page 362



A B C D

In which city is Oregon’s 
oldest university located?

SalemMcMinnvilleEugeneCorvallis

Page 76 of 87 

Board Book Page 363



FALSE
TRUE

Speakers qualify as a covered expense for 
college savings accounts?

Page 77 of 87 

Board Book Page 364



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

A.

B.

C.

D.

How many colleges 
and universities 

(public, private and 
trade/vocational) 

are in Oregon?

104

57

74

129

Page 78 of 87 

Board Book Page 365



A B C D

How long after Federal ABLE legislation passed 
did Oregon launch its ABLE plan?

10 Years7 Years5 Years2 Years

Page 79 of 87 

Board Book Page 366



FALSETRUE

The first professional sports team in Oregon 
was the Portland Webfeet.

Page 80 of 87 

Board Book Page 367



Who owns which dog?

A. B. C.

SammieNelsonLibby

Page 81 of 87 

Board Book Page 368



Questions

Page 82 of 87 

Board Book Page 369



Appendix

Page 83 of 87 

Board Book Page 370



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Prudent Investor Rule

 The California Prudent Investor Rule is a critical legal standard that governs the conduct of trustees in
managing trust assets. This rule, which is rooted in the principles of fiduciary duty and prudent investment
practices, serves as a benchmark for trust litigation attorneys in California when assessing the performance of
trustees.

 The prudent investor rule states that fiduciaries must act with prudence, skill, and diligence when managing
the assets of their clients, taking into account the overall investment strategy and the best interests of the
beneficiaries.

 This rule is based on the 1992 Uniform Prudent Investor Act (UPIA), which provides a comprehensive legal
framework for a trustee’s duties and obligations. Its guidelines are formed from a legal principle called the
“prudent man rule,” also called the “prudent person rule.”

 While it doesn’t outline specific investment choices, the prudent man rule requires that a fiduciary exercise
sound discretion when giving investment advice and manage trust assets as they would their own affairs.
Furthermore, fiduciaries must not only evaluate individual investments but also consider the overall
composition of the portfolio and its ability to meet the long-term objectives of each beneficiary.

 Trustees must carefully consider the following when making an investment decision:

 General economic conditions and risk management best practices
 The possible effect of inflation or deflation
 The expected tax consequences of investment decisions or strategies
 The role that each investment or course of action plays within the overall trust portfolio
 The expected total return from income and the appreciation of capital
 Other resources of the beneficiaries known to the trustee
 Needs for liquidity, regularity of income, and preservation or appreciation of capital
 An asset’s special relationship or special value, if any, to the purposes of the trust or to one or more of the

beneficiaries

https://www.barrattorneys.com/blog/the-prudent-investor-rule-for-trustees-in-litigation/

Page 84 of 87 

Board Book Page 371



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Key Economic Indicators

GDP: The gross domestic product (GDP) of an economy provides the overall value of the goods and services that
the economy produces and indicates whether it is growing or slowing.

Employment Figures: The Department of Labor puts out a monthly release on employment that includes the
number of jobs created the previous month by the private sector, the government, and some specific industries,
as well as the national unemployment rate.

Industrial Production: Industrial production is a measure of the output of manufacturing-based industries,
including those producing goods for consumers and businesses. This monthly release from the Federal Reserve
also reports on capacity utilization in the factory sector.

Consumer Spending: Consumer spending accounts for two-thirds of U.S. gross domestic product and is a good
gauge of consumer spending health. The Department of Commerce’s monthly release on personal income and
outlays provides data on consumer spending. It also provides information on inflation through a price index that
reflects changes in how much consumers have to spend to buy certain items

Inflation: Inflation is the general price level rise of goods and services in an economy. Too much inflation can mean
the economy is overheating while very low inflation can be a harbinger of economic recession.

Depending upon the selected set of goods and services used, multiple types of inflation values are calculated and
tracked as inflation indexes. The most commonly used inflation indexes are the Consumer Price Index (CPI) and
the Wholesale Price Index (WPI). The Producer Price Index (PPI) is also used to measure inflation as it relates to
producers

Page 85 of 87 

Board Book Page 372



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

Key Economic Indicators (Continued)

Home Sales: Home sales represent a major purchase for most people. Thus, the Census Bureau's monthly report
on new residential sales speaks to consumer sentiment. This report, based on contracts to buy new homes,
provides input on sales of single-family homes regionally and nationally. It also reports on median and average
sales prices.

Home Building: The number of houses that builders started working on, as well as the number of permits that they
obtained to start building houses, indicates real estate developers’ confidence level in the economy. The Census
Bureau’s monthly release on new residential construction provides this regional and national information.

Construction Spending: Another construction-based indicator is the change in monthly construction spending, in
dollars, nationally. This spending encompasses various construction-related expenses, such as labor and
materials and engineering work. The Census Bureau's report provides a breakdown of residential and
nonresidential public and private construction.

Manufacturing Demand: The report on manufacturers’ shipments, inventories, and orders gives an indication of
demand for manufactured items. The Census Bureau issues a preliminary monthly report and a more lengthy
report as a follow-up. Both break down manufactured goods by many types and industries, from electronic
instruments to machine tools to nondurable consumer goods

Retail Sales: The Census Bureau’s monthly release on retail and food services sales is an indication of consumer
spending health. This report shows retail sales in various sectors, such as department stores, furniture stores, and
home furnishing stores

Page 86 of 87 

Board Book Page 373



Oregon 529 Savings Board

Board Fiduciary Training

THIS REPORT (THE “REPORT”) HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR THE SOLE BENEFIT OF THE INTENDED RECIPIENT (THE “RECIPIENT”).

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS MAY OCCUR (OR HAVE OCCURRED) AFTER THE DATE OF THIS REPORT, AND IT IS NOT OUR FUNCTION OR
RESPONSIBILITY TO UPDATE THIS REPORT. THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN, INCLUDING ANY OPINIONS OR RECOMMENDATIONS,
REPRESENTS OUR GOOD FAITH VIEWS AS OF THE DATE OF THIS REPORT AND IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT ANY TIME. ALL INVESTMENTS
INVOLVE RISK, AND THERE CAN BE NO GUARANTEE THAT THE STRATEGIES, TACTICS, AND METHODS DISCUSSED HERE WILL BE SUCCESSFUL.

THE INFORMATION USED TO PREPARE THIS REPORT MAY HAVE BEEN OBTAINED FROM INVESTMENT MANAGERS, CUSTODIANS, AND OTHER
EXTERNAL SOURCES. SOME OF THIS REPORT MAY HAVE BEEN PRODUCED WITH THE ASSISTANCE OF ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE (“AI”)
TECHNOLOGY. WHILE WE HAVE EXERCISED REASONABLE CARE IN PREPARING THIS REPORT, WE CANNOT GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY,
ADEQUACY, VALIDITY, RELIABILITY, AVAILABILITY, OR COMPLETENESS OF ANY INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN, WHETHER OBTAINED
EXTERNALLY OR PRODUCED BY THE AI.

THE RECIPIENT SHOULD BE AWARE THAT THIS REPORT MAY INCLUDE AI-GENERATED CONTENT THAT MAY NOT HAVE CONSIDERED ALL RISK
FACTORS. THE RECIPIENT IS ADVISED TO CONSULT WITH THEIR MEKETA ADVISOR OR ANOTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISOR BEFORE MAKING
ANY FINANCIAL DECISIONS OR TAKING ANY ACTION BASED ON THE CONTENT OF THIS REPORT. WE BELIEVE THE INFORMATION TO BE
FACTUAL AND UP TO DATE BUT DO NOT ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR ERRORS OR OMISSIONS IN THE CONTENT PRODUCED. UNDER NO
CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL WE BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, DIRECT, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES OR ANY DAMAGES
WHATSOEVER, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, OR OTHER TORT, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE OF
THIS CONTENT. IT IS IMPORTANT FOR THE RECIPIENT TO CRITICALLY EVALUATE THE INFORMATION PROVIDED.

CERTAIN INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT MAY CONSTITUTE “FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS,” WHICH CAN BE IDENTIFIED BY THE
USE OF TERMINOLOGY SUCH AS “MAY,” “WILL,” “SHOULD,” “EXPECT,” “AIM,” “ANTICIPATE,” “TARGET,” “PROJECT,” “ESTIMATE,” “INTEND,”
“CONTINUE,” OR “BELIEVE,” OR THE NEGATIVES THEREOF OR OTHER VARIATIONS THEREON OR COMPARABLE TERMINOLOGY. ANY FORWARD-
LOOKING STATEMENTS, FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS, VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS IN THIS REPORT ARE BASED UPON CURRENT ASSUMPTIONS.
CHANGES TO ANY ASSUMPTIONS MAY HAVE A MATERIAL IMPACT ON FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS,
VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS. ACTUAL RESULTS MAY THEREFORE BE MATERIALLY DIFFERENT FROM ANY FORECASTS, PROJECTIONS,
VALUATIONS, OR RESULTS IN THIS REPORT.

PERFORMANCE DATA CONTAINED HEREIN REPRESENT PAST PERFORMANCE. PAST PERFORMANCE IS NO GUARANTEE OF FUTURE RESULTS.

Disclaimer

Page 87 of 87 

Board Book Page 374


	Cover Page.pdf
	OR 529 Savings Plan�Board Book

	11-21-24_529 Savings Agenda.pdf
	08-22-24_529 Savings Minutes.pdf
	OR 529 Savings Board_ED Report_November 2024.pdf
	Oregon College Savings Plan Participant Analysis: �Moving the Needle for the Next Generation
	Slide Number 2

	Landmark_Oregon 529 2024 FS Draft.pdf
	Landmark_Oregon ABLE 2024 FS Draft.pdf
	2024-09-30 Program Data Report.pdf
	2024-09-30 Oregon 529 Performance Summary.pdf
	2024-11 Retrospective (2017 to 2024) - OR 529 Savings Board.pdf
	Vestwell_2024.11.21_529 Savings Board.pdf
	KK_OCSP Q3 Marketing Update Nov 2024.pdf
	Q3 Marketing Overview
	AGENDA
	Q3 Strategy
	Q3 Overview
	Q3 Campaign Overview
	Q3 Spanish Paid Search
	Q3 What If?
	Q3 Account Holder Sweepstakes
	Website Refresh
	+49% 
growth in account opens since 2017 
	How we did it:


	Launched 500+ paid marketing campaigns

	Developed a video testimonial content library �for multi-channel usage.
	+2616% 
growth in account opens since 2017 
	Launched 75+ paid marketing campaigns

	Developed a video testimonial content library �for multi-channel usage.
	THANK YOU
	APPENDIX
	Oregon 529 Savings Board Goals
	OTSN Q3 �Performance Report
	OTSN Q3 �Performance Report
	Contents
	Connect personally at each stage of the savings journey.
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Connecting audiences with the right answers.

Developed a new Save Smart and Invest Best audience ecosystem, using a What If acquisition retargeting strategy. The messaging focused on addressing key questions to help build confidence in why OCSP is the right choice for them.
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Refreshed creative improved overall performance.
	Slide Number 30
	Slide Number 31
	Expanded targeting strategy while maintaining efficiencies.
	Slide Number 33
	Slide Number 34
	Slide Number 35
	Save Smart audiences resonate with “Community Support” messaging.
	Invest Best audience showed mixed signals on preferred messaging.



	Slide Number 38
	Slide Number 39
	Slide Number 40
	Incentivized account engagement. 

	Slide Number 42
	Slide Number 43
	Slide Number 44
	Incorporated traffic objectives to increase ad engagement.
	Slide Number 46
	Slide Number 47
	Slide Number 48
	Maximize efficiency and spend through alternating targeting.
	Slide Number 50
	Slide Number 51
	Increased retargeting audience over time.
	Slide Number 53
	Slide Number 54
	Slide Number 55
	Spanish language ads showing early positive results.
	Slide Number 57
	Slide Number 58
	Slide Number 59
	Quality over quantity is providing dividends.
	Campaigns drive higher traffic but lower engagement.
	Users are utilizing FAQ modules to find answers.  
	Brand familiarity is paying dividends.
	Spanish language is the most used translation. 
	Slide Number 65
	+184% 
growth in account opens since 2017 
	How we did it:


	Launched 500+ paid marketing campaigns

	Developed a video testimonial content library �for multi-channel usage.
	+822% 
growth in account opens since 2017 
	Launched 75+ paid marketing campaigns

	Developed a video testimonial content library �for multi-channel usage.

	Break.pdf
	BREAK

	Meketa_2024 529 Savings Board_Oregon Inv_FINAL.pdf



